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Company Profile
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Digital China Holdings Limited (“DC Holdings”) was founded in
2000 and listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (Stock Code: 00861.HK]) in 2001.

In more than one decade since its incorporation, DC Holdings
has consistently achieved breakthroughs and transformation
in tandem with changing times, in a persistent effort to fulfill
its mission and vision pertaining to the “Digitalised China”.
Soon after our incorporation, we have built a complete IT
service chain providing integrated end-to-end IT services and
become China’s largest integrated IT service provider. In
2010, DC Holdings announced our Sm@rt City strategy and
rolled out a Sm@rt City-based business network. Currently,
we have established ourselves as China’'s premium brand
in Sm@rt City, leading the market in terms of strategy,
implementation, technology and business model.

Today, at a time when information technology is constantly
changing the life of each and every person, DC Holdings is
ushering in a multi-billion worth industrial revolution through
the “Digitalised China”. In sectors where we have already
developed core advantages, such as Sm@rt City, precision
medicine, modern agriculture, smart manufacturing, finance
and taxation, etc, we are introducing innovative business
models on the back of Cloud Computing and Big Data
technologies to facilitate our Company’s transformation from
an industrial IT service provider to an integrated industrial
operator. DC Holdings is growing into a pure play in IT
innovation.
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Financial Highlights
81 1% 18 &

FY2016 FY2015 FY2014 FY2013* FY2012/13
—E-X —E—1 —ZE—K = =ZE—=/
B & Bf & B B A * —Z B
HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m HK$m
BETERT | BBEEL AKEETL AB¥EEL A¥EER
For the Year REER
Revenue WA 12,251* 10,631* 68,343 52,265 73,499
Profit/(loss) from Operating & & % ),/ (&)
Activities 260* 681* 1,305 (180) 2,114
Profit/(loss) Attributable to & 2 &) % R fE(h
Equity Holders w=H L (E58) (170)* 199% 701 84 1,372
Earnings per Share TR EF GBI
(HK cents) 34.74 61.67 65.37 7.87 128.01
Dividends per Share TR RS CGEWL)
(HK cents) — — 20.00 17.80 38.80
At Year-end REEXR
Total Assets 1 E E 23,716 37,486 33,708 30,100 28,408
Shareholders’ Funds % & 4 7,169 8,873 8,600 7,726 7,826
Financial Ratio Bf 3§tk =&
Return on Equity (%) fi% 3 & 4 [0 7) K
(Aot 5.43 7.46 8.15 1.09 17.47
Interest Cover (times) FMEEBE LX) 4.45 4.41 5.22 (0.63) 7.31
Current Ratio (times) B () 1.24 1.21 116 1.36 1.44
Total Interest Bearing Debts M B EHEE KRR E &
to Shareholders’ Funds b & (1)
Ratio (times) 1.07 1.49 0.94 0.78 0.70
Revenue Profit/(loss) from Profit/(loss) Attributable
TN Operating Activities to Equity Holders
mEHH(BE) BATIREREEGRH (&)
HK$m HK$m HK$m
BYEET BEEET BYEET
2.300 414y
80,000 1600
701000 73,499 s ads 1,800 1,400 1,372
: ] b 1,200
60,000 1,300 ’ 1.000
50,000 800 o
40,000 800 681 600
30,000 00 - 400 .
20,000 200 o
10,631 12,251 0
10,000 -200 -200
0 (180) (170)
FY FY Y FY  FY FY FY Y FY FY -400 gy FY Y B FY
12/13 13* 14 15# 16# 12/13 13* 14 15¢# 16# 12/13 13* 14 15# 16#
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*  Due to adjustment of financial year end, FY2013 refers to the nine months ended 31 December 2013

* RAMFRAE - =WFABE-Z—=F+=ZA=+—BILNEA

# Due to the completion of the disposal of the traditional distribution business, the revenue, profit/(loss) from
operating activities and profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders include continuing operations only
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JAN
20-Jdan

20-Jan

27-Jan

FEB
1-Feb

1-Feb

MAR
28-Mar

The grand final of “Weihai Internet + Digital
Venture Contest 2015” hosted by Digital China
Holdings in association with Weihai Municipal
Government was completed successfully.

The China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone
Integrated Intellectual Property Service Platform
developed by the China (Shanghai) Pilot Free
Trade Zone Intellectual Property Association in
cooperation with DC Holdings was launched in
Shanghai.

DC Holdings has signed strategic cooperation
agreement with Hengshui Municipal Government
and China Unicom Hebei to drive Smart City
development in Hengshui City.

In February, DCITS obtained the “Certificate of
Class | Compliance in IT Service Operation and
Maintenance Standard Sophistication” awarded by
Chinese Electronics Standardisation Association
with top scores.

Technological Innovation Public Service Platform
for Liangjiang New District of Chongging City which
was constructed and operated by DC Holdings was
launched.

DC Holdings entered into the “Strategic
Cooperation Agreement for the Construction of
Internet+ Sm@rt Portal of Jiangsu” with Jiangsu
Economic and Information Technology Commission
and China Telecom Jiangsu for further innovative
cooperation in the joint construction of the
“Internet+” integrated service platform on the
basis of the integrated Sm@rt Jiangsu portal.

Significant Events
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28-Mar

30-Mar

30-Mar

30-Mar

APR
1-Apr

8-Apr

DC Holdings Sm@rt City business has signed the
Strategic Cooperation Agreement for the Internet+
Sm@rt Portal of Jiangsu with Jiangsu Economic
and Information Technology Commission and China
Telecom Jiangsu in another strategic alliance at
provincial level following similar ventures with
Hebei Province and Henan Province.

DC Holdings Sm@rt City business has won the
tender for service procurement for Phase |
investment and operation of “Sm@rt Yunfu” City.

DC Holdings Sm@rt City business is qualified for
public capital identity in PPP projects of Dongli
District of Tianjin City.

DC Holdings Sm@rt City business won the tender
for Wuyi City “Internet+” Integrated Tourism
Service Platform.

iISESOL held the seminar on “Building a Smart
Manufacturing Ecosphere”. Attending government
officials and industry leaders included Lu Yongxiang
(Deputy Chairman, NPC Standing Committee),
Guan Xiyou (Chairman of Shenyang Machine Toals),
Guo Wei (Chairman of DC Holdings) and Lu Feng
(Professor of Peking University).

In April, as China's Sm@rt City expert and
the leader of the Sm@rt City Standard Work
Group under the service-oriented Sub-technical
Committee for Regimes and Structures of China
National Information Technology Standardisation
Technical Committee, DC Holdings presided over
the formulation of 2 national standards: “General
Requirements for Smart City Public Support and
Service Platforms” (Plan No. 20152004-T-469)
and “Guide for the Operation and Maintenance
of Smart City Information Systems” (Plan No.
20151997-T-469) and formed preliminary draft
standards. This represents another excellent
contribution to the progress of the industry by DC
Holdings since its involvement in Sm@rt City.
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12-Apr

20-Apr

30-Apr

30-Apr

MAY
1-May

11-May

17-May

“iISESOL Cloud Platform” launched connection in in-
house testing with 2,300 sets of equipment going
online.

The 1st Forum on the Development of Social
Credit Regime in China Building co-hosted by DC
Holdings and China Chengxin under the theme of
“Building a Credit-worthy City and Community” was
held at Fanghua Villa, Diaoyutai State Guesthouse
in Beijing.

Signing ceremony was held for the sm@rt cloud
manufacturing base to be built in cooperation
between IiSESOL and Jiangmen Hi-tech Industry
Park at the 9th CCMT Exhibition.

iISESOL Participated as core team member in the
drafting of the industrial cloud standards presided
over by China Electronics standardization Institute
under the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology (MIIT).

In May, Instant Logistics entered into a strategic
cooperation agreement with Rhenus of Germany
to become a partner in the TecDis “White Glove”
logistics and technology solution.

Instant Logistics was invited to take part in an
experimental micro-movie project for teachers
organised by the Education Committee of
Chaoyang District, Beijing.

The “Precision Medical Big Data Research Centre”
co-built by DC Holdings and Bio-X Research
Institute of Shanghai Jiaotong University was
officially unveiled.

Significant Events
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18-May

20-May

24-May

JUN
16-Jdun

Fuzhou Metro Line No. 1 commenced operation.
Rongcheng Fuzhou Smart Card Co, in which DC
Holdings holds a stake through its sm@rt card
business department, became the service provider
for Fuzhou's metro line smart card service. This
was a further achievement of DC Holdings’ smart
card business following similar ventures in other
provincial capitals such as Wuhan and Nanjing.

Sm@rt City won the tender for Qinhuangdao
Citizen Platform.

DCITS signed a purchase agreement purchase to
acquire Howso Technology, a company specialised
in mobile network optimization and big data
services for communications.

The unveiling ceremony of the “Peking University
— DC Holdings Joint Innovation Centre” and
a seminar on the application of Big Data
technologies were held at the Lake View Hotel
Beijing. Guests of honour attending the event
included government officials: Huai Jinpeng (Deputy
Minister of the MIIT), Xie Shaofeng (Head of IT
and Software Service Division, MIIT), Mei Jianping
(Deputy Head, Division for Advanced Technologies,
Ministry of Science and Technology), Lou Jing
(Deputy Head, Technology Division, Ministry of
Education) and Zhao Ruizhen (Deputy Head,
Department of Information Science National
Natural Science Foundation of China); academics
Lu Rugian, Lin Huimin, Li Wei, Lu Jian and
Mei Hong from Chinese Academy of Sciences,
members Ni Guangnan, He Xingui, Zhao Qinping,
Sun Jiaguang and Liao Xiangke from Chinese
Academy of Engineering, Lin Jianhua (President of
Peking University) and Huang Ru (Head of School
of Electronic Engineering and Computer Science,
Peking University) and Guowei, Board Chairman of
DC Holdings.
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23-Jun

24-Jun

JUL
1-dul

15-Jul

15-Jul

29-Jul

AUG
2-Aug

10-Aug

Deputy Secretary of Shanghai Municipal CPC
Committee Yang Xiong inspected iSESOL and
commented that “we need enterprises such as
iISESOL to put our strengths into practice”.

An Xiaopeng (Deputy Head of IT and Software
Service Division, MIT) visited the company for
study and research and commented that “the new
business model of iISESOL introduces the idea of
shared economy to the manufacturing sector”.

Sm@rt City won the renewal of contract for a
second year in respect of the operational service
project for the Administrative Approval Bureau of
Wuhou District, Chengdu.

The “Wuhou Service” Citizen Platform commenced
Internet+ innovative government services.
Representatives attending the National Conference
on the Standardisation of Administrative Approvals
paid a visit to the platform control.

Sme@rt City signed the cooperation agreement with
Dongli District Government of Tianjin.

G20 Youth Conference visited iSESOL.

DCITS became one of the first committee
members of the “China Big Data Industry Alliance”
formed by CCID and our expert in Big Data Hao
Jinrui became a member of the Expert Committee
of the Alliance.

Sme@rt City has signed the strategic cooperation
agreement with Changchun New District.

Significant Events
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10-Aug

11-Aug

23-Aug

31-Aug

SEP
1-Sep

6-Sep

15-Sep

16-Sep

20-Sep

Sm@rt City won the tender for Fuzhou Citizen
Platform.

Qinhuangdao Citizen Platform was launched.

DC Holdings entered into strategic cooperation
in Smart City with Changchun New District
Administrative Committee and Longxiang
Investment Group.

Instant Logistics opened an auxiliary storage in
Hong Kong.

Shanghai Municipal CPC Committee Secretary Han
Zheng and company visited iSESOL.

DCITS entered into a cooperation agreement
with the Ministry of Agriculture for joint efforts
in the integration of Big Data into agricultural
businesses.

Ho Chee Hin, Director of China Group, IE
Singapore, visited the Chongging Sm@rt City.

iPhone7 debuted in China and Instant Logistics
provided superb supply chain management
services for Apple to dispatch stocks to all
destinations in China within 5 days.

The “Forum on Standardisation of New Generation
IT Industries in China” was held in Hangzhou
with the publication of the “Verification Report
on the Trial Evaluation Based on New Smart
City Evaluation Benchmarks (2016)”, of which DC
Holdings was one of the drafters.

ANA+H
NA+—H
NA=Z+=RH
NA=+—H

LA
AA—H

AVARA

AATEH

AVATRE

hAZ+H

BRmHEEMTRF

8
VAN
(=)

BEHTREETRFYA
BELRK-

BMERERFERRESR
g EAREEEERE
ERMERAE-

BEYRELE LS

=l

FETERELHEETR

RERER -

BNEERRXBRES
et - KRS R EUR

HEXTHARS -

MM BEREEER BT
BR AR A2EFIGHLE
THMNZEREZRTEE

A -

iPhone7 /Bl & 2% - %l 3
W57 B 0 B8 SR AT B pE g
BB RAAEELEH -

PR -KEERME
EREHIEIERIME
W e LEEEM TG
RS EEE
(& 5% & %W & (2016)) - 14
MNZER A2 EERNLE
v—



29-Sep

oCT
12-Oct

13-Oct

19-Oct

27-Oct

28-0Oct

30-Oct

30-Oct

iISESOL participated in the 2nd Investment and
Trade Fair for Advanced Equipment Manufacturers
in Western Zhuhai.

The National Quantum Industry Alliance was
established with DCITS among the founding
members. In December, DCITS won the tenders
for 2 quantum communication projects with an
aggregate worth of close to RMB113 million,
highlighting its leading position in the sector.

At the Business Summit of the 1st World Apple
Conference, DCITS, subsidiary of DC Holdings
entered into letters of intent for cooperation
with the national Luochuan Apple Wholesale
Market, national (Mei County) Actinidia (Kiwifruit)
Wholesale Market and Shaanxi provincial “Shaanxi
Online Fruit Market” to build the largest Big Data
Centre for apple and actinidia businesses in China,
in a bid to facilitate upgrade of the fruit industry.

The launch ceremony of Rushan Citizen Net was
held at the citizen service centre.

DC Holdings entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with Shenzhen Capital Group for
cooperation in various areas to achieve mutual
benefits and facilitate development of innovative
ventures, thereby helping Shenzhen to grow into
a world-class centre for industrial innovation.

The designer’s salon city roadshow sessions were
successfully held at the Beijing and Shanghai
offices of iSESOL.

Yunfu Citizen Platform was launched.

Longyan Wuping Citizen Platform was launched.

Significant Events
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30-Oct

30-Oct

30-0Oct

NOV
1-Nov

4-Nov

8-Nov

12-Nov

Contract for purchasing services was signed for
Beijing Citizen Platform.

Rushan Citizen Platform was launched.

Sme@rt City delivered China’s first joint venture
self-help terminal sample case in association with
Honggi Chain — Chengdu.

The launch ceremony for China Yang Ling
Agricultural Cloud Service Platform, aiming to
assist agricultural technologies with a solid
technological foundation, was held at Zhongchuang
Tianyuan in Yang Ling Exemplary Zone.

The launch ceremony for the “Public Information
Cloud Security Centre” invested in and built by
Digital China (Qinhuangdao) Information Security
Company Limited was held in Qinhuangdao. Guo
Wei, Chairman of DC Holdings, attended the
ceremony.

Digital China Qicheng Innovative Venture Service
Platform went online and “Chengdu — Digital
China Qicheng Brand Announcement 2016” was
successfully held at 751D Park in Beijing.

Instant Logistics reaped record-high B2C volume
for Nov 11th in excess of 10 million orders,
ranking 1st among Cainiao Alliance Storage
Service Provider.
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16-Nov

16-Nov

16-Nov

18-Nov

30-Nov

30-Nov

30-Nov

30-Nov

The grand opening ceremony of the 18th
International Hi-tech Achievements Trade Fair of
China, under the theme of “Innovation-driven and
Quality-oriented ventures”, was held at Shenzhen
Convention and Exhibition Center. DC Holdings
participated in the exhibition with a virtual Sm@rt
City with an area close to 200m?2 created in
cooperation with Huawei.

The service transition implementation project for
the Shenyang Machine Tool cloud platform by
iISESOL won the “Innovative Business Model Award”
for leading users in digitalized transition in China.

Sm@rt City has signed a new cooperation
framework agreement with Jiaxing City of Zhejiang
to drive the development of new benchmark smart
city in Jiaxing.

On 18 November, mainstream media in Europe,
including France 24 International Channel,
Television De Catalunya of Spain and France
Telévisions ran special reports on the Langfang
Storage of Instant Logistics in Hebei.

The third-year contract was renewed for Chengdu
Citizen Platform.

Another 3-year service was renewed for Weihai
Citizen Net.

Changsha Tianxin Shuangchuang Platform went
online following the signing of contract.

Launch ceremony for Guiyang Citizen Service
Platform was held.
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DEC
2-Dec

8-Dec

8-Dec

9-Dec

10-Dec

DC Holdings and subsidiary Digital China
Information Service Company Ltd. were both listed
as qualified stocks under Shenzhen-Hong Kong
Stock Connect.

DC Holdings entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with Huawei in Shenzhen. Pursuant to
the agreement, the two parties will cooperate in
the areas of cloud services, Smart City, industry
customer development, network resources,
distribution and retail sales of communication
and fusion terminals, e-commerce management,
logistics and maintenance services.

DCITS was named one of the first Large-scale
Class | Enterprises in Information Systems
Integration and Services in China. The designation
of Large-scale Class | Enterprise is currently
the highest qualification in information systems
integration and services, representing best of the
best selected by China Information Technology
Industry Federation among 264 existing Class |
enterprises engaged in this sector.

Hui Jie Tong Supply Chain, the first integrated
platform for home appliance logistics formed
as joint venture by Instant Logistics and HC
International (2280.HK), commenced operations in
Zhongshan.

Agreement for Guiyang Citizen Service Platform
was signed.
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10-Dec

16-Dec

Changshu garnered the “Technological Innovation
Award” at the “Sino-Euro Green and Sm@rt City
Award 2016” held in Shenzhen, as the only city
receiving awards for 2 successive years.

The “China Youth Innovative Venture Service
Platform” went online at the International
Innovation and Entrepreneurship Expo 2016. The
launch ceremony was officiated by Zhang Kun
(CPC Committee Secretary, Lin Yang (CEO of DC
Holdings) and Huang Kun (CEO of Digital China
Qicheng) in the presence of He Junke (Secretary
of Central Secretariat, CPC Youth League).
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Awards
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Business Group: Holding Company

LB ERER

Date of Name of award Authority

award

EREH

(£/R)

2016/2 Top 100 HK Listed Companies BB EMARIAER GQ.com, Finet BEANAD - BAEEAE

2016/2 Outstanding Contribution Award — Strategic Alliance for B4 2 5 7 & 5 B fif 81 57 8( M B B8 Strategic Alliance for Technological Innovation of R B T I AR
Technological Innovation of Smart City Industry in China [2%¢ ﬁﬁ g4 Smart City Industry in China BEH AR

2016/7  Outstanding Cloud Service Operators 2016 2016E ARG ERE Business Consulting Partner EEX STl 11

2016/12  Top 10 Software and Information Service Enterprises in 2016F El ¥l {75 8 [R5 %+ A8 F Software and Integrated Circuit Magazine BEREKERME
China 2016 S

Business Group: Digital China IT Services

ABER BMBBEERY

Date of Name of award Authority

award

i 4530

(£/8)

2016/1 Outstanding Product Innovation Award for PRC Financial 20154 [ # Bl & BhIT iR 75 7 o7 % Financial Computerizing Magazine SMEFLEFE
IT Service Providers 2015 EmAIH®

2016/3  Annual Award for Successful Enterprises in IT Service 2015-2016 EITfR % 135 4 E A1) CCID Consulting Company Limited BEEHROBERAF
Market in China 2015-2016 33

2016/4  Top 100 Solution Providers in Brand Influence in China 20167 Bl 5 £/ @15 % /Top100  Business Partners BEBHEARE
2016

2016/5 Best Contribution in Informatization in PRC Software 20164 EFE# 172/ B/t &EE China Software Industry Association FEEHITERS
Industry 2016 81 China Information Weekly FE ;

2016/6 Top 5 Enterprises in Golden Software and Golden 2016 EFEEL H S RFEAAEH Software and Integrated Circuit, China Center of ~ FEIEF(EEE£EREW %R
Services in China 2016 % Information Industry Development §M’—T—ﬂ§ﬁ5€ 5 BR A SR AL

2016/7  Top 100 Solution Provides in China 2016 2016 E H RE B & Business Partners

2016/8  Outstanding Brand Image Award in IT Services 2016 201BITR 7% 4 i @ 18 T2 5 28 5th China Finance Summit

2016/9 1st Ranking in IT Information Service User Satisfaction 20167 EITHF W E E H&ITEE R CCW Research
in the IT User Satisfaction Pall in China 2016 BRPREEE— China National Customer Committee F

2016/12  Best CEO of Listed Companies 2016 — Zhou Yibing 20164 A7 &% £CE0 — §— 5 Forbes China B4 ()

2016/12  Top 10 Leaders in Software and Information Service — 2016H Bl {4 = S MR ¥ T AEE Software and Integrated Circuit Magazine R EKERE M
Industry in China 2016 — Zhou Yibing A — A—&

2016/12  Outstanding Solution Award for Financial IT Service 20185F > BUTARTS 797738 — €  Financial Computerizing Magazine EMEBFLRERUL
Providers in China 2016 FHRT R

2016/12  Outstanding Entrepreneur Award in Bauhinia Cup 2016 201684 £ {E#F (3 i % R % — /& Hong Kong Polytechnic University and Chinese Private 7 518 T K2
— Zhou Yibing -k Technology Entrepreneur Association FERENREERGE

2016/12  Service Providers of First Choice in PRC Informatization 20167 Bl 17415 84k BiE RS H China Computer Users Association HEEBEHE
Industries 2016

Business Group: Sm@rt City Service Group

AHERE BEAT

Date of Name of award Authority

award

R

(%£/R)

2016/1 12th FYP Leading City in Smart City in China (Changshu) +Z=HHBEIGREERT — EFEMT China Smart City Summit TR BT RE
(B8

2016/1 12th FYP Contributor to the Promotion of Smart City in + = AR EE S M ##E — ZEER China Smart City Summit PEE BT R

China (Changshu) B

2016/1 12th FYP Leading City in Smart City in China (Wuxi) — T=AFEGAEEMT — EEHM China Smart City Summit R BT

€:3))

2016/4 Jiangsu Information Consumption Exemplary Project IHEEEHERE TR Jiangsu Economic and Information Technology THERER
(Xuzhou Integrated Public IT Service Platform) mMNmELEERBARETA) Commission

2016/8 Outstanding Solution of Information Consumption in REHESEEEAFERTEEE  China Electronics News and Chengdu loT Industry B E Tt - AW BB E
Chengdu Development Alliance ERRBB

2016/12  Outstanding Contribution Award — Strategic Alliance for q”@ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ%&% BI3TE(BE B 8 Strategic Alliance for Technological Innovation of PEEENTEERMAIFE
Technological Innovation of Smart City Industry in China [ %2 & i #2 ] Smart City Industry in China B g6 B2

2016/12  Deputy Secretary General Unit of Smart Beijing Alliance *” SR REMEIREREMN Smart Beijing Alliance BEAEERE

Business Group: Supply Chain Management

REHRE  GLREE

Date of Name of award Authority

award

EREH

(£/R) B

2016/7 Outstanding Case of Logistics and Purchasing IT in China 20164 F %)/ 8 f#{= 8L 8%  China Federation of Logistics & Purchasing FEYTERERAS
2016 £

2018/7  Golden Roc Award of Cainiao Alliance 2016 201X BB S I Cainiao Alliance of Alibaba DEES

2016/12  Top 100 Enterprises of e-Commerce Logistics in China 20164 [& FREBWRE®REHE China Electronic Commerce Logistic Enterprise TREFEBIRCEBR
2016 Alliance

Business Group: Sm@rt Manufacturing

BMGEE HEHAITE

Date of Name of award Authority

award

&R

(£/R)

2016/11 Innovative Business Model Award — Leading user in 201BFHHEE T EAEFMAFIE] International Data Corporation 3 % #1 #% 2 /)(IDC)
China Digitalization Transformation 2016 E R




Chairman’s Statement
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With “Digitalizing China” being our unchangeable mission, Digital
China Holdings will enter into the various industrial areas with the
help of Cloud Computing and Big Data technologies and executions
of key technologies, business models and innovation mechanisms
while taking the advantages of our long-term strength in IT
services and industrial applications. We are aiming to occupy the
corresponding industrial application areas with our technologies
and gain a leading edge in the coming intellectual world.
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Digital China Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

Dear shareholders of Digital China Holdings,

Given the volatile global landscape, China was confronted
with a challenging and uncertain economic environment in
2016. The global economy, including China’s, is at a crucial
shift, adapting to the new driving transitional forces of
growth while numerous “Black Swan Events” increasing the
uncertainty of the global economy.

In 2016, Digital China Holdings (“DC Holdings”) took
the initiatives to make many reforms while being faced
with challenges. We laid down a solid foundation for our
future development while securing our steady growth.
In 2016, we seized the opportunity to dispose the
traditional distribution business (currently known as
Digital China Group) and get it listed in China’s A-share
market successfully. By paying out HK$3.2 cash dividend
per share, we not only create lucrative cash returns for
our shareholders but also reinforce the determination of
transforming into a well-rounded innovation company.
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Chairman’s Statement
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Mr. GUO Wei
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During the fiscal year, while achieving sustained growth
in IT Services business, we have further expanded our
leading advantages of finance software and technical
services business. Our patented Core Banking System
software has won over half of the market share among
China’s private banks. Our ESB (Enterprise Service Bus)
services, based on Big Data in finance, have get enhanced
considerably. We have made substantial breakthroughs in
the intellectualization of our technical services business,
and have achieved intelligent and dynamic monitoring
of the system functions, performance, application and
lifecycle, which improve the stability of the system
for our customers while reducing the operation and
maintenance costs. We continue to take the lead in
quantum communication technology applications. Closely
collaborating with the team of Prof. Pan Jianwei, an
academician of Chinese Academy of Sciences, from
the University of Science and Technology of China, we
have completed the construction of “Beijing-Shanghai
Telecommunication Main Line”, the first thousands-mile
level quantum encrypted communication network in the
world. It has provided a testimonial for the testing and
application of large-capacity and long-distance quantum
communication and has made the leap from the laboratory
to application of the technology. 2016, China successfully
launched the world’s first quantum satellite, which further
testified our IT Services quality in technology.
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We have made tremendous progress in the application of
Big Data technology during the practice of Sm@rt City
business in China. We worked with Peking University and
established the Collaborative Innovation Center which
tackles with new technologies in Sm@rt City, Big Data,
Cloud and so on as well as the commercialization. We have
made several achievements in the areas of DaaS (Data as a
Service), Algorithm Platform, Structured natural-language
deep mind search engine, and intellectual WiFi. We have
also made world-leading breakthroughs in micro-service,
data collection and application, laying a solid foundation
for the application of Big Data in Sm@rt City business.
While maintaining our leading edge in the “Internet +
City Services” business, we have registered remarkable
progress in creating an entrepreneurship and innovation
platform for small-and-medium enterprises. Besides our
collaboration with Zhongguancun, we also worked with
Beijing E-Town Economic-Technological Development Zone
to set up the Public Service Platform for Technological
Innovation in Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei Province for
entrepreneurship, innovation and commercialization of
scientific and technological achievements. We are aiming
to provide quality services for dozens of development
zones at national and provincial level in this area with the
integration of supporting forces from the government,
research institutions, capital market and the society.

Under the guidance of the Thirteenth Five-Year Plan, we
have developed our own five-year development plan. We
will focus on the innovation in the Big Data and Cloud
Computing technologies in platforms and applications
areas. Meanwhile, to fully stimulate internal innovation
capacity and vitality, we have transformed the current
in-house R&D center oriented top-down system to the
innovation center oriented bottom-up system which allows
our core employees to share the benefits and risks with
the company and eventually allows them to take the
initiatives in DC Holdings’ business transition.
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In 2017, the global economy will continue to experience
profound changes and uncertainties in the aftermath of
the international financial crisis. With the ups and downs
over the past few years, China’s economy might be still
challenging in 2017. However, we are still optimistic about
the medium-to-long term growth of China’s economy. The
supply-side structural reform, Five-in-One development
plan’, Two-Centenary Goals?, Consumption Upgrading,
and Innovative Development have surely created more
opportunities for enterprises like us.

The five-year development plan is developed based on
our assessment of the future economic landscape and
technology innovation. With “Digitalizing China” being
our unchangeable mission, we will enter into the various
industrial areas with the help of Cloud Computing and
Big Data technologies and executions of key technologies,
business models and innovation mechanisms while taking
the advantages of our long-term strength in IT services
and industrial applications. We are aiming to occupy
the corresponding industrial application areas with our
technologies and gain a leading edge in the coming
intellectual world.

Cloud Computing and Big Data technology will be the
crucial foundation for our future development.

! “Five-in-One” overall plan is a new idea appeared at the 18th CPC
National Congress, and a summary of “the overall plan for promoting
all-round economic, political, cultural, social and ecological progress”.

2 “Two Centenary Goals” were proposed by Xi Jinping, General Secretary
of the Communist Party of China at the 18th CPC National Congress:
building a moderately prosperous society in all respects by the time
the CPC celebrates its centenary in 2021, and turning China into
a modern socialist country that is prosperous, strong, democratic,
culturally advanced and harmonious in time for the People’s Republic
of China to mark its centennial in 2048.
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In the Cloud Computing sector, DC Holdings will enter
into hosted private cloud, hybrid cloud and public cloud. In
hosted private cloud and hybrid cloud, DC Holdings plans to
start from the notch: achieving controllable construction
and operation capability in private cloud through internal
R&D, external M&A and other methods to help our clients
to upgrade the application systems into cloud. Meanwhile,
we plans to achieve leading positions in Tumor Cloud,
Finance Cloud, Taxation Cloud, Agriculture Cloud and other
specialized cloud services. In public cloud, DC Holdings
will start from cloud resale, to virtual operation, and then
collaborate with new comers in laaS (Infrastructure as a
Service)/PaaS (Platform as a Service) services, eventually
become public cloud operator. At the same time, DC
Holdings will also keep an eye on the M&A opportunities
of fast-growing SaaS (Software as a Service) providers
of various industries, in order to establish our industrial
application capabilities.

In the Big Data sector, DC Holdings will tap the business
from data acquisition, Big Data analysis, and Big Data
application. We will collect and accumulate data resources
when we provide IT services in Sm@rt City, Agriculture
Informatisation, Sm@rt Manufacturing, Healthcare,
taxation and other areas. Based on these data, we
will build up multi-dimension and open-source Big Data
integration capacity. Through data analysis, we will develop
valuable applications in order to take lead in the “Internet+”
areas. DC Holdings will become the leading Big Data
services provider in China by 2020.

DC Holdings is no longer an IT services provider anymore.
In the intellectual are, we are entering into the various
industrial areas with the identity of being an IT services
provider. This is indeed a fundamental transformation for
us.

Therefore, we have proposed a “Three-Step” Strategy to
make breakthroughs in Sm@rt City, Precision Medicine,
Agriculture Informatisation and Sm@rt Manufacturing.
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The first step is to collect and accumulate data by
providing IT services; The second step is to find out
applications with which we can create values for
customers by data analysis; The third step is to deepen
the applications with various side services and financial
products to establish an ecosystem.

For Agriculture Informatisation business, Yangling
Agricultural Cloud will be the new beacon of DC Holdings’
Agriculture Cloud business. We are collecting agricultural
data through the farmland registration IT services we
provided to government. We are establishing farmland
exchange and trading platforms based on those data and
hoping to facilitate the agricultural commodity trading in
order to monetize the data. Eventually, we will step into
the downside of the agriculture value chain by providing
food tracing services.

For Sme@rt City business, DC Holdings is in the leading
role of providing equal access of public services to citizens.
We sincerely hope that our integrated public service
platform will provide equal access to education, healthcare,
employment, and social security for each Chinese people.
We sincerely hope that our integrated entrepreneurship
services platform launched by Premier Li Keqgiang will
not only greatly promote Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei integration
process but also extend to every corner of China. We
sincerely hope the visualized digital platform that we
constructed for the government will effectively make the
environment safer.

For Precision Medicine business, we are making a name
for ourselves. We sincerely hope the world’s largest tumor
Big Data platform we are constructing now will help to
make contribution to the well-being of mankind.
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Innovation mechanism and culture are essential to the
business transition. The newly-formed Innovation Center
is composed of three levels, namely innovation garage,
incubator and catapult which are categorized by the
development stages of each incubated business. We
do hope this three-level Innovation Center will help DC
Holdings achieve bottom-up innovation and become a truly
innovative company.

Meanwhile, DC Holdings will adhere to our dual-engine
strategy of combing technology and capital, focusing on
Cloud Computing and Big Data, building up technology
barriers and utilizing the capital markets to conduct M&A
and other investment activities in order to achieve external
growth for the company.

DC Holdings must seize this tremendous opportunity to
lead a Big Data based industrial revolution with the mission
of “Digitalizing China”. We must gain unique competitive
advantages in Cloud Computing and Big Data areas by
making breakthroughs in Sm@rt City, Precision Medicine,
Agriculture Informatisation and Sm@rt Manufacturing in
three to five years. Of course, it would be impossible to
achieve this vision on our own. We will closely work with
our holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and business
partners to develop a benefit-sharing ecosystem. We do
realize the major challenge is not from outside, but our
internal gap between our capabilities and the opportunities.
Therefore, we must consistently improve our innovation,
execution, coordination and internalization capacities
during the daily practices in order to realize our strategic
goals mentioned above.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank investors for your support on our business
transition. | am very grateful for the efforts made by our
employees in achieving our business goals. Lastly, | look
forward to your continuous trust and support in our future
endeavors.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Global macro-economy continued to be volatile in 2016.
While China went into a critical year for its supply-side
structural reforms, Digital China Holdings also celebrated the
15th anniversary of its IPO in Hong Kong. This year, we spent
lots of time and energy to the reform of our business models,
core technologies and corporate culture in relation to our
new strategy. In future, Digital China Holdings will commit
all resources and efforts to the development of “Internet+”
applications including Sm@rt City, Precision Medicine,
Agricultural Informatisation and Sm@rt Manufacturing which
centre on Cloud Computing and Big Data based on our IT
services advantages. By doing so, we are aiming to transform
Digital China Holdings from a traditional IT company to an
all-rounded innovative company.

11 Disposal transaction completed while new

strategy delivered initial success

In March 2016, Digital China Holdings received the
full consideration for the transaction of disposing
100% equity interests in its traditional consumer and
corporate distribution business (the “Discontinued
Operation”, namely, Digital China Group) amounting
to HK$4.43 billion after deduction of related tax and
expenses. On 19 April, we paid a special cash dividend
of HK$3.2 per share to shareholders. The exceptional
gain of approximately HK$498 million arising from the
disposal was booked in the financial year under review.
The successful completion of the disposal has not only
delivered lucrative returns to shareholders, but also
enabled the Company to focus its resources on its
strategic businesses with bolstered determination for
the transformation into an innovative company.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, revenue from
the Continuing Operations amounted to HK$12,251
million, representing year-on-year growth of HK$1.62
billion or 15.25% compared to HK$10,631 million for
the corresponding period of last financial year. Such
growth was driven mainly by the increase in turnover
from IT Services, Supply Chain and New Business for
the period, underpinning the initial success of business
transformation under our new strategy. Gross profit
increased to HK$2,504 million by HK$288 million or
12.98%, as compared to HK$2,2168 million for the
corresponding period of last financial year. Gross
profit margin was largely unchanged at 20.44%. Profit
attributable to the shareholders of the parent company
generated from our business as whole (Continuing
Operations and Discontinued Operation) amounted to
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1.2

M

HK$389 million, a 41.16% decline as compared to the
corresponding period of last financial year attributable
mainly to increased investments in R&D in Big Data
and Cloud Computing, new business expansion, higher
financing costs and exchange losses arising from RMB
devaluation.

Focusing on Cloud Computing and Big Data

technologies and accelerating strategic

transition

Ongoing developments in information technology have
presented us with novelties such as Cloud Computing,
Big Data, Virtual Reality and Artificial Intelligence.
Among these, Cloud Computing, in particular, will
become the mainstream model for IT operation in
future, while Big Data will provide the most important
core resources in this model. As the application of the
Mobile Internet continues to extend from consumer
spending to other sectors, our lifestyles, business
operations and corporate development are undergoing
revolutionary changes: each sector will represent a
brand new market itself. We aspire to become an
innovative Internet company. Such innovation calls for
the provision of Internet-based Cloud Computing and Big
Data services through the Sm@rt City to sectors which
we have strengths on, such as precision medicine,
agricultural informatisation, sm@rt manufacturing,
finance and taxation. Such innovation of business model
will enable us to achieve the transformation from an
IT service provider to the industry-based operator.

In Cloud Computing sector, we will develop the business
by engaging in: hosted private cloud, hybrid cloud and
public cloud. For hosted private cloud and hybrid cloud,
we will serve industrial clients by developing private
clouds construction and operation capacity through
internal R&D as well as external acquisitions and
utilizing such capability to facilitate cloud conversion
for our customers’ application systems. Meanwhile, we
will strive to take the lead in the specific application-
based clouds for tumor treatment, financial services,
taxation and agricultural sectors. For public cloud, we
will tap the market through cloud resources reselling
and gradually develop towards virtual operations, while
seeking opportunities in laaS/PaaS operations on a
partnership basis to become an operator of public
clouds eventually. We will also pursue acquisitions
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of vertical SaaS providers with strong potential for
growth, with a view to fostering abilities in vertical
applications.

In Big Data sector, we will tap the business through
data resource acquisition, Big Data analysis and
application to build a complete Big Data business
chain by mastering key technologies. While providing
services, software and solutions in Sm@rt City,
agriculture, healthcare, taxation and other industries,
we accumulate and acquire data resources, on the
basis of which we develop the ability to manage multi-
dimensional, open-source Big Data on a consolidated
basis. By extracting and analyzing data and providing
value-added data services, Digital China Holdings will
become a leading Big Data service provider in China
by 2020.

In future, Digital China Holdings will no longer be
a mere IT service provider. Instead, we are going
participate in Sm@rt City, Precision Medicine,
Agricultural Informatisation and Sm@rt Manufacturing
on the back of our strengths in industrial IT services.
The driving force behind the change is innovation.
We established an innovation centre in 2016, and
a bottom-up innovative regime has been formed to
replace our previous top-to-bottom R&D regime:
internally, incubation projects are set up with equity
investments by the Company and the project teams.
Externally, we identify target companies with great
synergies, strong potential growth and leading edge
and invest them by way of direct investment or the
establishment of venture funds to form the ecosphere.
The incentive regime is the catalyst for innovation. In
2016, the Company completed shareholding schemes
for more than 1,000 management personnel. In future,
we will continue to improve our incentive regime with
a view to enhance motivation for our business teams.
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IT Service Business (DCITS):
provider in China’s IT industry specialized in

leading IT service

proprietary software, services, Cloud Computing

and Big Data analysis, with emphasis on

cloud platform services for the agricultural,
financial and taxation sectors on the back of its

strengths in these industries

As an important technological arm of Digital China
Holdings in Cloud Computing and Big Data, DCITS
(IT Service Business) boasts extensive experience in
industry application solutions and exceptional insights
into the trends of development of the IT industry.
Seizing opportunities of IT upgrade, DCITS secured
prudent progress in business and implemented its new
strategies with full force to forge a solid foundation for
the business development.

Benefitting from the upgrade of IT infrastructures
and services of various sectors to cloud-based
structures and the faster pace of informatisation for
the agricultural sector, DCITS reported rapid growth
for its major business segments for the financial year
under review, as revenue increased by HK$1,052 million
or 12.90%, year-on-year, to HK$9,2039 million. The
systems integration business, which had been subdued
for some time, reported a 6.72% growth in revenue as
compared to the corresponding period of last financial
year, Due to intense market competition, the overall
gross profit margin decreased by 1.09% to 19.10%.
Net profit of DCITS attributable to shareholders of
the parent company for the period was 35.44% lower,
year-on-year, at approximately HK$274 million, as we
increased our investments in R&D and marketing to
enhance the development of our new strategy and new
business, while financing costs also increased.

During the financial year under review, DCITS
continued to implement its strategy of driving
business development through external acquisitions,
as it completed the acquisition of Nanjing Howso
Technology Co., Ltd. (FRE&HEIAR AR, a leader
in mobile network optimization and Big Data for the
communication industry. The acquisition will not only
bring substantial profits to DCITS, but will also provide
it with an access to the CT (Communication Technology)
service sector.
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2.1.1 Technical Services;, Application Software

Development (including Cloud services]

DCITS reported rapid growth in revenue for these
segments in 2016 as it completed the upgrade to
cloud-based structures for all its major products
and launched value-added data services through the
combination of Cloud and Big Data applications. For
the financial year under review, Technical Services
and Application Software Development (including Cloud
services) reported revenue of HK$2,574 million and
HK$1,038 million, representing remarkable year-on-year
growth of 22.06% and 50.15%, respectively.

In technical services, DCITS has enhanced automated
operation of its [T maintenance and testing service. \We
have signed up new customers including China Mobile
and Harvest Fund for Service Jet, our new-generation
automated maintenance product which can reduce
system maintenance costs while enhance the system
stability. During the financial year under review, we also
signed up the Xicheng District Government of Beijing
City and the China Merchants Bank Data Centre as
customers, signifying our transition from standalone
IT maintenance to maintenance outsourcing for entire
business units in a major boost to our value-added
services.

In application software development (including Cloud
services), we have been focusing the SaaS services and
the Big Data business: our proprietary core banking
system software accounted for a market share of over
50% in China’s private banks. In the taxation sector,
we completed promotion of our key competitive product
the “Financial and Taxation Administration Information
System Phase [lII” administration and decision-making
platform across the nation and project implementation
is forthcoming. Meanwhile, DCITS signed up Anhui
Province Local Tax Bureau for its proprietary Big
Data taxation platform, as it seized the opportunity
presented by the upgrading of the national taxation
system to promote its value-added services.
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2.1.2 Agricultural Informatisation

213

Our agricultural informatisation business reported
revenue of HK$324 million for the financial year
under review. Gross profit margin increased by 5.16
percentage points to 56.76%, indicating the strong
competitive edge of our business model built around
software and data services. Since the acquisition of
Zhongnong Xinda in late 2014, we have become No.1
in China’s agricultural informatisation industry over
the past two years, ranking first in market shares
for software services in farmland rights registration
and land trading & exchange. We have extended the
reach of our farmland rights registration business to
all provinces and municipalities in China (excluding Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan), forging a solid foundation
for the market development of our future businesses
in land turnover and value-added services for the
agricultural chain.

Systems Integration Business

The Company’s systems integration business reported
revenue of HK$4,826 million for the financial year
under review, representing a year-on-year growth of
6.72%, as the previously subdued systems integration
sector welcomed a prominent rebound following
advances of the national information security strategy,
especially the upgrade of IT infrastructures to cloud
systems across industries. Nevertheless, overall gross
profit margin decreased by 0.88 percentage points
to 9.56% under intense market competition. Closely
collaborating with the team of Prof. Pan Jianwei, an
academician of Chinese Academy of Sciences, from the
University of Science and Technology of China, DCITS
has completed the construction of “Beijing-Shanghai
Telecommunication Main Line”, the first thousands-mile
level quantum encrypted communication network in
the world. It has provided a testimonial for the testing
and application of large-capacity and long-distance
guantum communication and has made the leap
from the laboratory to application of the technology.
China successfully launched the world’s first quantum
satellite in August 2016, which further testified our
IT Services quality in technology. In 2016, DCITS
became one of the founding members of the National
Quantum Communication Industry Union. In future, the
Company will continue to make strong efforts to drive
the development of quantum communication and other
businesses in information security.
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Supply Chain Management Business: leading
supply chain management brand in China with
extensive logistic network and comprehensive
after-sale maintenance capability. Relying on the
“intermediary platform” integrated e-commerce
based on SaaS, develop B2C

services and 020 self-branded maintenance

service model

services

Thanks to our strategy of developing core benchmark
customers on a continuous basis, our Supply Chain
Management Business recorded overall turnover of
approximately HK$2,252 million for financial year under
review, an increased by HK$172 million or 8.26% as
compared to the corresponding period of last financial
year. The turnaround in revenue was notable during the
peak season for e-commerce and logistics during the
second half of the year. Despite an intensely competitive
environment, Digital China Holdings was able to sustain
a stable gross profit margin owing to good reputation
and high value-added software services. The gross
profit margin is approximately 15.93% for the period,
almost unchanged from the corresponding period of last
financial year. During the financial year under review,
we continued to focus on major customers and grow
this customer base with special efforts, with a view
to rapid expansion in sales and market share, as well
as enhanced brand recognition for Instant Logistics.
Meanwhile, start-up investment in warehouse leasing,
fitting and equipment also increased.

e-Commerce Supply Chain Business

The “intermediary platform” business model, built
through persistent efforts over years, has now formed
one of our unique, core competitive strengths. Our
marketing efforts yielded positive results as we signed
up Panasonic and a variety of other e-commerce
clients during the year, apart from sustaining strong
growth in businesses with existing customers such as
Huawei, Dell and HP. We also entered into a long-term
service contract with an existing core customer in an
illustration of the competitiveness of the “intermediary
platform integrated service model” and its ability to
secure customer loyalty.
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222 Logistics Services

During the financial year under review, we continued
to be engaged in solid cooperation with China Mobile,
China Unicom and China Telecom — in B2B logistics
business. In B2C logistics business, we entered into
contracts for FMCG (fast moving consumer goods)
warehouses with Cainiao Network of Alibaba Group
in 5 cities: Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Wuhan
and Huizhou. Instant Logistics, our logistics services
brand, made a name for itself during the November
11th marketing campaign (China’s Black Friday) in the
debut with Cainiao, ranking 1st and 5th through its
Langfang Warehouse in North China and Fengxian
Warehouse in Shanghai, respectively, in terms of the
order volume processed among the Cainiao Union.
In addition to becoming a core strategic partner of
Alibaba, Instant Logistics has been widely praised by
branded customers, as evidenced by in-depth reports
of international media. Moreover, we continue to
optimize our self-owned software through enhanced
R&D to facilitate end-to-end visible management
of the entire logistics transportation process, and
the competitiveness of our SaaS business has been
enhanced as a result.

2.2.3 Maintenance Services

2.3

Our maintenance business continued to enhance its
marketing on the Internet to provide a broader range of
services and products to consumers and SMEs under
its “K-Boy” brand, while optimizing door-to-door services
to improve customers’ experience and service quality.

New Business: Exploring opportunities in

“Internet+” sectors such as Sm@rt City,

Precision Medicine, Agricultural Informatisation
and Sm@rt Manufacturing to foster strategic
new business growth niche on the basis of Cloud

Computing and Big Data technologies

For the financial year under review, the New Business
comprised Sm@rt City and Financial Services. Turnover
amounted to HK$791 million, representing year-on-
year growth of 100.67%, while gross profit increased
by HK$1862 million or 72.18% as compared to the
corresponding period of last year. The rapid growth
in revenue and gross profit underpins the enormous
market potential of Sm@rt City under the new model
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of “Internet+”. Meanwhile, staff costs and marketing
expenses increased in line with increased investment
in the innovative regime.

Sme@rt City Business

As we continued to invest in the construction of
Sme@rt City platforms and corresponding services, our
Internet-based Sm@rt City service business sustained
rapid development: turnover for 2016 amounted to
approximately HK$145 million, representing year-
on-year growth of 120.25%. As at the end of the
financial year under review, we had 30 Internet service
platforms in operation, close to doubling what we had
at the end of 2015.

In 2016, we secured renewals for expiring contracts
with cities such as Weihai and Chengdu, underlining
government approval of the business model and service
quality of Digital China’ Sm@rt City business model and
exceptionally strong endorsement for the “Internet +
City Services” model introduced by us. As a forerunner
in China’s Sm@rt City sector, DC Holdings has extended
the reach of its Sm@rt City platforms to more than
100 cities over the years. Our application solutions
and IT platforms are operating in more than one
third of the cities in China. The massive footprint has
generated stable service revenue and growing usage
volume for us, while providing a sound opportunity for
commercialization. Our team has launched a diverse
range of commercial services, such as handset repair,
auto maintenance and venue leasing in association with
third-party service providers, on a trial basis, on the
Beijing City platform to enhance citizen services and
broaden revenue sources for the platform.

During the financial year under review, we continued to
enhance cooperation and investment in technology: In
May, Digital China Holdings entered into a framework
agreement for long-term partnership with Shanghai
Jiao Tong University; in June, the “Peking University
— Digital China Innovation Centre” was launched
in association with Peking University to commence
research and commercial applications based on
technologies such as Sm@rt City, Big Data and Cloud
Computing. In future, we are looking to develop a
Sme@rt City ecosystem comprising an application
programming interface (“API”), based on our proprietary
Sme@rt City operating systems and the exclusive deep
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web exploration technology (Yan Feng DaaS and Yan
Yun laaS) of Beijing Internetware Limited Corporation
acquired by us to connect third-party services and an
extensive range of business partners.

232 Financial Services Business

As an important support of DC Holdings’ strategy,
our Financial Service Business seeks to generate
stable income and profit for the Company by providing
flexible financing and lending services in diversified
sales to customers of various business platforms, with
a primary focus on risk control. During the financial
year under review, we made sustained efforts in
the agricultural finance sector and developed a wide
range of financial loan products, including agricultural
machinery leasing and supply-chain financing with our
subsidiary DCITS, to numerous sub-sectors such as
plantation and livestock. As at the end of the financial
year under review, the outstanding loan balance of
our financial service business had amounted to over
RMBS0OO million, representing a 68% growth as
compared to the corresponding period of last year.
Meanwhile, we made active efforts to realize the value
of our existing property assets through disposal, leasing
and commercial development which contributed revenue
of HK$280 million for the financial year under review,
which represented year-on-year growth of 16.52%.

During the financial year under review, besides the
provision of financing, factoring and micro-crediting,
etc. for the financial services, we also conducted
investment in financial products which generated
revenue amounting to HK$220 million. By the end of
the financial year under review, we have the investment
products undue/un-redeemed with principal around
HK$2.45 billion. The maturities of these investment
products are ranging from three months to one year
with the annualised interest rates ranging from 2.8%
to 10% which issuers are well-known, reputable asset
management companies and commercial banks in
China. When choosing the investment products, the
Company carefully considers following factors: liquidity,
maturity, risk and return. The risks associated with
the investment products purchased in 2016 are under
control and all realize the stated investment return.
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Going forward, the Company will continue to conduct
the investment under well-defined and controlled risk
management.

Chongging Digital China HC Microcredit Finance Co.,
Ltd. ("HC Microcredit”), a joint venture formed by the
Company and HC International, continued to report
growth in business scale since its incorporation in the
second half of 2014, leveraging the membership of HC
International and information on transactions on the
platform. Loan balance as at the end of the financial
year under review exceeded RMB1.60 billion and net
profit amounted to approximately RMBBS million, while
non-performing loan ratio stood at 3.19%, which was
lower than the industry average.

2.3.3 Self-incubating Business

Under the new innovation and incentive regime, our
“Internet +Corporate Service” business team finished
equity injection and transformed from a department
of Sm@rt City Service to an incubation project of the
innovative centre of Digital China Holdings known as “Qi
Cheng”. Incubated by Digital China Holdings, the core
team and technologies of Qi Cheng bring resources
from government industrial parks and third-party
service institutions and serve the start-ups and small-
medium enterprises for their operational and financing
requirements through an online + offline one-stop
integrated platform. Currently, our business covers
11 cities, including Beijing, Shanghai, Xi'an and Harbin,
and 40 specialized industrial parks, serving close to
3,000 start-ups and small-medium enterprises with an
aggregated contract worth of close to RMB14 million.
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3.1

Digital China Health business has been officially
launched after nearly 10 years in incubation and 3
years of preparation. On the back of a formidable R&D
team and technological build-up over the years, as well
as cooperation with reputed academic institutions in
the world, Digital China Health has developed most
advanced oncologic data analytical ability among
domestic peers. We are collaborating with the China
National Cancer Center to build China's largest
oncologic data centre and oncology Big Data platform.
Currently, 17 provincial oncology hospitals have been
connected and approximately 2 million sets of clinical,
imaging and genetic oncologic data have been collected.
Digital China Health is committed to becoming No. 1
brand in Big Data service of healthcare in China.

Management Outlook

Year 2016 marks the 15th anniversary of the listing
of Digital China Holdings on the Main Board of Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. In 15 years’ time, Digital China
Holdings has grown from an IT product distribution
company with a market cap of HK$3 billion and revenue
of HK$8.5 billion to a group comprising Digital China
Holdings, DCITS, HC International and Digiwin Software,
with a total market cap of nearly HK$50 billion across
the capital markets of Mainland China and Hong Kong
and Taiwan. In 15 years’ time, Digital China Holdings
had successfully incubated Digital China Group, the
largest IT product distributor in China, and DCITS, the
largest integrated IT service provider in China. Today,
as the most influential Sm@rt City expertise in China,
we will continue to explore opportunities to boost the
growth on an ongoing basis.
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In 2017, the global economy will continue to experience
profound changes and uncertainties in the aftermath
of the international financial crisis. With the ups and
downs over the past few years, China’s economy might
be still challenging in 2017. However, we are still
optimistic about the medium-to-long term growth of
China’'s economy. The supply-side structural reform,
Five-in-One development plan', Two-Centenary Goals?,
Consumption Upgrading, and Innovative Development
have surely created more opportunities for enterprises
like us.

Given the difficulties facing the macro-economy and the
rapid changes characterizing the era of information,
we will continue to embrace opportunities as well
as challenges. A trillion-worth Big Data revolution is
looming as the Internet continues to be bolstered
by ongoing technological innovations. Digital China
Holdings will follow the rapidly changing environment
and concentrate our efforts to gain the first-
mover advantage in core sectors such as Sm@rt
City, Precision Medicine, Agricultural Informatisation
and Sm@rt Manufacturing. The transformation of
an enterprise does not come overnight, and the
transformation from a traditional enterprise to an
innovative company is definitely more challenging.
Therefore, we require nothing less than the
understanding and support of shareholders, concord
and assistance of business partners, consensus and
cooperation of the management team, and execution
and aspiration of the internal departments, in order
to succeed in the transformation. Success is achieved
through none other than determination, and business
expansion is possible only through hard work and
dedication. Guided by the vision of a “Digitalizing China”,
the people of Digital China Holdings will continue to
progress with determination towards transformation
into a Big Data and Cloud Computing service provider
on the back of its solid strengths in the IT industry
built over the years.

“Five-in-One” overall plan is a new idea appeared at the 18th CPC
National Congress, and a summary of “the overall plan for promoting
all-round economic, political, cultural, social and ecological progress”.

“Two Centenary Goals” were proposed by Xi Jinping, General Secretary
of the Communist Party of China at the 18th CPC National Congress:
building a moderately prosperous society in all respects by the time
the CPC celebrates its centenary in 2021, and turning China into
a modern socialist country that is prosperous, strong, democratic,
culturally advanced and harmonious in time for the People’s Republic
of China to mark its centennial in 2048.
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Capital Expenditure, Liquidity and Financial Resources
The Group mainly finances its operations with internally
generated cash flows, bank borrowings and banking facilities.

The Group had total assets of HK$23,716 million at 31
December 2016 which were financed by total liabilities of
HK$13,244 million, non-controlling interests of HK$3,303
million and equity attributable to equity holders of the
parent of HK$71639 million. The Group’'s current ratio at
31 December 2016 was 1.24 as compared to 1.21 at 31
December 2015.

During the vyear ended 31 December 2016, capital
expenditure of HK$923 million was mainly incurred for
the acquisition of properties, office equipment and IT
infrastructure facilities.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s continuing operations
had cash and bank balances of HK$2,757 million, of which
about HK$2,490 million were denominated in Renminbi.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, gains arising
from the trading of investment products by Digital China
Information Service Company Ltd. (“DCITS”), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, grew 65.5%, year-on-
year, to approximately HK$20 million. DCITS conducted
such trading with its short-term surplus funds with a view
to strengthening cash flow management and enhancing
efficiency in the utilisation of its working capital.

The aggregate borrowings from continuing operations of the
Group as a ratio of equity attributable to equity holders of
the parent was 1.07 at 31 December 2016 as compared
to 0.73 at 31 December 2015. The computation of the
said ratio was based on the total interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings of HK$7,665 million (31 December 2015:
HK$6,512 million) and equity attributable to equity holders
of the parent of HK$7163 million (31 December 2015:
HK$8,873 million).
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At 31 December 2016, the denomination of the interest- RZEBE—RF+ZA=1+—0 x5EH
bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group was shown MERITREMERNERELNT
as follows:

Denominated

in United Denominated
States Denominated in Hong Kong
dollars  in Renminbi dollars Total
LERTHE UARBE UBETHE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 b
BMTT O BETRT  B%TR BETx &
3
Continuing operations HEREEK E
Current B %
Interest-bearing bank MERITER =
borrowings, unsecured A 748,550 1,114,353 270,000 2,133,903 PP
Interest-bearing bank HERITER - ﬁ
borrowings, secured BHEE — 2,843,683 — 2,843,683 '
Corporate bonds NGIEEE=S — 221,428 — 221,428
749,550 4,179,464 270,000 5,189,014
Non-current ¥RE
Interest-bearing bank MESRITER
borrowings, unsecured EE 193,750 188,214 — 381,964
Interest-bearing bank MERITER
borrowings, secured BEHEA — 1,530,341 — 1,530,341
Corporate bonds NAMEH — 553,569 — 553,569

193,750 2,272,124 — 2,465,874

Total st 943,300 6,451,588 270,000 7,664,888
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Certain of the Group’'s bank borrowings from continuing
operations of HK$1,440 million extended by financial
institutions to certain subsidiaries of the Group were secured
by land use right and properties with an aggregate carrying
amount of approximately HK$2,072 million at 31 December
2016.

Certain of the Group’'s bank borrowings from continuing
operations of HK$2,934 million extended by financial
institutions to certain subsidiaries of the Group were secured
by the Company’s 225,340,800 issued shares of DCITS, a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, directly held by
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$5,297 million at 31 December 2016.

Included in the Group’s current and non-current bank
borrowings from continuing operations of HK$104 million and
HK$1,912 million respectively represented the term loans
which are repayable from 2017 to 2026. All of the Group’s
bank borrowings from continuing operations were charged at
floating interest rates except for the loan balances with an
aggregate amount of HK$1,706 million which were charged
at fixed interest rates as at 31 December 2016.

In August 2016, DCITS, a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, obtained the relevant approval for issuing the
short-term notes in the national inter-bank market in the
PRC with a maximum principal amount of RMB700 million.
In September 2016, DCITS issued the first tranche of the
short-term notes of 2016 with a total principle amount of
RMB200 million (equivalent to approximately HK$221 million)
with a maturity period of 270 days and at an interest rate
of 3.48% per annum. The proceeds thereof were to be used
for the working capital of the subsidiaries of DCITS.

In August 2016, Digital China Software Limited (“DC
Software”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
obtained the relevant approval for issuing the medium-term
notes in the national inter-bank market in the PRC with a
maximum principal amount of RMB700 million. In September
2016, DC Software issued the first tranche of the medium-
term notes of 2016 with a total principle amount of RMB500
million (equivalent to approximately HK$554 million) with a
maturity period of 5 years (with the investors’ option to sell
back the notes after the end of the third year from the
issuance date) and at an interest rate of 4.9% per annum.
The proceeds thereof were to be used for repaying the bank
loans of the Group.
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The total available credit facilities from the Group’s continuing
operations at 31 December 2016 amounted to HK$11,557
million, of which HK$3,123 million were in term loan facilities,
HK$2,568 million were in trade lines and HK$5,866 million
were in short-term and revolving money market facilities. At
31 December 2016, the facility drawn down from Group’s
continuing operations was HK$2,201 million in term loan
facilities, HK$538 million in trade lines and HK$1,976 million
in short-term and revolving money market facilities.

Under the normal course of business, the Group has
issued performance bonds to some customers for potential
claims of non-performance in order to satisfy the specific
requirements of these customers. As no material claims had
been made by the customers under such performance bonds
in the past, the management considers that the possibility
of realisation of any actual material liabilities arising from
such performance bonds is remote.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group made a provision for liabilities with an amount
of RMB18.12 million (equivalent to approximately HK$20
million) for the year ended 31 December 2016 in respect of
the judgment handed down by Suzhou Intermediary People’s
Court ((2015) Su Zhong Shang Chu Zi No. 00145) for a case
involving Digital China Information Service Company Ltd., a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. DCITS, the first
defendant and the plaintiff of the case has filed an appeal to
Jiangsu Provincial Higher People’s Court against the judgment
of the first trial. As at the date of approval of these financial
information, a verdict has yet to be issued.
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Capital Commitment BARESE
At 31 December 2016, the Group had the following capital RZZE—RF+ZA=+—8 KxEE/E
commitments: AT & AR HE
HK$'000
BT T
Land and buildings T R F 281,626
Capital contributions payable to joint ventures MZHEeEEEITE 60,273
Capital contributions payable to associates MZHEEERREE 16,607
Capital contributions payable to available-for-sale RZ B At HEZRETE
investments 163,856
522,362

Human Resources

At 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately
10,500 (31 December 2015: approximately 6,800) full-time
employees. The majority of these employees work in the
PRC. The Group’s continuing operations offers remuneration
packages in line with industry practice. Employees’
remuneration includes basic salaries and bonuses. With
the increase in the total number of staff to cope with its
business requirements, the Group’s continuing operations
has recorded a 22% increase in staff costs to approximately
HK$2,000 million for the year ended 31 December 2016
as compared to approximately HK$1,639 million for the
corresponding period of the last financial year. In order to
attract and retain a high caliber of capable and motivated
workforce, the Company offers share-based incentive
schemes to staff based on the individual performance and
the achievements of the Company’'s targets. The Group’s
continuing operations is committed to providing its staff
with various in-house and external training and development
programs.
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Mr. GUO Wei
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Mr. GUO Wei, aged 54, is the Chairman and an Executive Director BREE BTN RAEEZ ERFHFA &

of the Group and is responsible for the strategic development and TEF BEASEABRERRER - 8 =

management of the Group. Mr. Guo had been the Vice Chairman, R —F AR PEEREEIREEE -

the President and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group since ITREREFZRERNTE  HER_TZT L il

February 2001 and was appointed as the Chairman of the Board of FT_ABZERERRAEEZGERF - B §J‘ ""%':,5-

the Company in December 2007. He is also a Director of certain BARARETHBRARIRBE AR 2EE - B =

subsidiaries and associates of the Company. Mr. Guo obtained a MEER—NNNFRFHBERER A

Master’s Degree from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy RAIBPERERMASHEER) 2ER

of Science (formerly known as Graduate School of the University B2 RN\ N\ENABEEER -

of Science and Technology of China) in 1988. He joined the Legend WEAHBEEENTEERa R LR - F

group in 1988 and was once an Executive Director and Senior EEBREPR+REHEFRR(ZTEZ

Vice President. Mr. Guo was awarded such major prizes included FE) PEBBIKEGES FRRE ]

China’'s Top Ten Outstanding Youths (2002), kE#HTFKE (Z2Z2_FF) hE+RGELS FRIEE

&L 48 (Practical and Outstanding Youth of Achievement) (2002) FE(—ANNEE) ARRREEEH(=

by the China Association for Science and Technology, China’s Top ZE=FEINEETFREFLEREEAI

Ten Outstanding Youths in Technology Innovation (1998), Future CR(ZETHFE)SBERIE - BB

Economic Leader of China (2003), and the First Annual China Young EORXRAA_E——FR T —_FHE

Entrepreneurs Creative Management Golden Honour (2005). He was SEFENNR B REMZ— -

also selected as the 50 Most Powerful Businesspeople in China by

Fortune Magazine (Chinese version) in 2011 and 2012.

Mr. Guo is currently the Chairman of Digital China Information FLAEER BWINBBEERBEROEER AR

Service Company Ltd. and Digital China Group Co., Ltd. (formerly i s £ B AR A7 (AT FE AR YT

known as Shenzhen Shenxin Taifeng Group Co., Ltd.) (all listed on FEFLZEBREOBER QT (E IR EI

The Shenzhen Stock Exchange), and an Independent Non-executive BHERGHEMcEEZR  URPEBAM

Director of China Southern Airlines Company Limited (listed on ERHBRAF(REBBEZIMBRAF

the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, The IR EBEBSFRGARBNBZSFZSHHE

Shanghai Stock Exchange and The New York Stock Exchange). In W) 2B IEHMITES o 1AM - % RKosalaki

addition, he is a Director of Kosalaki Investments Limited which is Investments Limited (3% #& % [ Hi & 15 5] &5

a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of XVESFTil B ARAI M EERR)HESE - 50

Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Guo was a FHEBEESEBERARI(REEHE SN

Non-executive Director of HC International, Inc. (listed on the Main BRABEREMZIENTEE  LEBHR

Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), an Independent BRBTRMDABRAB (R EESEHFRSHHE

Director of Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co., Ltd. (listed on TMHEYEEURSEREROBRAR (R

The Shanghai Stock Exchange) and a Director of DigiWin Software AUNBHZGMBIER L) 2EE - BHN -

Co., Ltd. (listed on the ChiNext of The Shenzhen Stock Exchange). SEEBRETHFEARBGGHETZE T

Besides, Mr. Guo is currently a Standing Committee Member of E2HZEGZE BERESIERFZNRNE

the 12th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political BEgFENEZESZERPRERERBEE

Consultative Conference, a member of the 4th Advisory Committee EHBEFNEEETRERELEHE o &

for State Informatization and the Chairman of the Bth Council NEETILEREEEHBEER - BEEBK

of China Non-Governmental Science Technology Entrepreneurs WERRXEBEETABED —+NLEHK

Association. He was the Chairman of Beijing Informatization & o

Association. He has over 29 years of experience in business

strategy development and business management.
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Mr. LIN Yang
ML

Mr. LIN Yang, aged 50, is the Chief Executive Officer and
an Executive Director of the Group and is responsible for
the overall business management of the Group. He is also
a Director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lin
graduated in 1988 with a Bachelor's Degree in Computing
Communications from the Xidian University and in 2005 with
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business. Mr. Lin is currently the
Vice Chairman of Digital China Information Service Company
Ltd. (listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He was
previously the Executive Vice President and the President of
the Group and was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group in April 2011. He joined the Legend group in
1990 and has over 26 years of management experience
in distribution business. Mr. Lin was awarded the Lifetime
Achievement Award by the IT Channel Elite Panel in 2001 and
recognised as the Most Influential Figure in IT Distribution
of 20 Years in 2005. In 2013, he was also selected as one
of the Leaders of the Year 2012 of the China Information
Industry and Top-10 Annual Icons of the Year 2012 of
Zhongguancun. Besides, Mr. Lin has been appointed as the
Director for IT Channel Profession Council, under the MIIT
(Ministry of Industry and Information Technology).
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Mr. WANG Xinhui
EHEAEE

Mr. WANG Xinhui, aged 42, joined the Company in 2000, is
the President and Executive Director of the Company. He is
also the President of Financial Service Group and a Director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Wang joined
the Legend Group upon graduation from Jiangxi University
of Finance & Economics in 1998. He has served several
roles at the Group, namely, the Vice President, President of
Financial Service Strategy Unit, Head of Finance Office and
Deputy General Manager of Finance Department. Mr. Wang
has extensive experience in financing, treasury operations
and finance management. Mr. Wang currently serves as the
Vice Chairman of the First Committee of the Internet Finance
Committee of the Internet Society of China.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

BAFHTES

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis
EXREE

Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis, aged 52, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company. He holds a Master’s Degree in
Management conferred by Guangzhou Jinan University, the People’s
Republic of China. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom, the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and The Society of
Chinese Accountants and Auditors, and a Certified Tax Advisor of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) and has over 29 years of experience in auditing, taxation,
corporate internal control and governance, acquisition and financial
advisory, corporate restructuring and liquidation, family trust and
wealth management. Mr. Wong joined the Company in August 2006.
Previously, Mr. Wong worked for KPMG, an international accounting
firm, for 6 years and the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company
Limited for 2 years. Mr. Wong has the appropriate professional
qualifications, accounting and related financial management expertise
as required under Rule 3.10 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Wong is currently an Independent Non-executive Director, the
Chairman of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Nomination Committee of China Oriental
Group Company Limited (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited); an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee of Wai Kee
Holdings Limited, Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited
and Greenheart Group Limited (all listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited); an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of the Strategy and Investment Committee
of GCL-Poly Energy Holdings Limited (listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited); an Independent Non-executive
Director, the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee of Hilong Holding Limited (listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited); and Independent
Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the Audit Committee of
Kunming Dianchi Water Treatment Co., Ltd., (to be subsequently listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
6 April 2017). Mr. Wong is the Managing Director of Union Alpha
C.P.A. Limited and a Director of Union Alpha CAAP Certified Public
Accountants Limited, both being professional accounting firms, and
a Founding Director and member of Francis M C Wong Charitable
Foundation Limited, a charitable institution.
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Ms. NI Hong (Hope)
{7 8T /N 1R

Ms. NI Hong (Hope), aged 44, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company. Ms. Ni received her
J.D. Degree from the University of Pennsylvania Law
School and her Bachelor’'s Degree in Applied Economics
and Business Management from Cornell University. Ms. Ni
joined the Company in September 2010. Currently, Ms. Ni
is an Executive Director and the Chief Investment Officer
of Cogobuy Group (listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Ms. Ni has been the
Chairman of Inspire Capital since 20039. From August 2004
to January 2008, Ms. Ni served as the Chief Financial
Officer and Director for Viewtran Group, Inc. (“Viewtran”),
and subsequently served as its Vice Chairman until early
2008. Prior to joining Viewtran, Ms. Ni spent six years as a
Practicing Attorney at Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher & Flom
LLP in New York and Hong Kong, specializing in corporate
finance. Prior to that, Ms. Ni worked at Merrill Lynch’s
investment banking division in New York.

Ms. Ni is currently serving as an Independent Director and
acting as the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as
a member of the Compensation and Nomination Committee
at JA Solar Holdings, Co. Ltd., a NASDAQG-listed company
(NASDAQ: JASO) and an Independent Director, the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Compensation
Committee of ATA Inc., a NASDAQ-listed company (NASDAQ:
ATAI). Ms. Ni is a Director of ATA Online (Beijing) Education
Technology Co., Ltd. (listed on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations System of China (also known as the New
Third Board)). Ms. Ni is also an Independent Director at
KongZhong Corporation, a NASDAG-listed company (NASDAQ:
KZ).
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Dr. LIU Yun, John
B htEx

Dr. LIU Yun, John, aged 53, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 25 March 2014.
Dr. Liu currently is the Vice President and Chief Operating
Officer of Wanda Internet Technology Group. He was an
Independent Non-Executive Director of ARM Holdings Plc.
(listed on the London Stock Exchange) from December
2014 to September 2016. He was also a Senior Vice
President of Greater China Field Division of Conservation
International from June 2016 to September 2016. He was
the Chief Business Officer of Qihoo 360 Technology Co.
Ltd. from January 2014 to August 2015. Prior to that, he
held senior positions in various renowned companies in the
communication or networking or software arena as follows:
Corporate Vice President and Head of Greater China of
Google Inc. from 2008 to 2013; Chief Executive Officer,
China Operations of SK Telecom Co., Ltd. from 2002 to
2007; General Manager, Greater China of FreeMarkets
Inc. from 2000 to 2002; Chief Executive Officer, China
Operations of SITA Communication from 1999 to 2000;
General Manager, Telecommunication Group of The Lion
Group from 1997 to 1999 and Country Director, Greater
China of Singapore Telecommunications Limited from 1994
to 1997.

Dr. Liu graduated from Beijing Normal University with a
Bachelor's Degree in Mathematics in 1983 and obtained
his Ph.D in Telecommunications Network Management from
Technical University of Denmark in 1997. In 2011, Dr. Liu
undertook a Senior Executive Program of Harvard Business
School.
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Ms. YAN Xiaoyan
BB R

Ms. YAN Xiaoyan, aged 65, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 27 May 2014. Ms. Yan has served in the
financial sector for about 40 years. She has taken up
senior positions at The People’s Bank of China and Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China and served as a Director
and a Vice President of Bank of Beijing (listed on The
Shanghai Stock Exchange) since 19896 and appointed as the
President and the Vice Chairperson since 2002 and 2010
respectively. Ms. Yan was also the President of the B6th
Executive Committee of Beijing Banking Association. She was
also the Chairperson of Bank of Beijing Consumer Finance
Company, an Advisor to The People’s Government of Beijing
Municipality, the Vice President of the Listed Companies
Association of Beijing, the Assistant Secretary General of
the China Volunteer Service Federation and the Vice Director
General and Secretary General of the China Volunteer Service
Foundation. Ms. Yan is a female financial entrepreneur with
outstanding acumen and leadership rarely seen in the banking
sector.

Ms. Yan is a senior economist, holding a Master’'s Degree
in Economics from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics and a Master’s Degree in Management from
Xiamen University. She is a tutor to graduate students
and visiting professor at the Central University of Finance
and Economics, a school-level part-time professor at Xian
Jiaotong University and an instructor at the post-doctorate
research station of Bank of Beijing.
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Prof. LAl Daniel
HSEBEHE

Prof. LAl Daniel, B85 Jp, aged 70, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company with
effect from 15 October 2015. He is a seasoned Information
Technology professional with over 40 vyears' experience
in Hong Kong, Mainland, and Australia. He is a graduate
of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (“PolyU”) and
Griffith University with a Master’s Degree in Technology
Management. He is a Distinguished Fellow of Hong Kong
Computer Society, a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institution
of Engineers, and a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute of
Directors.

Prof. Lai is a Director of Digital Technology and Consultancy
Company Limited and Pearl River Delta IT Cooperation and
Exchange Centre. He has been appointed as Professor of
Practice (Computing) in the Department of Computing, PolyU
for the period of 19 September 2015 to 18 September
2017. He was also the Interim Vice President (Administration)
of PolyU from 189 March 2015 until 18 September 2015.
Prof. Lai was the Government Chief Information Officer
of the Hong Kong SAR Government (the “Government”)
from January 2012 to January 2015. Prior to joining
the Government, Prof. Lai was the Head of Information
Technology (“IT”) at MTR Corporation Limited from 1999 to
2011 and held senior managerial positions in IT field at The
Hong Kong Jockey Club in Hong Kong and Australia between
1978 and 1999.
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Prof. Lai was an Independent Non-executive Director of
Tradelink Electronic Commerce Limited (listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) from 20
May 2011 to 1 January 2012. He was also a Director and
an Alternate Director of Hong Kong Cyberport Management
Company Limited (wholly-owned by the Government)
respectively, and a Director of Hong Kong Internet
Registration Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Domain Name
Registration Company Limited, E-Business Solutions Limited,
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency, MTR Information
Solutions Company Limited, PolyU Research Limited, PolyU
Enterprise Plus Limited, PolyU Enterprise Limited, and PolyU
Technology and Consultancy Company Limited.

Prof. Lai contributed significantly in promoting the application
of IT in Hong Kong and the region. He has held many positions
in public services and higher education institutions including
President of Hong Kong Computer Society, President of
Asian Pacific Information and Communications Technology
Confederation, Chairman of PolyU’'s Department of Computing
Advisory Committee, Chairman of Computer Science
Departmental Advisory Committee of City University of Hong
Kong, and also Adjunct Professor of the Graduate University
of Chinese Academy of Sciences and the Zhongshan Institute
of the University of Electronic Science and Technology of
China.

In recognition of his contribution to the development and
promotion of IT, Prof. Lai was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia
Star in 2004. He was appointed a Justice of Peace in 2001.
He has received numerous local, regional and international
awards for his achievements.
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Company Secretary
NAME

Mr. WONG Chi Keung
IE®ELE

Mr. WONG Chi Keung, aged 50, is the Company Secretary
of the Company. Mr. WONG is mainly responsible for the
financial reporting and listing issues of the Group. Mr.
Wong graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor’s Degree in Social Sciences and is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and an associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wong is currently a Non-executive
Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of HC International, Inc. (listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). Previously, Mr. Wong
worked for Ernst & Young, an international accounting firm,
for 6 years. Mr. Wong has over 27 years of experience in
financial management and corporate administration.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERAHE

The Group is committed to promote the highest standards
of corporate governance so as to enhance its transparency,
accountability and corporate value to the shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based
on the principles, code provisions and certain recommended
best practices set out in the “Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report” (the “Code”) and
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”).

During the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Reporting
Period”), the Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the Code throughout the Reporting Period, except
the following deviations from certain code provisions with
considered reasons as given below:

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

All of the Non-executive Directors of the Company were not
appointed for any specific term. Since all Directors (save for
the Chairman of the Board or the Managing Director) are
subject to retirement by rotation at each annual general
meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the
“Bye-Laws”) and shall be eligible for re-election. The Board
considers that the retirement of Directors by rotation at
each annual general meeting in accordance with the Bye-
Laws has given the shareholders of the Company the right
to approve the continuation of the service of the Directors.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-Laws, at each annual general meeting one-
third of the Directors for the time being or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest to one-
third shall retire from office, the Chairman of the Board or
the Managing Director shall not, whilst holding such office, be
subject to retirement by rotation. Therefore, Mr. GUO Wei,
the Chairman of the Board, shall not be subject to retirement
by rotation. Given the existing number of Directors of the
Company, not less than one-third of the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at each annual general meeting, by
which each Director (other than the Chairman of the Board)
will retire by rotation once every three years at the minimum.
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Code Provision A.5.1 stipulates that company should
establish a nomination committee which is chaired by the
chairman of the board or an independent non-executive
director and comprises a majority of independent non-
executive directors.

The Company does not establish a Nomination Committee
at present. The Company considers that the setting up of a
Nomination Committee may not be necessary as the Board
has the power from time to time and at any time to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board according to the Bye-Laws, therefore,
the Board has been able to assume the responsibilities of
a Nomination Committee. The Board will identify and assess
whether the candidate has the balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Company and suitably qualified to become
board members.

Code Provision D.1.4 stipulates that directors should
clearly understand delegation arrangements in place.
Company should have formal letters of appointment for
directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their
appointment.

The Company has not entered into any written letters
of appointment with its Non-executive Director or any
Independent Non-executive Directors. However, the Board
recognizes that (i) the relevant Directors have already been
subject to the laws and regulations applicable to directors
of a company listed on the Stock Exchange, including the
Listing Rules as well as the fiduciary duties to act in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders; (ii) all
of them are well established in their professions and have
held directorships in other listed companies; and (iii) the
current arrangement has been adopted by the Company for
years and has proved to be effective. Therefore, the Board
considers that the relevant Directors are able to carry out
their duties in a responsible and effective manner under the
current arrangement.

In order to reduce the administrative burden of the Group
and allow the Group to devote more of resources towards the
development of its business, the Board, on 29 March 2016,
resolved not to follow the recommended best practices set
out in Code Provision C.1.6 by publishing quarterly financial
results. Since then, not to continue such practices for the
first three-month and nine-month periods of each financial
years and announced the reasons on the same date in
accordance with the Code Provision C.1.7.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES EE#TE&#xHNELESA

TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities RATIEEHM ETARMEETATE 2 &
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in MBETAEFETEFRSHNZEESTR
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its (MBEEFRANDIERARAIEZHEITE &
code of conduct for Directors’ securities transactions. Having RPZITH/TH - EARFREEED
made specific enquiry with the Directors, all of the Directors BREsnE 2REFHER  BER
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard HEPN—BEETRETAREZE
as set out in the Model Code throughout the Reporting Pl

Period. %

;S
BOARD OF DIRECTORS BEETS <
Composition 4 B

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the Board comprised REMERR EEgH-REFEK
seven Directors, including two Executive Directors and five EPEEMERTESRARE T IS
Independent Non-executive Directors. During the Reporting TEEZ - PRWMEBRAN - —BHTEER
Period, an Executive Director and a Non-executive Director — BT EEHE - UR—EBE LI
were resigned and an Independent Non-executive Director WTEFEF RZTE—LF—HA+=
was retired. An additional Executive Director was appointed A BINLZET—BHITES - LEARQ

MBI RE R AT

with effective from 12 January 2017. To the best knowledge BIFTANZE - EH G R M UL I B (E o] BF ".'.Lf,{%_
of the Company, the Board members have no financial, BoEK KESEMEKRMEHZH _—
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with & o %ﬂlﬁ
each other.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out under the BEBZEARENAFREAIEZE E52
heading “Directors and Company Secretary” on pages 43 to BEEERIEERARIME]-
52 of this annual report.

Role and Function AR

The Board takes responsibility for the formulation of the EXEgRENEAEE CBEBRE MU
overall strategy and the leadership and control of the Group ~ N4EEREEAREE  flonAEEZ K
such as the Group’s long term objectives and strategies, RABERERE MAEAEBEZLERE
the approval of the Group’s corporate and capital structure, WERE - UBRRREE - AEEER
financial reporting and controls, internal controls and FERER BEBREH BRRNES -
risk management, material contracts, communication EEEXERHEMETEE -BEERHE
with the shareholders, the Board membership and other HMWEZSRERBABZHFH SEFZ
appointments, remuneration of Directors and other key BE@ZERENDCESAZFER -
senior management, delegation of authority to Board

committees and corporate governance matters.

During the Reporting Period, two general meetings were RBERA ERITMARREAE [
held, the Board held four regular Board meetings at KR EHPHEETLLH(AHEZTE X))
approximately quarterly intervals and four ad hoc Board RNREZRRFIEE EFHIFR S
meetings where the Directors attended the Board meetings NEFEAFTALFESTE SR -
either in person or by means of electronic communication.
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Appointments and Re-election

The Board is empowered under the Bye-Laws to appoint
any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board. Only the qualified candidates
will be proposed to the Board for consideration and the
selection criteria are mainly based on the assessment of
their professional qualifications, experience and their possible
contribution to the Group.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed five Independent Non-executive Directors,
one of whom has appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made
an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors meet the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers that they are independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the
Group are segregated, which are held by Mr. GUO Wei
and Mr. LIN Yang respectively. Mr. GUO is responsible for
the strategic development and management of the Group
whereas Mr. LIN is responsible for the overall business
management of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 with specific
written terms of reference. The Audit Committee comprises
three members and all of them are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Audit Committee is currently
chaired by Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis (who possesses
the appropriate professional qualification or accounting or
related financial management expertise), with Ms. NI Hong
(Hope) and Prof. LAl Daniel, B85, s» as members.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter
retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from the close of the annual general meeting (the “AGM”)
of the Company held on 30 June 2016. As a result of his
retirement, Mr. ONG also ceased to act as a member of
the Audit Committee of the Company with effect from the
close of the AGM. Following the retirement of Mr. ONG, the
Audit Committee only comprises two members, the number
of which fell below the minimum number required under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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Prof. LAl Daniel, B85, Jr, an existing Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee of the Company with effect
from 26 September 2016. Following the appointment of
Prof. LAl as a member of the Audit Committee, the Company
has fully complied with the requirement of Rules 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

To comply with the amendment to the Code Provision C.3.3
with effect from 1 January 2016, an amended Terms of
Reference for Audit Committee was approved and adopted
by the Board on 31 December 2015 and with effect from
1 January 2016. The latest Terms of Reference for Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company respectively.

Under the amended Terms of Reference for Audit Committee,
the Audit Committee is responsible for, among others, the
following:

i. monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of
the Group;

ii. reviewing the Group’s financial controls, risk

management and internal control systems;

iii.  reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies
and practices;

iv.  reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal audit function and ensuring
coordination between the internal and external auditor;
and

V. performing the Group’s corporate governance function
delegated by the Board.

Corporate Governance Function

Under the Terms of Reference for Audit Committee now in
place, the Audit Committee has been delegated by the Board
to perform the following corporate governance function:

i. to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board;

il. to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;
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iii. to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

iv.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and

V. to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
the disclosure in this Report as set out under Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two
regular meetings where the members attended either in
person or by means of electronic communication.

For the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee has reviewed
with senior management and the Auditor of the Company
their respective audit findings, the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, legal and regulatory
compliance, and discussed auditing, internal control, risk
management and financial reporting matters. The Board has,
through the Audit Committee, conducted regular reviews on
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group
and discussed matters related to corporate governance
function during the Reporting Period.

The Audit Committee has no disagreement with the Board
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the Auditor of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31
August 2006 with specific written terms of reference. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three members and
all of them are Independent Non-executive Directors. The
Remuneration Committee is currently chaired by Dr. LIU Yun,
John, with Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis and Prof. LAl
Daniel, B8S, J° as members.

During the Reporting Period, Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter
retired as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from the close of the AGM of the Company held on 30 June
2016. As a result of his retirement, Mr. Ong also ceased to
act as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee of the
Company with effect from the close of the AGM. Following the
retirement of Mr. ONG, (i) Dr. LIU Yun, John was appointed
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and (ii)
Prof. LAl Daniel, B85, s was appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee, both with effect from the close
of the AGM.
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Mr. Andrew Y. Yan resigned as a Non-executive Director of
the Company with effect from 1 July 2016. As a result of
his resignation, Mr. Yan also ceased to be a member of the
Remuneration Committee of the Company with effect from
the same date.

The latest Terms of Reference for Remuneration Committee
is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for,
others, the following:

among

i. making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’
and senior management’s remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; and

ii. making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, which includes benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments and on the
remuneration of Non-executive Director.

During the Reporting Period, no meeting of Remuneration
Committee has been held as there have been no material
changes in the remuneration structure for the directors and
senior management during the year of 2016.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments for the Reporting Period
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTOR'S ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT
MEETINGS

The attendance of each Director at the following meetings
during the Reporting Period is set out below:

ESHF TR

RBEHAR SEEHFATERZC
SREINT -

Board members Committee members Number of meetings attended/held
f £3-929-1 ZEEME HE/STEENY
Annual Special
Audit  Remuneration Audit  Remuneration General General
Committee Committee Board Meeting Committee Committee ~ Meeting ~ Meeting
E% M B W RREFE BRREH
ZE% ZE® is ZE® ZE® bS S -4
Regular Ad Hoc
EH Lzl
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. GUD Wei (Chairman) BAEEZE) - - 4/4 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11
THER TEA
Mr. LIN Yang (Chief Executive Officer) WEEE(BEHTE) - - 4/4 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11
TEm TER
Mr. WANG Xinhui (President] IHBEL(ER) - - N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed as Director on (R=ZF—+F-4 [Note 1) (Note 1) TEA TEE  (Note 1) (Note 1)
12 January 2017) ToAREFREE) @R T@ER TER T@ER
(Wit (W) (Wit1) (W)
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkGTES
Mr. WONG Man Chung Francis ENFRE Chairman Member 4/4 3/4 2/2 0/0 0/1 11
k3 K&
Ms. NI Hong (Hope) R4/ Member - 4/4 3/4 2/2 N/A 1 0/1
KE TEA
Dr. LIU Yun, John (appointed as Chairman of ~ Bl xE+(R=F—A#& - Chairman 4/4 3/4 N/A 0/0 0/1 0/1
Remuneration Committee on NAZ+AEEE ES THEB [Note 2)
30 June 2016) AHENZERELRE) (#2)
Ms. YAN Xiaoyan BRELL - - 3/4 3/4 N/A N/A 0/1 0/1
TEA TER
Prof. LAl Daniel, 8BS, JP (appointed as EHEAR  BRS, JP Member Member 4/4 4/4 0/0 0/0 1/1 0/1
member of Remuneration Committee (R-F-NENA=FA RE K& [Note 3) [Note 2)
on 30 June 2016 and member of Audit BEFRHENESE (#1323 (H22)
Committee on 26 September 2016) RERKR=F-NE
NAZTNREZEF
EELEREME)

Notes: Bt et -

1. As Mr. WANG Xinhui was appointed as an Executive Director of the 1. HREFEBEERR-_Z—EF—A+=H
Company on 12 January 2017, which is after the Reporting Period, BEEARRRTRTES  MWENBESHR
no attendance was recorded. XM EFELE -

2. Dr. LIU Yun, John and Prof. LAl Daniel, B85S, JP were appointed as the 2. FRBLERBHEHK 865 PRIVBREH
chairman and member of Remuneration Committee part way during NHGEEZERTMNEEGERRKE - i)
the Reporting Period, their attendances were stated by reference to Bz HBEXEDRFRAETHRHETOFHEZE
the number of the Remuneration Committee Meeting held during their EgHRHUAGE -
tenure.

3. Prof. LAl Daniel, B8S, JP was appointed as a member of the Audit 3. MBIHE R - BBS, PRNBEH NP RES
Committee of the Company part way during the Reporting Period, EREZEZEGNKE  MBRZEREEDRE
his attendance was stated by reference to the number of the Audit EEREBRITNEXZEeSAMENE -
Committee Meeting held during his tenure.

4, No Remuneration Committee Meeting was held during the Reporting 4. RBEHRNIBRBOTTHEESSH -

Period.



5. Mr. YAN Guorong resigned as an Executive Director and President of
the Company on 8 March 2016. Mr. YAN'’s attendance at the meeting
during the Reporting Period and by reference to the number of the
relevant meeting held during his tenure was as follow: Ad hoc Board
Meeting (0/1).

6. Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter retired as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company and ceased to act as the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee with
effect from the close of the 2016 Annual General Meeting held on 30
June 2016. Mr. ONG’s attendance at the respective meetings during
the Reporting Period and by reference to the number of the relevant
meetings held during his tenure were as follows: Regular Board
Meeting (0/2), Ad hoc Board Meeting (2/4), Annual General Meeting
(0/1), Audit Committee Meeting (0/1) and Remuneration Committee
Meeting (0/0).

7. Mr. Andrew Y. YAN resigned as an Non-executive Director of the
Company on 1 July 2016 and also ceased to be a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. YAN’s attendance at the respective
meetings during the Reporting Period and by reference to the number
of the relevant meetings held during his tenure were as follows:
Regular Board Meeting (1/2), Ad hoc Board Meeting (2/4) and Annual
General Meeting (0/1).

DIRECTOR INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Newly appointed Directors will receive comprehensive
induction on appointment to ensure understanding of the
directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company also organizes and
arranges seminars for and/or provides relevant reading
materials to Directors to help ensure they are apprised of
the roles, functions and duties of being a director of a listed
company and the development of their knowledge on the
regulatory updates whenever necessary or appropriate.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has provided
training materials for all the then Directors to keep them
abreast of the latest development of legal, regulatory and
corporate governance. The Company has received the
records of training from all those Directors.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company is committed to promoting diversity among
the Board and has adopted a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) effective on 20 August 2013. The
Board Diversity Policy outlines the Board's commitment to
fostering a corporate culture that embraces diversity and,
in particular, focuses on its composition.

The Company recognising and embracing the benefits of
having a diverse Board values increasing diversity at Board
level which is perceived to be an essential element in
achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Company. In determining the Board composition that best
suits the Company, a wide spectrum of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnicity and cultural background,
skills, regional and industry experience, professional
experience, length of service and other qualities of directors
will be considered. All Board appointments shall be made on
the basis of meritocracy and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, the diversity of the
Board is shown in the following graphic illustrations. Out
of the seven Directors comprising the Board, two of them
are women. Five of the seven Directors are Independent
Non-executive Directors, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is also
characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of age, cultural and educational background,
professional expertise and skills. The Board endeavours to
steer forward and ensure that the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of aspects appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.
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REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

For the Reporting Period, remuneration to Auditor of
the Company was approximately HK$3,322,000 for audit
services and approximately HK$328,000 for non-audit
services (HK$150,000 on agreed-upon procedures on
interim results and HK$178,000 on review relating to the
financial statements of offering and issuance of Taiwan
Depositary Receipts).

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

Aims and objectives

During 2016, the Group made a series of enhancements
and improvements to risk management and prepared a risk
management report towards the end of the year to give
a summary of the initiatives in 2016 to strengthen risk
management and develop a sound risk management regime
and internal control, as well as to make preliminary plans for
the Group’s risk management and internal control in 2017.

INTERNAL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish and
maintain the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and to review their effectiveness, for the purpose of
safeguarding the investments of shareholders and the assets
of the Group. Such systems are designed to manage, but not
to remove, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
provide reasonable (but not absolute) assurance for freedom
from material misstatements or losses, and manage, but
not eliminate, risks associated with the operating systems
and the risk of material errors in the objectives of the
Group. Such responsibility is primarily performed by the
Audit Committee, which conducts at least once annually, on
behalf of the Board, reviews on whether the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems in respect of risk
handling, financial accounting and reporting are effective on
an ongoing basis, whether its operations are effective and
efficient, and whether pertinent laws and regulations have
been complied with and risk management functions have been
fulfilled. The Audit Committee also monitors risks associated
with the Group’s accounting, internal audit, finance, staff
qualifications and experience, operations and compliance. The
Board also understands its overall responsibility for internal
control, financial control and risk management, and reviews
from time to time its effectiveness in this regard.
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Risk management tasks

Our risk management tasks in 2016 comprised mainly the
formulation and optimization of our risk management system,
the execution of risk assessment tasks, and the formulation
of measures and plans to counter risks.

/. Formulation and optimization of the Company’s risk

management system.

By formulating and optimizing the Group’s risk
management, the risk management department of the
Group has been identified and its duties have been
specified, and a three-tier protection against various
risks in the course of business operation has been put
in place:

) The first line of protection is provided by the
functional and business departments of the Group
at various levels, which carry out specific risk
management tasks in the course of business
transactions;

(' The second line of protection for risks
management is provided by the respective risk
management departments of Business Groups.
Their primary duty is to organize, direct,
coordinate and implement the collection of risk-
related information, risk identification, risk
assessment and measures countering material
risks at the respective Business Groups in
accordance with the requirements of the risk
management system; and

(I} The third line of protection is provided by the
Internal Audit Department of DC Holding, which
supervises and assesses the risk management
tasks.
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In addition, the risk management work process is 0 - 72 2 B B 3R I S AP D AR L B
elucidated in the risk management system to facilitate ERTHERE  EREREIFiE
more effective guidance for risk management work at BRREBIERM -

subsequent stages.

Board of Directors

AFEER

The third line of protection:
Risk supervision department

Supervises and assesses Internal Audit Department
risk management tasks A EpEE =t 2B
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The second line of protection:
Risk management department Respective risk management departments
Drives the implementation of Business Groups

of risk management tasks : o
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The first line of protection:
Risk responsibility department
Carry out specific

risk management tasks
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Il.  Implementation of risk assessment and response = - JERFFIG T (EAIH 77 FE L1 15
measures Vii}
In 2016, the Group commenced a full-scale risk RZEBE-—RFER  AEERRT
assessment exercise. ZEENREBRTR -
() Risk identification: the risk assessment team (=) BEEBEZR:RARTHEBB

conducted detailed analyses of the risk exposures
of each business process and key stage of
the Business Groups by interviewing the senior
management, department managers and key
personnel of DC Holdings and Business Groups. On
the basis of such analyses, a comprehensive and
accurate risk information management database
was built for the Group. Taking into account
the Group’s strategic positioning, the business
characteristics, operating models and business
scope of each segment and initial risk information,
the risk assessment team has identified risks that
might affect the fulfiment of the strategic objectives
of the Group on the basis of the identification,
assessment and control of risks at functional and
business levels. These risks mainly fall under the
five major categories of strategic risks, operational
risks, market risks, financial risks and legal risks.

() Risk assessment: risk assessment comprises
gualitative and quantitative assessments on two
dimensions: the probability of a risk materialising
and the extent of its impact if materialised.
Through questionnaires and quantitative analysis,
the risk assessment team assessed each risk
individually. The result of the assessment indicates
that, in 2016, all risks faced by the Group were
within the category of mid-level risks. There was
no high-level risks of which materialisation would
be highly probable or impact would be material.
In terms of order, the top three risks of the
Group in 2016 were: the risk relating to the
implementation of strategies, the risk of loss of
talent and the competition risk, which involves
mainly three risk categories: strategic risks,
operational risks and market risks.

() Risk-countering: In relation to material risks
assessed, the risk assessment team was
informed, through information collection and
communication, that the relevant Business Units
had either formulated and applied response
strategies and solutions or made preparations to
supplement or update their response strategies
and solutions.
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The major risk-countering strategies and solutions in relation
to three major risk categories are set out as follows:

Risk category

Strategic risks

Operational risks

HYE=ZEEZEE
FEET SRR R BRR F T

PERNFEZRER

Market risks

= B% A B BE & B EERR ™ 5 & B
Specific risk Risk relating to the Risk of loss of talents Competition risk
implementation of strategies
B AR B} BE B I /L BR AT K B BREER
Risk Lack of appropriate breakdown, Inappropriate planning Failure to foresee changes in

description

2, B # 3t

Countering
measures

[ B

delegation, promulgation,
supervision and appraisal in
respect of overall strategies
formulated, resulting in
inconsistencies between the
targets and performance
evaluation methodologies for
business flows on the one hand
and overall business objectives and
strategies on the other, thereby
preventing the implementation
of strategies in actual modules
of business operation and the
eventual realisation of the
strategies.
AHEEH ENERBKETEE
WO TF TE EEER &
%%%ﬁ%%ﬁ%&%ﬁ%%ﬁ%
CEBEEBEEREBE A%
ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁwﬂi“*ﬂm¥%%
WEAREBERD  BRKEEX
B

Stringent implementation of
systems and processes, such as
the breakdown and delegation of
strategic objectives, planning and
communication, and regular review
meetings, including implementation
within the KPI appraisal regime, in
order to provide full support for
the implementation of strategic
objectives; issue of warnings for
contingencies, whereby probable
significant strategic deviations
and difficulties in implementation
were reported by heads of the
strategic business units to
relevant officers and seminars
were held as necessary to enable
strategic coordination; thereby
ensuring smooth implementation
of strategies through systems and
processes on the one hand and
organisation on the other.
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and adjustment of career
advancement paths, failure
to develop a reasonable and
effective talent training regime
and unreasonable terms of the
incentive regime, resulting in the
loss of talents on failure to fulfill
their career aspirations.

BAS LT RBREABRTRE -
RETZEBRB BN AT EHES
BERATRIEE  BHTE)
RARBDATBEZERFFR W
BAARENER

Enhancement of control over key
personnel risks: the Company
intended to establish a key
personnel management institute
to train up key personnel who
identify with the Company’s

culture and increase the
provision of back-up talents;
meanwhile, the incentive

policy was enriched to ensure
that income is consistent
with responsibility, thereby
protecting key personnel
as important assets of the
Company.
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the competitive landscape of
the market, conduct accurate
analysis of competitors’ behaviour
and adopt appropriate response
measures in a timely manner,
which might result in the
Company’s disadvantaged position
in market competition, reduction
in market shares and difficulty in
realisation of business targets.
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Enhancing research and scanning
of industry trends to form valuable
reports for the assistance of
business decision making; while
continuing to inform ourselves

of changes in the market
and customers in a timely
manner by analysing financial

indicators, customer satisfaction
indicators and new customer
pipeline management, in order
to formulate and make timely
adjustments to our strategy for
competition.
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In summary, the Group made improvements in the
risk control mechanism, risk management appraisal
and information-based risk management in 2016.
The fostering of risk management awareness as
an aspect of corporate culture was present in our
risk management initiatives throughout the vyear,
effectively enhancing knowledge and emphasis on risk
management on the part of the Group’s management
and employees. The 2016 risk management report has
given an account of the processes, methodologies and
implementation status of risk management initiatives
and a summary of the achievements for the year, and
has set out preliminary planning for risk management
in the coming year based on implementation during the
year under review.

In 2017, the Group will continue to improve its risk
management regime and formulate plans based on the
results of assessment of the risks in 2016. Strategic
management control, key personnel risk control and
control over core businesses of innovative sectors will
represent some of the key points in the optimisation
of strategies and solutions. On this basis, we will
continue to improve and implement the construction
of the internal control and management regime, drive
adjustments in the organisational structure based on
business requirements and strengthen improvements
to existing process systems and the development of
certain deficient processes and systems, in order to
ensure the stable operation of our risk management
regime and internal control and management regime.

Based on the findings of the review described above,
the Board confirms, and the management has also
confirmed to the Board, that the risk management and
internal control system of the Group (in all material
aspects including financial control, operational control
and compliance contral) is efficient and adequate, and
has been in compliance with the provisions on risk
management and internal control contained in the
“Corporate Governance Code” through the year and as
at the date of this report.
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Internal Audit

The Group has an Internal Audit Department, which
is responsible for the internal audit of the Group,
independent assessment of risks, and internal control
procedures and system, and reports its findings, with
recommendations, to the Audit Committee on a half-
yearly basis.

The Internal Audit Department will assess the risks to
which the Group is exposed, and formulate an audit plan
on that basis annually, so as to ensure that the internal
audit covers all areas of high risks. The audit plan will
be submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The
scope of audit review is determined based on the risk
assessment results. Special reviews will be conducted
on matters which are of concern to the management
or the Audit Committee.

Monitoring Procedures

The Board establishes and maintains a good internal
control system through the following principal
procedures:

(1) Establishing a reasonable and effective
organization structure with clear functions,
responsibilities and authority;

(2) Laying down stringent procedures for budget
preparation and budget management; formulating
business plans and financial budgets annually;
rationally adjusting the organisation structure
based on business planning; ensuring the effective
operation of the organisation; reviewing the
implementation of budgets and making reasonable
adjustment based on the latest conditions;

(3) The Internal Audit Department — independently
assessing the comprehensibility and effectiveness
of the monitoring of principal business, reporting
its principal findings, with recommendations, to
the Audit Committee on a half-yearly basis; and

(4) The Auditor — making a “Management Proposal”
in its audit of annual results, recommending
ways to address some internal management
areas which are correspondingly weak; the
management making serious reviews, and making
and submitting improvement proposals to the
Audit Committee.
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Annual assessment of internal control

During the reporting period, the internal audit
department adopted a risk benchmarking approach
focused on key processes and controls and reported
the findings of internal audit to the Audit Committee on
a semi-annual basis. Through the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors reviewed the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system. The internal control
system covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, risk management
functions and the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budgets in relation to the accounting and financial
reporting functions of the Group. During 2016, the
internal audit Department did not identify any significant
deficiency in internal contraol.

Inside Information

The Company’s management assesses the likely impact
of any unexpected and significant event that may impact
the price of the Shares or their trading volume and
decides whether the relevant information is considered
inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon
as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 13.09 and
13.10 of the Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. The Board is
responsible for approving and authorizing the Directors
to issue certain announcements and/or circulars.

DIRECTORS’® AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group on a going concern basis in
accordance with the statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards.

The statement of the Auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on
pages 107 to 116 of this annual report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to maintaining an on-going dialogue
with Shareholders and the investment community.
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One of the principal channels of communication with the
Shareholders is the annual general meeting and all corporate
communications of the Company, including but not limited
to interim reports, annual reports, notices of meeting,
announcements, circulars and other relevant Company’s
information are available on the Company's website
www.dcholdings.com.hk.

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy to handle enquiries put to the Board.

The Company believes that communicating with Shareholders
through its website is an efficient way of delivering
information in a timely and convenient manner. Information
on the Company’s website will be continuously reviewed
and updated to ensure that information is current, or
appropriately dated and archived.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company recognises the rights of Shareholders and
encourages Shareholders to participate in general meetings
or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings for
and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the meeting.
The general meeting provides an important opportunity
for Shareholders to express their view to the Board and
management and to exercise Shareholders’ rights. Under
the Bye-Laws, Shareholders have the rights to convene a
special general meeting and put forward agenda items for
consideration by Shareholders. The latest Bye-Laws has been
uploaded onto the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange respectively.

Shareholders are encouraged to use their attendance
at meetings to ask questions about or comment on the
results, operations, strategy, corporate governance and/or
management of the Group. The Board members, in particular,
either the Chairmen or members of the Board committees,
appropriate management executives, external auditor and
legal advisers shall be available at general meetings to
answer questions from Shareholders.
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Digital China Holdings Limited (“DC Holdings” or the
“Group”) was incorporated in 2000 by way of a spin-off
from the former Legend Group and listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in 2001 (Stock Code: 00861.HK). At DC Holdings, we
seek technologically-driven innovations in work and daily
life as part of our broader scheme to build a digitalised
China, as well as the provision of advanced and practical
IT applications to users, in tandem with our mission of
benefiting the nation with business achievements.

In more than one decade since its incorporation, DC
Holdings has adapted its business model on several
occasions in response to developments in the market,
in a persistent effort to fulfill its mission and vision
pertaining to the “Digitalised China”. We were principally
engaged in the distribution of IT products at the
time when we were listed. Subsequently our focus
had been shifted to the systems integration business
underpinned mainly by the provision of IT solutions,
before taking yet another turn to Big Data and Cloud
Computing operations built around the Sm@rt City. By
now, DC Holdings has firmly established itself as China’s
premium brand in Sm@rt City, leading the market in
terms of technology, theory and implementation and
providing comprehensive support and services to the
nation’s initiatives in industrialisation, informatisation,
urbanisation and agricultural modernisation. DC
Holdings and its subsidiaries run operations in more
than 20 locations in China with the support of 10,556
employees as at 31 December 2016.

In 2016, DC Holdings completed the spin-off of its
traditional distribution business to become a pure
play in innovative IT, in a proactive change to seize
opportunities presented by the market trend of
“Internet+”. Going forward, DC Holdings will make
focused efforts to develop a comprehensive, strategic
business network engaged in sectors commanding
advanced technologies and high added value, such as
Sme@rt City, precision medicine, internet agriculture,
internet manufacturing, internet logistics and internet
financial services, building upon its extensive coverage
of industrial sectors and its core Cloud Computing and
Big Data operations. We intend to create a corporation
befitting the ecosphere of the era of smart operations
and grow into a leading Big Data service provider in
China.
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As an important promoter of the development of Sm@rt
City in China, as well as a leading enterprise in the
IT service sector, we are well aware of the profound
impact that DC Holdings has on the nation and her
people. That's why we always seek long-term value
for the community and the natural environment in the
process of our ongoing innovation. As the employer
of some of China’s very best talents in advanced
technologies, we must ensure safety, health and
development opportunities for our employees. As a
corporate citizen, we devoted our efforts to education
for the younger generation, aid for the underprivileged
and the drive for social progress in our commitment
to the cause of charity.

This first environmental, social and governance
report of the Group, prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide®
issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
in 2015, is aimed at explaining our policies, work and
deliverables achieved during the year in environmental,
social and governance matters to our stakeholders.
The Group has identified relevant key performance
indicators and disclosers based on its strategies and
market trends in accordance with the materiality
principle. Unless otherwise stated, details contained in
this report pertain to all subsidiaries of DC Holdings.

INVOLVING STAKEHOLDERS

DC Holdings persists in maintaining sound
communications with stakeholders through different
channels to achieve mutual understanding. The views
of stakeholders provide an important reference that
helps us to fulfill our social responsibility diligently and
implement solid corporate governance. Our ability to
pursue sustainable development will be enhanced as a
result.

Investors/shareholders

We communicate with our investors and shareholders
primarily through the following to understand their
views on the Company’s development and to inform
them about the future developments of the Company:

o Annual general meetings

° Annual reports, financial statements and
announcements

° Our company website
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Customers and the public

We communicate with our customers primarily through
the following to understand how they view and rate
the Company’s products and services and to explain
the Company’s commitment in matters such as quality
assurance for products and services and customer
information security:

° Customer service hotline
° Customer opinion survey
° Wechat account

Staff

We communicate with our employees primarily
through the following to understand their views on
the Company’s policies on staff benefits and work
environment, to give them a better understanding of
the Company’s developments, and to foster harmony at
work:

o Staff training

o Staff recreational and sporting activities
o Internal email system

o Intranet of the Company

o Staff performance evaluation

Community

We communicate with the communities where we
operate primarily through the following to understand
their views on our operations in such communities
and to ensure that such operations are able to create
positive effects on the communities:

° Our company website
o Wechat account
° Media reports
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ENVIRONMENT

We at DC Holdings are clearly aware of the challenges
facing the natural environment of which humanity is a
part. We are committed to environmental protection
and we implement a stringent policy for environmental
protection. We undertake to reduce the environmental
impact of our business operations and comply strictly
with pertinent local laws and regulations, in order
to lead by example in the practice of environmental
protection. We affect the environment primarily
through the consumption of power and fuel, as well as
carbon emission arising indirectly from the business
trips of our staff.

To fulfil the environmental responsibilities of DC
Holdings, we pledge to:

o Comply strictly with national and relevant local
laws and regulations;
o Establish and improve our internal policy for

environmental protection and system for
environmental supervision and management;

° Protect natural resources, assess the potential
environmental risk and impact of our commercial
activities, and reduce the negative environmental
impact of our operations in a systematic manner;

° Provide employees with training in legal and other
knowledge pertaining to environmental protection;
o Keep record of and monitor greenhouse gas

emission generated in our business operations
and make plans to reduce such emissions in
relative terms on a year-on-year basis;

o To sort and separate wastes generated in
the production and operation of the Company,
reduce the generation of wastes and increase
the percentage of recycling of materials (such
as consumable materials for production and
packaging);

o To reduce energy consumption at venues of
operation through effective measures.
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() BAER

() Power consumption

(mn

DC Holdings and its subsidiaries own or lease
more than 60 offices, 80 warehouses and a
large-scale data centre in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, consuming 13,525 MWh of electricity
each year involving carbon emission of 13,396
tonnes.

Fuel consumption

DC Holdings owns a large logistic truck fleet that
enables us to provide quality logistics services to
our customers. Some offices also own limousines
for use by senior management. During the year,
the vehicle fleet of DC Holdings consumed 2,778
MWh of electricity involving carbon emission of
856 tonnes.

Note:

The data relating to carbon emission is estimated by reference
to the “Greenhouse Gas Protocol — Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development. The conversion factors for carbon emission
involved in electricity consumption are based on the “2015
Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in China”
issued by the Division on Climate Change under the National
Development and Reform Commission. The conversion factors
for carbon emission involved in fuel consumption are based
on applicable coefficients set out in the “2006 IPCC (Inter-
governmental Panel on Climate Change) Guidelines for National
Greenhouse Gas Inventories”.
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IV. EMPLOYMENT - & 1%
The ongoing success of DC Holdings would not have MR EEERGFHENKY - —
been possible without the expertise and dedication of BEZEZBETMHEMB I ERBS
its 10,000-strong staff team. We have persisted in RATERER - PR BRUABEX
the implementation of a staff appointment and incentive b BB R A BB SEEN ) -
regime governed by our corporate culture. In other MEERK—E T - RS8R
words, we would like to create an environment that Z BN B A 48 AR R 28 2K ) [R] B
attracts high-calibre people to join us at DC Holdings. Ao —EEANARTERZHEE
A great company requires the support of inspired BEARIE - 1IN IE IR B R 2R
people in large numbers. The future of DC Holdings HIERS|IBEEMMEXENER -
will be focused on the development of the Sme@rt EERANEER FTEEZFEA
City business. This is a great business requiring the BMA e BRI RFERARBKT—E
participation of more young people. We provide a stage AR BREBERRASENES &
on which young men and women can bring their skills EEEZEARAKMEBLETNE
and talents into full play. We hope that this stage B BEEERRMMA—EEXE
will help our employees to fulfill their dreams, and we Bl FHhE MR -
believe these employees will grow to play an enormous
part in the “Digitalised China”.

Wi,

\IF@,
[

~N
o]
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As one of the “Best Corporate Employers” named by ERRETELN [ HEREERE
CCTV, we has been making strong efforts to enhance 2= BMPBHERA-—SZER
happiness for more than 10,000 families by helping FERERIEH - TEHERESEH
employees maintain a balanced life between work and JEZ IS F & o BRFMIN - 1IN =
family. In addition to annual leaves, employees of DC WKET=BER ER Z=RE
Holdings are entitled to marriage leave, maternity leave Z-BUBIZETHERBER -
and bereavement leave. Male employees are entitled ZEIWMER N m— B (FHILE)
to 15 days of paternity leave, while female employees B BARAEMAHILER -

with babies aged 12 months or below can take time
off for 2 breast feeding sessions each day.

¥

Hﬁ,
DC Holdings enters into labour protection contracts 188 4 AR BR AR K PRC S5 BY R ) A1 4B =
with its staff in strict accordance with provisions of the BEREAHAMNERMBETIERGSE i
Labour Law and other pertinent laws and regulations. REEER - BAFE  RBRERK E
Regarding welfare and benefits, we make contributions FEFWHRRER REILHE %
to social insurance funds, including pension, medical, Z BE KX IBREESH S
unemployment, work injury and maternity funds, and the gRBEETERES o BIMNIFERIT o
housing provident fund for the benefit of our employees S—REIBRRASRE BEE &
in accordance with national and local government S BABERRRE - RAIEF E_};
policies. DC Holdings also provides life insurance, RETIHEB - RPEHERE -1
traffic accident insurance and supplementary medical ARAEERe  WEBLEEXEERS ".'.Lf,{%_
insurance to staff. A free annual medical checkup for MERTRIRRIETHET - 79 =

employees is arranged. Employees with satisfactory
performances are entitled to discretionary annual
bonuses subject to the Company’s business results.

DC Holdings encourages dialogue between supervisors e 12 e ok B E AR BT R 2 AR
and subordinates on an equal basis. At DC Holdings, RIENYEE - SRBRT - A
our staff enjoy friendly inter-personal relations and HEEABRBERERRER - (RFF
candid communication with one another. Such positive TEMME - BEEE - XRED
atmosphere, which has fostered harmony and trust at MITHESE  BERMASSRBIENE
our workplace, is the reason behind our highly efficient WomARRMERTHRED LE
team work. It helps everyone to develop and progress, BI15 K - TETIS B S -

as we get to know the merits and shortcomings of our
work in a timely manner and improve accordingly.

DC Holdings adopts a merit-based staff recruitment TR EEAESAERE T
policy. We consider the recruitment, training, RAEEREE B B AR
promotion, transfer, remuneration, benefits or BB RIEAHNEFE - R
termination of an employee strictly without regard to MBTeXETITMEE M - &
factors such as age, gender, health status, marital BERE EAKR  REEL &
status, family, position, race, color, nationality, religion, B B RY - BURKME
political affiliation and sexual orientation. To retain high- MERMAMEREZMTE - RTHE
caliber staff for the benefit of the Company’s ongoing BEAL  HBERARNBFEER -
development, we will grant commendations and/or AAgREENER  LEXRRM
rewards based on the contributions, performance and ek, HEEE -

skills of employees.
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With a strong emphasis on the cultural activities
of staff, DC Holdings sees the organisation and
enhancement staff recreational and sporting activities
as an important component contributing to the building
of our corporate culture. For this reason, staff
swimming and badminton clubs have been formed,
and a variety of recreational sporting activities such
as staff family day, national badminton and football
tournaments as well as festive parties are being held.
These activities have enriched the off-hour time of
staff and provided an opportunity for employees from
different business units to mingle and interact. They are
also a ready cure for the relief of work pressure. In
2016, the Company assembled vocal enthusiasts at DC
Holdings and formed a chorus group under the direction
of a professional vocal coach. The exposure to the art
of choral singing has inspired members through, among
other things, the fundamental choir-singing concept of
“us, not me”, which is in tandem with the family spirit
at the DC Holdings. This initiative has enhanced our
name as a culturally uniqgue brand and contributed to
the corporate culture of DC Holdings.

Badminton Day, 2016

—E-RFRAPERAEEY

MMEBROIEE T XEES - £
‘R-SEEINBEHERWIL
AIX bR EBERE D » KL
TEIRX PERRFELES
MERTEIRER 2B PER
B EXE BMBEEFLEZEH
XEES c BLEHNFAERE - TE
CETEIMNERLE REEH
ETREBTHERTRM DFEHF
E -MEEXRR/ETIEN  &RE
N —RBAMGEE - —T—RF -
NREEHEZETEEE - AP MER
RERBHETAK  THFHXE
EMETEMES - BREYAE
BMERERS 2EBTIRA
B RERMINAEER &Y
(M-I RS - FTERR
RreXbaig  BhmMNEkad
XAEEH -

In-house football tournament, 2016
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In addition, to help employees meet pressing financial BN BTOERAREINREZ
needs and support employees suffering from critical 2 RREXEQAFTHEEEKREL
ilnesses, DC Holdings has established a “Staff WX FFEBAE - MNERKZTIE
Mutual Aid Foundation”. With the strong support and I5phEsE] - ZEEINAKAE
participation of employees, the foundation registered BESET —FT-—RXF8ITHH
6,293 members and received membership fees of AL AT AHB293A - Rl &
RMB755,000. Eight cases of financial compensation ARMB7558TT  HREBETE
and four cases of staff aid were completed with the BEFRESH - TERREBNE T A% - 1B
payment of RMB333,000 in compensation. BEARKI3IIET -
5
Staff headcount ETAH i
As at the end of 2016, DC Holdings had 10,556 ZE-RERE SMIERETAH g
employees, analyzed by gender, age, profession and 10,556 A + LRI - Fie - B =
academic qualification as follows: MEBREES AT : D’\g
Male Female Total Percentage %m%
Category BIoRE £ z BAY btk %
B
By age 42 TR B A b
Below 30 305 AT 4,332 1,543 5,875 55.66% “wyé‘
30-50 30-50%% 3,314 1,275 4,589 43.47% 81 =
Above 50 508% A £ 76 16 92 0.87% %
Total &5t 7,722 2,834 10,556 100.00%
By profession RBEEBK
Technical staff TN = 6,068 1,301 7,369 69.81%
Sales staff HEAB 748 289 1,037 9.82%
Finance, administration B1 7% - 77K +
and management BIEAER
staff 609 1,078 1,687 15.98%
Servicing staff fREAB 297 166 463 4.39%
Total &t 7,722 2,834 10,556 100.00%
By academic RBREBEBER
qualification
Doctorate degree B4 20 10 30 0.28%
Master's degree =t 398 322 720 6.82%
Bachelor’s degree KE 4,844 1,933 6,777 64.20%
Tertiary college or RERUT
below 2,460 569 3,029 28.70%
Total XLl 7.722 2,834 10,556  100.00%
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Staff turnover rate m k2

The staff turnover rate of DC Holdings for 2016 is ZERF o MIEREIRAE

indicated as follows: WA
Category Turnover rate
Bn k=
Overall turnover rates BRAAE 25.11%
By profession RREEBH
Technical staff SR IN = 26.79%
Sales staff HEAEB 28.42%
Finance, administration and management staff B - 17 - EE A B 18.40%
Servicing staff RiEAE 21.16%

AR RR
9 R AR B BB A A B

V. SAFETY AND HEALTH

§wm¢

ﬁ’
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The day-to-day operations of DC Holdings largely involve
computer applications and desk work conducted in the
office. While such activities do not involve significant
risks against occupational safety and health, we are
nevertheless committed to the protection of the
occupational health and safety of employees, and have
formulated an occupational health and safety policy
with a high level of operability, with a view to giving
effective protection to staff health and safety. Only by
enhancing and safeguarding the occupational health and
safety of employees can we effectively increase our
production efficiency and achieve mutual success for
both the Company and the staff. \We comply strictly
with laws and regulations pertaining to occupational
health and safety at the place of business. At our
work premises, requisite health and safety guides are
provided to all staff, while regulations and measures
for the administration of contingencies in occupational
health and safety have also been formulated. Employees
are provided with clean washroom facilities, drinking
water, clean facilities for food preparation and storage
and clean tableware.

At Digital China Technology Plaza of Beijing, the only
business venue of DC Holdings managed internally by
the Company, our administration department organised
daytime and nighttime security, maintenance of
firefighting equipment and first-aid kits, and fire drills
in 2016. No work-related fatal casualty of DC Holdings
staff was reported for the year, nor was any loss of
work days resulting from workplace accident recorded.
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VI.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

As an enterprise that always strives for innovation,
DC Holdings ensures that adequate resources are set
aside each year for staff training. Our training pyramid
has been designed on a bottom-up basis to match
our employees’ career development paths within the
Company. All training courses are aimed at enhancing
the competence of employees for the jobs they
undertake at different stages of their career, as well
as facilitating their upward movement. Different training
sessions are provided to staff at different levels.
Induction training for new employees is focused on the
current business status, strategic objectives, history
and culture of the Company, while trainees also learn to
appreciate the importance of team work. The business
departments design specific business training according
to their needs. The online learning centre provides
general training that effectively helps employees to
enhance their competence and performance in work
and improve their professional aptitude in general.
The Company also sponsors selected staff to enroll
in training for specialised skills, management skills or
examinations for professional qualifications provided by
external training organisations.

Analysed by ranking, the average training hours
received by each employee as recorded in our HR
training system are set out as follows:

President and Vice President 13 hours
Senior Manager to General Manager 14 hours
Manager 11 hours
General staff 13 hours

Note: The figures stated above reflect internal skills and management
training organised by the HR Department only, but exclude
external training, specialised training provided by individual
departments and seminars hosted by guest speakers.

Analysed by gender, average training hours received by
each employee are set out as follows:

Male 13 hours

Female 12 hours
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Analysed by training contents and business department, REBINANBEMEBLH BE D - HR
the average training hours received by each employee i—“*ll%ﬁy LEMEBEHESE
as recorded in our HR training system are set out as BRrEian T
follows:
Sme@rt City Group,
Financial Strategy
Information Unit and Supply
Category Service Group Chain Service Unit
EEHTER -
& A
) EERBER {5t & 3 AR % A< &P
Management training 2.27 hours 417 hours
B E 2.27/NFF 417/ N
Corporate culture 6.39 hours 4.79 hours
e EX 6.39/)\ E 4.79/\E
General skills 1.23 hours 3 hours
w% bl 4 1.23/] B NS
§ = Specialised skills 4.00 hours 0.17 hour
BXRE 4.00/) K 017/

ﬁ’

t BEEE
N 2 B B S R AT R R T R
AEMEAITRY  BEMAGER
RITRARY - HBATEARR
BRI R0 S B A RS o

VIl. QUALITY ASSURANCE

DC Holdings provides customers with integrated IT
services, total supply chain solutions and services,
Sm@rt City construction and operation and other
services such as financial services, mainly on the basis
of IT solutions. At each of our business segment, we EE—EXEBRRE  BHAMBERFE
have formulated a specific system to ensure that our MR ERRBOKEEEER S
service standards exceed customers’ expectations. HE -

B R 2 & 8 A0 N 2 AR E e
FREXBOIREBAT - EREEH
BN EDREBE  AEFIR
HER B ERFTHEMEREE

Instant Logistics is a subsidiary through which DC
Holdings operates its supply chain business. Based
on our proprietary Digital China Gold Storage logistics
software, Instant Logistics provides supply chain-related

Digital China Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

integrated services covering management, storage and
transportation. Clients can track their goods in transit
via the website of Instant Logistics (http://www.itl.cn/)
or through the 400 service hotline to make enquiries
and file complaints with Instant Logistics personnel
on a real-time basis. Once received, any compliant
will be resolved within 48 hours with a supervisory
staff of Instant Logistics closely tracking the matter.
To ensure the quality of its services, Instant Logistics
provides training to its staff in relation to the handling
of complaints and response to customer enquiries.
Approximately 80% of Instant Logistics transportation
services are provided by outsourced truck fleets. To

FARESRE - EPA LB BRE
W) B 48 Uk (http: //www.itl.cn/) B
MERNEMERER  TAARIA
A00MRB G ERMEEABRS
AEWMBERNESR o —HRBAEZ
ABWEIES  BEMEEEES
ERFIREWTAS DT AR - BHE
YnehBTIRIERERF £F
EFPEREHI BREKEE -
BEmnmEmiRBLHE N\ KIKT
INBERBER o RERINMEED
RBER  BEKKEERTEX
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ensure the service quality of these outsourced fleets, EE - MREYRNEEKRERRE
such as safe and timely deliveries, Instant Logistics ERBE - WEAEHA®NKRRE
maintains close liaison with the fleet operators and TR AZ »

evaluates drivers’ performance on a regular basis.

Regarding the provision of information services, Digital EREHEEERGEFE  MINER

China Information Service Company Ltd. (“DCITS”), a FE N Z 18 200 (5 BAR TS AR (0 B R

subsidiary of DC Holdings, places a strong emphasis Al (ATHEeMNERDIERTSE

on the provision of quality services to customers BRAaEFRESESNHRSE I

and the fulfilment of all service pledges made to BMOREKEAE TP RBA &
customers. In line with its customer-oriented service e BINERERATEFRRFLH a8
philosophy, DCITS has built a service support regime RS IE S - 7EISO9001E E BB e =
from the customers’ business point of view and an F F11SO20000fk 7 & 12 88 R A i
end-to-end quality management regime on the basis £ ERITILAIPMBOK &1 5% 88 % - E
of the 1S09001 quality management system and HITSSIE ERMRGIERELFE %
the 1SO20000 service management regime through BEEEES  BRTIREEFPE &
a combination of the ITSS information technology BRANRG X IFEAEEFRN o
service standards and its experience over the years, PERENEEEERR - AEEP &
utilising the ITIL and PMBOK knowledge regimes. MEELORBES  BEES &
Again, in tandem with a service philosophy that RVEE BUTHBRE=F%

prioritises customer satisfaction, stringent control is ERPT — RIBEER - BB ".'.I.l',{%_
exercised over the quality of delivery and the service MIBEEBREE  BEPTEESR 85 =
management department, an independent supervisory I EERT M  ARESTAEE

body at the organisational level, has been formed. FRRBRESE  NREEERHER

Through balanced evaluation of the delivery process PEREANIRNERMBEERD

versus regime management, process control versus ® o 2EDRKE MM E R
performance indicator assessment, and quality JETE MR ARG - B E R E

assessment versus customer experience, we strive HigE o - DUR R TET IS Ry %

to reflect customers’ opinions and expose issues in BHEKMEFHE BFHENXZ

internal delivery management in a timely and accurate BEAERBBERNINBIEER

manner, analyze the deficiencies in implementation of HEEEaXFETE — RNBERL

designed regimes for service and product delivery, and EETHMNERETRBEEREZ 4

drive improvements in processes and capabilities in a REERELR  UARZIEZERE

vigorous manner, ensuring that we always meet the WEWR - NREBEXINZIER

needs of our growing business and the expectations MENEZHFREN A BEHRE

of customers. The TOP payment system, an internally B BEEFNARB(LRAIE(

developed integrated support platform for the support BE EFRBEERIDINIERL

and maintenance service regime and delivery process MITREZ2EGEDR  REBEE

management, embodies the experience of DCITS over ERNERER  BREEENR

years of practices in the IT service sector as well as B BRI RIEESES - wINGE

various industry standards and theories. It functions BREFRHETRERE  PIFH

to provide full-cycle management covering the entire U APPEFHMELBRE AR

business process and support process and convert its Tt BT —REP KB FIKRF

pledge to customers into quantitative benchmarks for R TEINERXRGERNGEE

the full cycle of IT services from project start-up to

project completion. Control points and result indicators

are being set up to facilitate real-time monitoring

and end-on-end quality control. DCITS communicates

with customers through various channels, such as its
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service hotline, website and customer-end APP, which
allows it to record every customer enquiry or complaint
in a systematic manner. This function has also been
integrated with the TOP payment system to facilitate
more convenient and efficient real-time solution to
address customers’ needs and views. The high level of
service process visibility afforded by this function has
enhanced customers’ experience in general. For more
information on how DCITS facilitates delivery and quality
management, please visit the website (www.dcits.com).

DCITS is also committed to the development of
China’s information service industry. It is one of the
earliest participants in the ITSS standard formulation
project of the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology (“MIIT”) contributing the results of its
innovative business ventures to the formulation of
industry standards. On the other hand, we have also
leveraged advanced concepts of the standards to
facilitate our internal system optimisation and capacity
development. DCITS has been designated by the MIIT
as a corporate member of the highest grade in the
“National IT Service Standard Work Group” and has
served as the first executive president of the branch
ITSS association with full involvement in the formulation,
pilot test and promotion of the National IT Service
Standards. ITSS are being gradually implemented by IT
service enterprise to facilitate comparisons in servicing
ability and service quality between enterprises. In
2016, DCITS received two important qualifications
in IT maintenance service and two major awards for
customer satisfaction and service model innovation.
The qualifications of “Sophistication in Operational
Maintenance Service Ability — Class I and “Information
Systems Integration and Service Qualification ——
Operational Maintenance Sub-category Class |” underpin
the leadership of DCITS in business scale, service
regime and service management ability, while the
user-nominated 8th “User Satisfaction Award” and
“Service Model Innovation Award” by China Computer
Users Association are testimonies to the outstanding
integrated customer service and innovative ability of
DCITS.
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VIIl. PROTECTION OF CUSTOMER PRIVACY

Private customer information requiring to be kept
confidential is involved in the course of operation of
DC Holdings, including the private information of both
individual customers and corporate customers.

As of now, the subsidiaries of DC Holdings have
operated Sme@rt City platforms in numerous cities.
Local citizens will provide personal information such
as personal names, identity card numbers and social
security numbers to our subsidiaries for verification
purposes when they open user accounts. Moreover,
Instant Logistics and e-commerce websites of the
supply chain business of DC Holdings also receive
personal information provided by the customers when
they place orders, such as the names, contact methods
and delivery addresses of the recipients.

At the same time, in the course of its business
cooperation with corporate clients, DC Holdings might
also request such clients to provide information such
as corporate financial information, information relating
to business development, bank account, business
license and identifications of legal representatives or
guarantors, etc.

The aforesaid private information of customers is only
accessible by staff duly authorized by the Company,
who have signed confidentiality agreement with DC
Holdings obliging them them to maintain and protect
the confidentiality of customer information. We pledge
respect and protection of the privacy of customer
information to all patrons of the Company. We have
adopted exacting standards for information security
and confidentiality to protect the privacy of customer
information, and we have also taken measures to
ensure stringent compliance with such standards by
our employees.
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PROTECTION OF INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
RIGHTS

Innovation underlines one of the core values of DC
Holdings. All solutions supplied by us are the results
of the hard work of the R&D team of DC Holdings
and its partners. As at 31 December 2016, DC
Holdings owned 4671 software authorship and product
technology patents with proprietary intellectual
property rights.

At the same time, we also hold the results of
innovations of third parties in high regard and have zero
tolerance for infringement of third-party intellectual
property rights on the part of our employees during
the R&D process. During the year, no litigation has
been filed by other companies against DC Holdings in
respect of intellectual property rights.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

DC Holdings believes that the qualities of fairness,
honesty and integrity represent some of the most
important business assets of the Company. It is our
policy that employees are prohibited from soliciting
gains from customers, contractors, suppliers or other
business associates of the Company. All employees
receive anti-corruption training in the form of a lecture
once a year. Educational materials and case studies
are also available on our intranet.

Business associates or employees of the Company
may report corruption of DC Holdings staff via
dcaudit@dcholdings.com on a named or anonymous
basis. The Internal Audit Department will conduct
investigations on reported matters, while information
of the whistleblower will be kept strictly confidential.
An employee who has been confirmed to have received
kickbacks or other gains in any form is subject to
summary dismissal.

M SE R IR BE DA E A

BIFTEMMIERMEER 2 -
B AP P ER BBV AROR T R B AR N
72 % JBE K B BT 3% B B A I B 1E
HEHHORR - BE-ZT—RF+
ZR=1+—8 WNIERE A48T
HAXAMBERNRITE ERRE
an BT F A o

R HPEREEHEMEERNE
AR - BTIBRRBEME TN
BREPARILMANBEENER
B o RFERILAERDEAE 19
JN 4% B Bh 0 8 E R R LR AR

A

REE

MMNEBRRERF  HE FRERE
RAEENHEEE - HIPIHBER
REBIABRER &hE  #
ERREMEAREEBEBHOAL
RBREMAMNE - FEETEFHE
BEX - RREFANRBHIF -
N Lt BERBEBNEEMRY -

ERAEERH RARIANFEL
BERBMNIERAEFERRES
ETR AN BBRBEM:
(dcaudit@dcholdings.com) i 17 &
BREARR - A FALEHE
BREERMAAE BRAGEEHR
BARRE - INBE THERMZ A
(CIFiZE=M= D CI B R U S F VA
BN fE & -



XI.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

As a member of the community, DC Holdings is closely
associated with social developments. Our sustainable
development is only possible if there is harmony and
order in the social environment. In this connection,
the Digital China Charity Foundation has been set up
by the Company and its staff since the listing of DC
Holdings. Our donations in cash or in kind to post-quake
disaster relief, education funds and poverty aid over the
past decade amount to RMB17,708,400, underlining
the positive energy of our corporate culture and our
commitment to social responsibility. In 2016, Digital
China Charity Foundation was mainly involved in the
following community welfare campaigns:

() Poverty aid through education assistance
Since 2002, DC Holdings has organised its staff
to raise donations for the construction of 10
Hope Schools in nine provinces including Sichuan,
Hubei and Hebei. We have continued to monitor
the progress of DC Hope Schools for the past
15 years through a long-term mechanism for the
maintenance of DC Hope Schools developed under
the leadership of the CPC Branch Committee of
DC Holdings. In 2016, we completed the following
tasks in the maintenance of and visits to Hope
Schools:
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DC Holdings Sanjianfang Hope School in

Baotou, Inner Mongolia

On 6 September 2016, volunteers of DC
Holdings visited Sanjianfang Hope School and
held early celebration of the Teachers’ Day with
the faculty and students of the school. At the
donation ceremony, our volunteers handed over
5 computers to the school on behalf of Digital
China Charity Foundation. These computers are
expected enhance automation in teaching and
office work for the school and the nursery.
Meanwhile, the Sprinters’ Group (f& 7R [&) of the
Company organised a charity run based on “RMB1
for every 1 km” to raise funds for Sanjianfang
Hope School, generating RMB20,265 in two
weeks which was used to buy new school uniform
for each of the 193 students of the school, so
that they could go into the new school year in
fresh looks. Moreover, books, toys, blankets,
winter clothes, stationery and sporting items
collected by DC Holdings staff were also handed
over the headmaster of Sanjianfang Hope School,
Mr. Yang Maoming, who presented a souvenir to
DC Holdings in appreciation of the donations.
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DC Holdings Fushun Hope School

In Autumn 2016, the 5th season of our charity
kaleidoscope entitled “The Date of Autumn” was
launched. Amidst the nationwide trend of work-
out and exercise, the volunteers of DC Holdings
had created innovative fun games. This time, the
DC volunteers organised a mini games day for the
Autumn season with the Hope School kids. Old
kids might grow up and leave and new kid might
join, but the joy fostered by DC volunteers and
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DC Holdings Chaoyang Ershi Jiazi Hope

School

In 2016, Chaoyang Hope School received much
more than the learning kits donated by our
employees: they also embraced the care of our
employees and donations raised from the staff
charity walk organised by the Company. In this
year's charity walk, our staff cashed in on all
prizes and donated the amounts to Chaoyang
Ershi Jiazi Hope School for the construction of
a playground that the school kids had hoped for.
The ground that used to turn muddy during rainy
days and dusty under sunlight is now covered by
a solid surface suitable for all kinds of sports and
games.
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Aid for the underprivileged

The CPC members and staff of DC Holdings
have been making strong endeavours to help
underprivileged members of the society with
compassion. Our actions in 2016 included the
following:
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Care for Tai Yang Village HEXG
Located in Zhaoquanying Town of Shunyi District ERT KRG AR B R

in Beijing, Tai Yang Village is non-profit making
institution officially registered with relevant
government authorities. Ms. Zhang Shugqin,
founder of “Tai Yang Village”, has been entrusted
by prison inmates to take care of their minor
children. As the free basic childcare services
provided to these children are supported by public
donations, certain CPC members and staff of DC
Holdings have been actively involved in this charity
initiative since 2008 to protect these innocent
children and foster social harmony and stability
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in a proactive move to assume their share of FR —EERSHEE—HE “"'{‘%_
social responsibility, caring for these children and NmEd AHUMTEERE B =

sending daily items and learning kits to them to
improve life at Tai Yang Village. Activities for the
care of Tai Yang Village conducted in 2016 are
as follows:
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Visiting and honouring veteran soldiers

In 2010, certain employees of DC Holdings set
up the Taierzhuang Veteran Soldiers’ Fund aiming
to provide long-term financial assistance to 38
veteran soldiers living in Taierzhuang for the rest
of their lives. The Fund is operated on an annual
basis, whereby funds are raised each year to
finance cash and physical donations to the veteran
soldiers made each month.
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DC Holdings visits in 2016 to honour veteran soldiers surviving

the Battle of Taierzhuang
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The Directors of the Company have pleasure in presenting
their report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Details of
the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the Group’s financial position at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 117 to 292 of this annual
report.

Special cash dividend of HK$3.20 per ordinary share,
amounting to approximately HK$3.5 billion in total, was paid
to the shareholders of the Company during the year. The
board of directors does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 is set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 25 to 42 of
this annual report. Description of the risks and uncertainties
facing the Company can be found throughout this annual
report.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five
financial years is set out on pages 297 to 298 this annual
report. The five-year financial summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group and the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the investment properties of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set
out in note 15 to the financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements, together with the reasons therefor,
in the share capital of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in note 34 to the financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act of Bermuda, amounted to HK$787,174,000. In addition,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$2,836,673,000, may be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda although there are no
restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

As permitted by the Bye-laws of the Company, every Director
shall be indemnified out of the Company’s assets against any
liability incurred by the Director, to the extent permitted by
Bermuda law. Such permitted indemnity provision has been in
force throughout the financial year and is currently in force
at the time of approval of this report. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability coverage
for the directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. GUO Wei (Chairman)]

Mr. LIN Yang (Chief Executive Officer)]
Mr. WANG Xinhui (President] [(Note 1)
Mr. YAN Guorong (President] (Note Z2)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Andrew Y. YAN (Note 3)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis
Ms. NI Hong (Hope)

Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter (Note 4)
Dr. LIU Yun, John

Ms. YAN Xiaoyan

Prof. LAI Daniel, 588s, Jp

B% &
REE-ZT—RNF+_A=+—HILTFE
HRAARARB A et 1EERE M
EHERABRAK L34 -

o] 53 i 158 ¥

RZE—RNF+-_A=+—8" ' REHRH
RENAESE  ARR 2R DK FEE
£ ABE787174,0007T © LA » AR
Al 2 B % (8 Bk & 78 #2,836,673,000
o AU RANBEGR 2 ARSI o

12 5t i B 4

159 73 7 48 B o S A ) 30 4 5 R 4
6 BB R 2 S T BRI K )3 A
ZE G FRS) -

ST Z T (1R 3L

ARBZ AR AFEMNESTAR
RELEATNRER  BERART]
REEBETHBEMBEML - ZFEMERT
ZBEGXNTRFEAREHERER
ERNBBAER - ARAFEDLHEENE
ENEABEBEEIRBRTAKREZES
LB E -

BEE
RBE-—B—AEF+-A=+—-HILH
EHEAREZAREHHIEZARNF]
FEhH:

HITEF
BREE(EE)

WG (EEHTE)
EERAEEE) (K1)
BB KL L (EE) (T Z2)

FHITEE
Rk 55 £ (BT 72 3)

BB ITESE
FEXREAE

{7 4T /)N 48
TR EN 74
A nEL
BRBE M AL

B E IR  BBS, P



Notes:

1. Mr. WANG Xinhui was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company with effect from 12 January 2017.

2. Mr. YAN Guorong resigned as an Executive Director and President of

the Company with effect from 8 March 2016.

3. Mr. Andrew Y. YAN resigned as a Non-executive Director of the
Company with effect from 1 July 2016.

4. Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter retired as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company with effect from the close of the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 June 2016.

In accordance with Bye-Law 99 of the Bye-Laws, Mr. WONG
Man Chung, Francis, Ms. NI Hong (Hope) and Ms. YAN
Xiaoyan will retire from office by rotation. In accordance
with Bye-Law 102(B) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. WANG Xinhui who
was appointed as a director with effect from 12 January
2017 will hold office until the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. All of them being eligible will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Changes in the information of Directors required to be
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disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set BESAHMZEBENT:
out below:
Name of Director Details of Changes EEEB BEFE
Mr. WONG Man Chung, e Appointed as Independent Non- BMRAE BZEREBEE
Francis executive Director, the Chairman BERAR(RE
of the Audit Committee and a BEERSMA
member of the Remuneration RARER W)
Committee of Hilong Holding L IERITE
Limited (listed on the Main = EZ%ZBE®
Board of The Stock Exchange of FREFHZE
Hong Kong Limited) gKE
Dr. LIU Yun, John . Appointed as Vice President and Bl BZITRBEN
Chief Operating Officer of Wanda EREEEE R
Internet Technology Group HRERELTE
. Resigned as Independent Non- g £ & ARM
executive Director of ARM Holdings Plc. (7%
Holdings Plc. (listed on the MBBHFEZ D

London Stock Exchange)

° Resigned as Senior Vice
President, Greater China
Field Division of Conservation
International

) BB 3R
TESE

B T 75 (R o B PR
Ee &2 2%5
BEI BB KT
EFRERAR
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Name of Director Details of Changes EEEE BEHEE
Ms. YAN Xiaoyan . Resigned as the Chairperson B e A i+ . BHERILRHEE
of Bank of Beijing Consumer ERMATESEE
Finance Company
. Resigned as an Advisor of The . BEERILERMA
People’s Government of Beijing RBIR2%
Municipality
o Resigned as Vice President o BERILR EM
of The Listed Companies AR ERIEE
Association of Beijing $3
. Resigned as Assistant Secretary o BFEAPEER
General of China Volunteer PR % Bk & & Bl W
Service Federation EK
° Resigned as Vice Director ° BEATEERHE
General and Secretary General fRisE & 288
of China Volunteer Service ERFWER
Foundation
Prof. LAl Daniel, 885, P ® Appointed as Director of Pearl B MK o BEZERK=A
River Delta IT Cooperation and BBS, JP B & EE
Exchange Centre RLES

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE AGREEMENTS

Each of the Executive Directors of the Company entered into
a service agreement with the Company which shall continue
in force unless and until terminated by (i) either the Company
or the Director serving on each other of not less than three
months’ notice; or (ii) his retirement as a Director without
being re-elected as a Director by the Shareholders of the
Company in an annual general meeting in accordance with
the Bye- Laws; or [(iii) in the event of the Director’s default
under the terms of the said service agreement.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service agreement
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
the statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or subsisted during the year.

EEZRBHE
ADAGARITERHRADAT L~
PR HE - L EERENE T
QESPE R G N Al e VR ]
ALY £3 1 BEE £ 330
REEAGPEANAREERE
S5 (i) 2 3 2 IR R 75 1 3 70 2 -

B EXPTEEE SN MRNARE A&
TZBRRBAFARELBEEEETZARF
EEMBEBRARFFTLAAIR —FAK
e B A E CEERERIN Z R
ek o

EESH

REFN  ADRL BT LS H T
EER BB T BEBHEE R
BA ) o



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transaction” of this report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of
the Company or an entity connected with a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
31 December 2016 or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2016.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates two share option schemes. One of
the share option schemes was adopted on 18 July 2002
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) and the other share
option scheme was adopted on 15 August 2011 (the “2011
Share Option Scheme”), each with life span of ten years.
The 2002 Share Option Scheme was expired on 18 July
2012. Following 18 July 2012, no further share options can
be granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and the
share options granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme
are exercisable pursuant to the terms of the 2002 Share
Option Scheme. Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme
and the 2011 Share Option Scheme as well as movements
in the share options during the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in note 35(a) to the financial statements.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company adopted a restricted share award scheme
(the “RSA Scheme”) on 28 March 2011 for the purpose of
rewarding and motivating, among others, Directors (including
executive and non-executive) and employees of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Participants”) with the shares of
the Company. Details of the RSA Scheme are set out in note
35(b) to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Restricted Share Award Scheme” of this
report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Restricted Share Award Scheme” of this
report, at no time during the year was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors or chief executives or any of their spouse or

Report of the Directors
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children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of
each Director and chief executive of the Company and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were required to be notified to
the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
the Directors and chief executive were taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be and are recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers adopted by the Company (the “Model Code”) were as
follows:

HEBRHEIBRN T ZFRBIUEEA

AR R E AR T 2 B 15 o 15 1 o T
ﬁT;\L °

EERTHARRIXG « HE
BRGEREEEPZERRXE

RIE—RF+_A=+—"H AQAFE
EENTHREAHEBESZHE ARAR
ANETHEEEIE(EE R ES L
EIEFIEXVES([EHNBEED]) 2%
- HERDREEET - BERIEE
AR HAEEBIEXVERE7RE]D /A A
SARARARE BB ARSI AER AR ([H
RENZEFZRAR (BRERELSLEE
P Z2EBIEX TESRITHREARES
S RIEBB IR KR)  AZLA
FERALXRRREZS LA EIEFE
XVELEI521EFE 2 B A - iR iE
RRABRPZ EHBETAESETES
REMZESR(TZESFRD BN E X
NEI LBz EZ AR

Approximate
percentage
of aggregate

Personal Corporate Total interests (%)
Name of Directors Capacity interests interests (Note 1) (Note 3)
hEHERZ
Y BAEDE (%)
EEEB 5% (PN ¥ AFERE (Hfa1) (H1#23)
GUO Wei Beneficial owner 57,207,044 69,414,286 126,621,330 10.76
and interests (Note 2)
of a controlled (Haz2)
corporation
Elys) EmfEAAR
REEE s EE
LIN Yang Beneficial owner 2,220,734 — 2,220,734 019
w5 Em#EAA
LAl Daniel, B8s, J7  Beneficial owner 4,000 — 4,000 0.00

FBE5E - BBS, JP EmBEAA



1. All of the interests disclosed herein represent long position in the
shares of the Company.

2. These 68,414,286 shares of the Company were beneficially held by
Kosalaki Investments Limited (“KIL"), of which Mr. GUO Wei is the
controlling shareholder and also a director of KIL, therefore, Mr. GUO
Wei was deemed to be interested in such shares in which KIL was
interested.

3. The approximate percentage of interests is based on the aggregate
nominal value of the shares/underlying shares comprising the
interests held as a percentage of the aggregate nominal value of all
the issued share capital of the Company of the same class immediately
after the relevant event and as recorded in the register maintained
under Section 352 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2016, none of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company or their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
the directors and chief executive were taken or deemed to
have taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Report of the Directors
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS ERFNREMNREBERGZ
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND #£35 ®i%

UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2016, to the best knowledge of the HZZE—X"F+ZA=+—H ®ESFHN
Directors, the following persons, not being a Director or %1 LA FA L (WIEARQ R E BT E
chief executive of the Company, had the following interests EORARRRMD RBERDPHEEUAT
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of BARBEARBEERNEXVEEI2RE
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the 3P EHBETARG - HARBEZHFLH
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the EIEFIEXVIEIEIIBIKETEFEE 2 &Ll
SFO, or required to be recorded in the register required to Fretsk oz AT #Em AR

be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

Approximate

percentage
Number of aggregate
of shares interests (%)
Name Capacity [Note 1) (Note 7]
hEHERZ
K #E BAOE D (%)
=E %) (K7 5£1) (K1 527)
Wi,
§ "Zf«‘_f..__ Kosalaki Investments Limited Beneficial owner 69,414,286 5.90
%02 = (Note 2] (f1i2) EREA A
GRG Banking Equipment Co., Ltd.* Beneficial owner 308,640,000 26.23
= BMNEEEReREFROERAFR EmEEA (Note 3] (/f17#3)
§ Guangzhou Radio Group Co., Ltd.* Interests of a controlled 308,640,000 26.23
CTE EMNESREEBE AR QA corporation (Note 3) ({1 :#3)
E FEE 2 B
<t
€ Dragon City International Investment Beneficial owner 150,070,000 12.15
< Limited EREAA (Note 4) (ft74)
E Yip Chi Yu (Note 5) Interests of a controlled 150,070,000/1,860 12.15
= BRI (B 7£5) corporation/Interest of
o spouse
E Bz ERS
£ A2 18 4 2
£ Huang Shaokang (Note 5) Beneficial owner/Interest 1,860/150,070,000 12.15
< =R (K :15) of spouse
= ERBAAN/ TBER
Allianz SE Interests of controlled 93,841,000 7.98
corporations (Note 6] (f:£6)
REEE R

* For identification purpose only CXay ¥



Notes:

All of the interests disclosed herein represent long position in the
shares of the Company.
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EXFREZ2BER  2AFATARBGZ
A -

2. KIL is controlled by Mr. GUO Wei who is a director of the Company KILERZALEZS  MAAELETREBAAT
and KIL. BKILZEE -
3. These 308,640,000 shares of the Company were beneficially held by %% 308,640,000 AR F R EHEMNES
GRG Banking Equipment Co., Ltd.* (ENETERTHREFRNHDBRA BREMETROERIRD(RARINEFHR
7)) (listed on The Shenzhen Stock Exchange), in which Guangzhou Radio SHEMEBEZFE BENEGREEBER
Group Co., Ltd.* (E/MEKEEEAERALF) is a 52.52% controlling RA A B X AF52.52% 2 AR E -
shareholder.
b
4. On 1 June 2016, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company RZZE-—RFERNA—B AxRalzEE2 Ebg
(the “Purchaser”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement AHEMH B AR ([E 7)) EDragon City §
with Dragon City International Investment Limited (“Dragon City”), International Investment Limited ([Dragon
a company wholly owned by Ms. Yip Chi Yu, pursuant to which the City D(—FBELEMNLZL2EREHRF) I
Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire and Dragon City conditionally AV —EEEHZE B BEFEKRMHGR Dﬂ
agreed to sell 100% interests in a property through the acquisition by B E fDragon CityBiE RS HEZH T
the Purchaser of the entire issued share capital of Ford Star Pacific ¥ %100% # 2 (B i@ B 77 W Ford  Star e
Limited, with consideration of the transaction to be settled by the Pacific Limited® &2 & 7R A) - ARAF K B
Company issuing consideration shares to Dragon City. Details of the MDragon City#EHTRERGOUEZNZRZS e
transaction are set out in an announcement of the Company of the BRE - XHZHBHANARARRAH R i
same date. As at the date of this report, the transaction had not ERN - RABEBH  THHKRTK F =
been completed. Out of a maximum of 149,940,000 consideration ARE RS K & %149,940,000 # + & -
shares of the Company, 78,000,000 shares were issued to Dragon 78,000,000 ER =T — R F A+ tH
City on 17 June 2016. The remaining consideration shares are yet %17 T Dragon City - H#RERMNARFT “"%
to be issued pending completion. P& BAT o 103 =
5. Ms. Yip Chi Yu is the spouse of Mr. Huang Shaokang. BENRLIRELREEDNERLS - %’[ﬁ
B. Out of these 93,841,000 shares of the Company in aggregate, #% % 4 #93,841,0008 & A 7 & 7 &H
1,447,000 shares by Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Ltd., 92,266,000 Allianz Global Investors Taiwan Ltd. 34
shares by Allianz Global Investors Asia Pacific Limited, 128,000 1,447,0008% - Allianz Global Investors
shares by Allianz Global Investors U.S. LLC. All of the aforementioned Asia Pacific Limited 5 92,266,0000% &
companies were indirectly controlled by Allianz SE. Allianz Global Investors U.S. Holdings LLC
#57/128,0000% - kit 22 ) & M Allianz SEf
BRI o
7. The approximate percentage of interests is based on the aggregate B=EMOBD L TIRERG B D (48

nominal value of the shares/underlying shares comprising the
interests held as a percentage of the aggregate nominal value of all
the issued share capital of the Company of the same class immediately
after the relevant event and as recorded in the register maintained
under Section 336 of the SFO.

A Fs ) BEEEAAREREBER
TERRZABZHCETRABEEZED
bt E - WE R IRE 5 R B E G 0] 533614
RERHAELME -

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2016, the
Company had not been notified by any persons who had
interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares
of the Company which were required to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO.

BREXHIEEN  RZE—ARF+=
AZ+—B HMETHATZHEARD
BIRARRZBROKBERGS  HE
AREBEBEHFRBAEKRNEXVEF2RE
SN MEERARBEESFRBEKGE
XVEBE 336K AE T H BT ELMETE
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DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group made
donation of HK$2,368,000 (for the year ended 31 December
2015: HK$2,420,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate percentage of revenue attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers was less than 30% (for the
year ended 31 December 2015: less than 30%) of the
Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The aggregate percentage of purchases attributable to
the Group’s five largest suppliers was approximately 26%
(for the year ended 31 December 2015: approximately
41%) of the Group’s total purchases and the percentage of
purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier was
approximately 10% (for the year ended 31 December 2015:
approximately 12%) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Digital China (China) Limited* (“DCC”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Digital China Group Co., Ltd.*, is one of the
five largest suppliers of the Group. Mr. GUO Wei was the
directors of Digital China Group Co., Ltd. and DCC, and was
interested in approximately 23.66% equity interest in Digital
China Group Co., Ltd. as at 31 December 2016. Save as
disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2016,
none of the Directors, any of their close associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers
or suppliers noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE

COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had
the following connected transactions which are subject to
the reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the transaction are as follows:

1. On 7 August 2015, Digital China Limited (“DCL") (an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), the
Company and AJI T AREZRE(EE)RMHERRA A
(Shenzhen Shenxin Taifeng Group Co., Ltd.*) (“Shenxin

* For identification purpose only
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Taifeng”) entered into a share transfer agreement
pursuant to which DCL agreed to sell and Shenxin
Taifeng agreed to acquire 100% equity interests held
by DCL in three companies, namely, &/ &f5 (&)
BBR7AA (Digital China (China) Limited*), /& &M
5 AR AF (Shanghai Digital China Limited*) and
& M e N % {5 B B & B BR 2 & (Guangzhou Digital
China Information Technology Co., Ltd.*), at a cash
consideration of RMB4.01 billion (the “Disposal”). On the
same date, Shenxin Taifeng and each of Mr. GUO Wei
(Chairman and Executive Director of the Company) and
FEERESEIEABAR AT (China Fund Management
Co., Ltd.*) (with Mr. YAN Guorong, Executive Director
and President of the Company until his resignation
with effect from 8 March 2016, as one of the asset
trustors (“Assets Trustors”) who would provide the
funds for subscription of new ordinary shares (“New
A Shares”) to be issued by Shenxin Taifeng) entered
into agreements in respect of the subscription of an
aggregate of 184,387,503 out of the 296,096,903
New A Shares at a price of RMB7.43 per New A Share
(subject to adjustments) to be issued by Shenxin Taifeng
(the “Share Subscription”).

As the Share Subscription involves the subscription of
New A Shares by Mr. GUO Wei and Mr. YAN Guorong
(as one of the Asset Trustors), who are connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules by
virtue of them being Directors, the Disposal and the
Share Subscription therefore constituted a connected
transaction of the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

The Company announced on 8 March 2016 that the
Completion of the Disposal took place.

Details of the transaction have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 7 August 2015 and
8 March 2016 and circular dated 9 August 2015
and are also included in note 11 to the financial
statements.

On 5 September 2016, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”)
with the subscribers (“Subscribers”) pursuant to
which the Subscribers have conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and the Company has conditionally
agreed to issue 99,391,000 subscription shares at the
Subscription Price of HK$5.53 per subscription share
for an aggregate amount of HK$549,632,230. Each
of Mr. GUO Wei, Mr. LIN Yang, the other connected
subscribers (“Other Connected Subscribers”) and
Great Dynamic Management (PTC) Limited were the
Subscribers.

For identification purpose only
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Each of Mr. GUO Wei and Mr. LIN Yang is a Director
and is therefore a connected person of the Company.
Each of the Other Connected Subscribers is a
director of a subsidiary/certain subsidiaries of the
Company and is therefore also a connected person
of the Company. Accordingly, the Subscription by the
connected subscribers who are connected persons of
the Company constitutes a connected transaction for
the Company pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. The Company had obtained the Independent
Shareholders’ approval for the Subscription at the
special general meeting held on 25 October 2016.

On 18 January 2017, the Company announced that the
conditions to the Subscription Agreement were fulfilled
and the Subscription Completion took place.

Details of the transaction have been disclosed in the
Company’s announcements dated 5 September 2016,
25 October 2016 and 18 January 2017 and circular
dated 30 September 2016.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016 of the Group were audited by Ernst &
Young.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float during the year ended
31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report as
required under the Listing Rules.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
GUO Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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To the shareholders of Digital China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consoclidated financial statements
of Digital China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 117 to 292,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities of the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statement.
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Key audit matter
Impairment assessment of goodwill

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
the Group’'s goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries
was approximately HK$2,195,376,000, which is
subject to annual impairment test. Impairment
provision is required when the recoverable amounts
of the cash-generating units (‘CGUs”) to which the
goodwill is allocated are lower than the respective
carrying values of the respective CGUSs.

The calculation of the recoverable amounts of these
CGUs involved significant management’s estimation,
subjective assumptions and judgements, such as
expected future cash flows from the CGUs, annual
growth rate of revenue, budgeted gross margins
and discount rate, and is particularly sensitive due
to business and market volatility, and uncertain
economic outlook.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3,
and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We performed the following audit procedures
on the impairment testing of goodwill, among
others:

° reviewed the forecasted cash flows
through enquiry with management and by
reference to the historical performance
and business plans of the relevant CGUs.
We took into account the accuracy of the
previous forecasts and external industry
analysis;

° involved our valuation specialists to
assist in assessing the methodologies
and significant assumptions used by
management in the impairment testing;
and

° assessed the adequacy of disclosures
in relation to the goodwill of the Group,
including cash-generating units for
impairment testing and assumptions on
which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill.
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Key audit matter
Revaluation of investment properties

The Group’s investment properties comprise
completed investment properties and investment
properties under construction and are stated at
fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in fair value of investment properties are
recorded in profit or loss in the year in which
they arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of the Group’s investment properties was
approximately HK$3,046,367,000, which accounted
for approximately 13% of the total assets of the
Group.

The Group’s investment properties are revalued
individually at the end of each reporting period
by independent professional valuers which involve
significant estimations and assumptions, including
estimated rental value, long term vacancy rate and
discount rate, and the fair values of the investment
properties are sensitive to these management’s
estimates and assumptions.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We performed the following audit procedures on
the revaluation of investment properties, among
others:

obtained an understanding of the work
of the external appraiser engaged by
the Company, considered the objectivity,
independence and expertise of the external
appraiser;

involved our valuation specialists to
evaluate the valuation techniques used and
to check the underlying estimations and
assumptions for selected samples through
enquiry with management and by reference
to the historical information and open
market information; and

assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
relation to the revaluation of investment
properties, including fair value hierarchy
and the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment
properties.
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Key audit matter
Impairment assessment for accounts receivable

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of
the Group's accounts receivable before provision was
approximately HK$4,255,340,000. Management
is required to assess whether a provision for
impairment is required in respect of those accounts
receivable that might not be fully collectable. The
impairment assessment for accounts receivable
involved significant management’s judgements,
taking into account various factors, including
the aging of these receivables, the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of
the customers, existence of disputes, and any other
available information. As at 31 December 2016,
the impairment provision recorded for accounts
receivable was approximately HK$293,585,000.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

BAREETEE

JE U B8R 50 8 6t (B ET A
R-ZZE—ARE+-A=+—H > BE£EERKERCK
BIEREEE) MERmE L A ¥4,255,340,0007T °
EEETEIMEEKERRNERER SRS EE
TRERE BEEZFORETESIREREEREH
B FEZRERER TPFEEXBARRESL 2
BhEEMG  MEMBEARGEE RZE—XR"F+=-A=
+—H - YR FEY R E B 4 &% 293,585,000

JC °

HEREFRLGEMBEHRRME2.4  3%k27 -

Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2 B AR

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We performed the following audit procedures
on the impairment assessment of accounts
receivable, among others:

° obtained an understanding of and assessed
management’s processes and controls
relating to the monitoring of accounts
receivable to identity credit risks;

° obtained an understanding of and reviewed
management’'s impairment assessment
for accounts receivable and assessed
management’'s judgements on the
recoverability of accounts receivable;

° tested the aging report of accounts
receivable; and

° checked the receipts of cash after the
reporting period and the underlying
documents supporting the recoverability of
the outstanding balances.
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Key audit matter
Recognition of contract revenue

The Group's revenue from fixed price contracts in
technical service business and application software
development business is recognised using the
percentage of completion (“POC”) method, measured
by reference to the proportion of work completed
to date to the estimated total work of the relevant
contract. Provision is made for foreseeable losses
as soon as they are anticipated by management.

The recognition of contract revenue requires
management’s estimates and revision of the
estimates which involves estimation uncertainty,
in particular with respect to estimating the POC,
the contract revenue, total budget costs of the
relevant contract and costs to complete for each
contract as the contract progresses, as well as the
assessment of the remaining contingencies and a
foreseeable loss that a contract is or could be facing
until completion. In addition, as these contracts
sometimes span a number of reporting periods,
significant changes in the estimate of the POC, the
contract revenue, total budget costs of the relevant
contracts and costs to complete for each contract
could result in material amounts of revenue being
recorded in the incorrect period.

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3,
5 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We performed the following audit procedures
on the recognition of contract revenue, among
others:

o tested management’s controls relating
to revenue recognition, including the
determination of total budget -costs,
estimated costs to completion, the POC,
the timing of revenue recognition and the
identification of contract losses; and

° evaluated management’s assumptions
and estimates in relation to revenue
recognition, including total budget
costs and forecast costs to complete
and the determination of POC. We
reviewed selected contracts, obtained
an understanding of the contract terms
and recalculated the revenues and costs
incurred based on the percentage of
completion.
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OTHER INFORMATION
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

INCLUDED IN THE

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consoclidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

EHAMRESMBRROER
ARBENRE

BMMEREHSRAMBEBRREBEERD
TEERNRFFRERMERMNENE
REREERS A ERE - X HAEERM
BEANZBMHRE -  RANREKESD
RE-NN-—FHRER)ENTIHRER
ERERER MUAAEEMBERN -
BT AR E AT E H A ERA
TREHAEERE -

BERBEBKENRE  BTERE
RIB(BE BB ERDETHE B E
BB AR R - 55 FRBR AT DA BRGE
HERSIE  MREEFEREMEFHK
ERERAEFEREMBRERERE
REFAVBBRRAELOLERE
AR RRA AT RIEE KX -

ERB(E BB RADETRMBR
o RMERTERAE  RETEE
BEEAE o RN

o EBIMEF AR AGF S RME
RAEMBHRAFEEABRRMH
B - RERAITRIEFARY
FLER  ARERTRIEE
BARE  FREMERMER -
ARSI RER  BE &
BER  ERRML - EBERAE
2z £ Btk REEZ IRNEAHEFM
B E AR AR &R R
REE I R SRR M B B B A A R IR
AR o

e THREFEABENAIMES - A
RBENESAREF  BEEOLI
B ERERENOHEREER
R

. HEEERRALHEENREM
R AFIE & 5 3 FIRBIBLEE ) 2 32
f o



° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Kwok Yin.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

29 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or LosS
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Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—ZF— "F+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & B¥ T BT T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS BESEER
REVENUE A 5 12,251,359 10,630,672
Cost of sales and services $HE R BRIS A A (9,747,655) (8,414,702)
Gross profit ! 2,503,704 2,215,970
Other income and gains H A A Rz 5 273,402 355,209
Selling and distribution HHE &
expenses DiHE R (1,168,468) (991,294)
Administrative expenses 1TERE A (465,941) (200,666)
Other expenses, net Hib & A HEE (883,017) (698,058)
Finance costs b & B AR 7 (196,989) (73,685)
Share of profits and BIET3IRRZ
losses of; i Al Ko 5 48
Joint ventures aEE 39,247 41,617
Associates /NG| 35,775 21,786
PROFIT BEFORE TAX FROM HFEREXEKZ
CONTINUING OPERATIONS R B A1 5 A 6 137,713 670,879
Income tax expense Frisi & A 10 (148,743) (207,371)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE BEREEBZEAFE
YEAR FROM CONTINUING wH (BB
OPERATIONS (11,030) 463,508
DISCONTINUED OPERATION FREREER
Profit for the year from the ERBEREER
discontinued operation ZARNFE Al 11 559,623 462,207
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEHR 548,593 925,715
Attributable to: SEEBR:
Equity holders of the parent ISUNCI g 389,314 661,676
Non-controlling interests FE1E AR #E o 159,279 264,039
548,593 925,715
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
mEBEEK

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—F— "F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—XREF —T—RHF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
N3 BT T BT I
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER BAREBERREMN
SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE BRER (FHB)
TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic H K
— For profit for the year — REE R HK cents34.74 #{l | HK centsB1.67 1l
— For profit/(loss) — FEREER

wA(EE)

from continuing

operations HK cents(15.20) #{l | HK cents18.59 1l
Diluted BE
W — For profit for the year — REE & HK cents34.74 #{ll | HK cents61.59 1l
M,
= 118 3= = p P
-f%m@ — For profit/(loss) — BERBER
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(B R)

from continuing
operations

HK cents(15.19) %4l

HK cents18.57 i1l




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 20168 #HZ—-Z=

N

re 2|l ®

3R

—RFETZA=T—HIEFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —HF
Note HK$’'000 HK$'000
ks BT T BE T T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEHF 548,593 925,715
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Htt2ms,
INCOME/(LOSS) (B8]) =
Other comprehensive income/ HE&ZAgEETNDHEE g
(loss) to be reclassified to EmzH EME2mE &
profit or loss in subsequent Wz, (&) E
periods: m
Available-for-sale AHHEEZIRE: iixﬂ
investments: i}ﬂ
Changes in fair value NFEEEED (14,472) 6,304 %
Reclassification BERGEEREKZ 7
adjustments for losses/ BN O ERAE
(gains) included in the B8 (Was) éi““"hw%
consolidated statement % 19 &=
of profit or loss %I\E@
— impairment losses — BEEE 5 3,599 28,994
— gain on disposal — HEK = — (17,313)
(10,873) 17,985
Exchange differences: EHZR:
Exchange differences on BINEBIRE 2
translation of foreign MEHZER
operations (321,936) (337,387)
Reclassification adjustments REAFERNHE
for foreign operations BINETE 2
disposed of during the BB
year (45,348) —
(367,284) (8337,387)
Share of other comprehensive E{5E = AR 2 H Al
income of associates 2| WS 5,525 22,368
Net other comprehensive loss HEEAEEH D EE
to be reclassified to profit or B zHME2EER
loss in subsequent periods F R (372,632) (297,034)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
R

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—F— "F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-REF —HF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g3 BET T BT T
Other comprehensive income  HETAEENOEE
not to be reclassified to Bz Hit 2 EK
profit or loss in subsequent
periods:
Gain on property revaluation ) 2 E = 14 601,807 986
Income tax effect FrisHi o & (150,452) (246)
Net other comprehensive HEe T AgEsisoEize
income not to be reclassified Bamz A2 EK =
to profit or loss in O
subsequent periods 451,355 740
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE BANBRB RO A FEHEM
INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE 2EWE(BB)
YEAR, NET OF TAX 78,723 (296,294)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE rEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR EHEK R EE 627,316 629,421
Attributable to: E%%)\E’\\ :
Equity holders of the parent UNCIN L 609,428 471,158
Non-controlling interests FE ¥ I 1 == 17,888 158,263
627,316 629,421




Consolidated Statement of FinanciaL Position
& Bk i &

/\\’T\
31 December 2016 —Z—A~F+=-A=+—H
2016 2015
—E-XF —hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k3 BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment %1% - &= K& & 14 1,088,555 792,836
Investment properties wEME 15 3,046,367 2,123,249
Prepaid land premiums BN S 16 67,937 115,682 ﬁ
Goodwill BE 17 2,195,376 1,215,976 =
Other intangible assets Eﬁﬂﬁ&%;ﬁ? 18 152,043 58,385 ;
Investments in joint ventures RAEDEZRKRE 19 1,008,013 929,439 «
Investments in associates REEERR 2R E 20 1,629,520 1,623,804 E
Available-for-sale investments — A[ftH & 2 R E 21 952,239 591,714 &
Finance lease receivables FE U Bt A T E 3R 22 327,865 371,703 =
Accounts receivable JFE I BR 3k 27 131,528 — é
Prepayments, deposits and TEf5RIE - TTZ%&
other receivables H b fE W 5RI8 28 — 639,477 éﬁ:‘-w%
Deferred tax assets i S Iﬁiéﬂ% 23 68,176 78,450 = 2 -~
N
Total non-current assets BIERBE E 10,667,619 8,540,715
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 24 788,146 812,451
Properties under development 7EiE¥)% 25 242,517 437,788
Completed properties held FEHERENRT
for sale L7 26 193,073 80,600
Accounts and bills receivables & U BR 5 & fE I 2= 4% 27 3,872,087 3,700,923
Prepayments, deposits and ENHIE - Ee2k
other receivables o Ath & W 5K I8 28 1,952,932 1,583,573
Available-for-sale investments ~ AIfEH & 2 R E 21 2,856,415 4,889
Finance lease receivables B UL e & FH & FRE 22 386,264 —
Restricted bank balances PR $R 1T 4 30 58,910 69,654
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBREEEY 30 2,698,158 3,272,212
13,048,502 9,962,090
Assets of a disposal group HEEENARE
classified as held for sale HEZEE 11 — 18,983,558
Total current assets BREEE 13,048,502 28,945,648
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
BT 15 R 0 =

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+-HA=+—H

2016 2015
—E—XRF —E—RF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
K1 it BT T BT T
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Accounts and bills payables A EREENEE 31 2,124,347 2,005,817
Other payables and accruals HmENHKBERERER 32 3,072,125 2,254,933
Tax payables J& S 18 97,137 84,216
Interest-bearing bank and Bt B R 1T R
other borrowings HiE R 33 5,199,014 4,334,778
10,492,623 8,679,744
Liabilities directly associated B GRHELEEEERE
with the assets classified as HEzaE
held for sale 11 = 15,194,751
Total current liabilities HWREEE 10,492,623 23,874,495
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 2,555,879 5,071,153
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BWEER
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE 13,223,498 13,611,868
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FERBERE
Interest-bearing bank and Bt B R 1T R
other borrowings HiE R 33 2,465,874 2,176,903
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAG 23 247,522 84,963
Deferred income I8 WA 38,189 55,685
Total non-current liabilities BIERBEE 2,751,585 2,317,551
Net assets BEERE 10,471,913 11,294,317




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= SN
A MBI R R
31 December 2016 =T —RF+-HA=+—H
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks BT T BT T
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity ®&2QTRKRE
holders of the parent BE 4k #E &
Issued capital BEETRA 34 123,466 109,637 ﬁ
Reserves e 36 7,045121 8,762,930 ©
o
T
7,168,587 8,872,567 2
Non-controlling interests FEHE R 3,303,326 2,421,750 i’”é
o
Total equity EREE 10,471,913 11,294,317 %
=
@1’1’%

g
GUO Wei 25
Chairman F &

= 123 &=
ENN

ra
LIN Yang #
Director &%




C L'dtdStt t of Ch in Equit
—II— N7
/ N Il\EIII\
,\\/ \
Year ended 31 December 2016 B2 =T —"F A=+ —HIFE
Attributable to equity holders of the parent
ARRREE
Available-
Employee for-sale
Share Employee share-based Asset  investment Exchange Non-
Issued premium Capital share  compensation  revaluation  revaluation Reserve  fluctuation Retained contralling Total
capital account reserve trust reserve reserve’ reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
ARHE WiktiEL
BE®fT (4 fHERZ AE iy -V [ 3:9:¢)
BA ArER  REEE MeHf BERR HERRE BREE BE  REEF @it Uit
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
W EETT  BETR  E%Tn BB AETT  BETR  AETR  RETr  BETR A%Tr  B%TR B%Tn A%Tr
At 1 January 2015 R=%2-7%-A-H 109374 2080433 1498902  (302457) 35,108 3929 (1.780)  576,956* 356209 4263682 8600356 2263819 10864175
Profit for the year AEEER - - - - = = = = — 661676 661676 264039 925715
Other comprehensive income/  AFEEH2E
(loss) for the year: i/ (B8)
Avalable-for-sale AfHEZ RE
investments:
— Changes in fair value - ATEEZY = = = = = = 6,304 = = = 6,304 - 6,304
— Impairment loss = = = = = = 28,994 = = = 28,994 = 28,994
— Gain on disposal — HERE = = = = = = (17.313) = = = (17,313) = (17.313)
Exchange differences on BARBBREL
translation of foreign [i3:5:31
operations = = = = = = = — (230640 — (230640) (108,747)  (337.387)
Share of other comprehensive 7B E 1A 2 K
\1”& income of associates 2EhE - - - - - - 0 = 1121 - oaw o 22368
“ .
= = Gain on property revaluation, @B HERD
124 net of tax NEFENRE = = = = = 740 = = = = 740 = 740
Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year = = = = = 740 38,261 —  [(229519) 661676 471158 158263 629421
Exercise of share options figid 13 34 263 20,047 = = (4.837) = = = = = 15,473 = 15,473
Share-based compensation RHLHzME 35 = = = - 34 - - - - - 34 - 34
Contribution from non-controling FE2FFEZRRE 2
shareholders of subsidiaries 1 - - - - - - - - - - - 27120 27120
Final 2014 dividend declared Z2-MEEERKERE - - - - - - - - — (214454 [214454) (27452)  (241,908)
Transfer to reserve funds HRZREEES - - - - - - - 70,638 - (70,638) - - -
At 31 December 2015 R-B-TF1t-A=t-A 109637 2080480 1498902 (302457 30,305 4669 36481 647594 126690 46400266 8872567 2421750 11284317
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in

= N\ /

= A
SREED

quity
EYES

Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—ZF— "F+-_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

BLAARRES
Available-
Employee for-sale
Share Employee  share-hased Asset investment Exchange Non-
Issued premium Capital share  compensation revaluation revaluation Reserve  fluctuation Retained controlling Total
capital account. reserve trust reserve reserve* reserve funds reserve profits Total interests equity
B A% AREEZ
BRf Kt & fHEEZ BE R&Z EXRD 2R
3 Bk EABE  BRRER Helf fMERE HERE HBEEE BF  REEH @it i REAE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi EMTn E%Tr  EMTn  E%TR BE®Tn  EMTR  BWTn  EMTR  EMTRn  BWTn BNt BRTn ENMTR
At 1 January 2016 R=F-75-A-8 109,637 2,080,480 1498902  (302457) 30,305 4,669 36,481 647594 126680 4,640,266 8872567 2,421,750 11,294,317
Profit for the year AERET - - - - = = = = — 389314 389314 159279 548593
Other comprehensive income/  AFEEf2E
(loss) for the year: it/ (58)
Availablefor-sale investments: At HEZ RE
— Changes in fair value — RTEEEY = = = = - = (14472 = = - (14479 - (14472
— Impairment loss — REKE = = = = = = 3,599 = = = 3,599 = 3,599
Exchange differences on ANERREL
translation of foreign E
operations - - - - - - - = (178179) - (178179)  (142,757)  (321,936)
Reclassification adjustments REFERLETNEH
for foreign operations LENHEARE
disposed of during the year = = = = = = = = (45,348) = (45,348) = (45,348)
Share of other comprehensive  EEEREZEft
income of associates 2EMR - - - - - - 404 - 18 - 4159 1,366 5,525
Gain on property revaluation, BARREONERE
net of tax 1§23 - - - - - 451,355 - - - - 451,355 - 451,355
Total comprehensive income/ KEE2ERE/(

(loss) for the year 28 - - - - - 451,355 (6,832) — [224,409) 389,314 609,428 17,888 627,316
Issue of new shares ESE) 34 13612 697,786 = = = = = = = - 71388 - 711398
Exercise of share aptions Ak RRE 34 217 16,568 = - (3,998) = = = = = 12,787 = 12,787
Share-based payment expenses for %179 # IR 2 k1

shares issued at discount &R 34, 35 = 43,658 = = = = = = - - 43,658 6,077 49,735
Share issue expenses BRHRA 34 = (1,819) = = = = = = = = (1.819) = (1.819)
Capital contribution from non-  HERAEERREZ

controlling shareholders of firky

subsidiaries = = = = = = = = = = = 17,087 17,087
Deemed partial disposal of BRBALESHNBLA

subsidiaries - — 435885 - - - - - - — 435885 834725 1,270,610
Acquisition of subsidiaries REHBAR 38 = = = = = = = = = = = 51,522 51,522
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR = = = = = = - (381197) - 381197 - - -
Speaial dividend Lle) - - - - = = = = - [3515317) (3515317) — (3515317)
Dividends paid to non-controlling 4 P ZRBRZ

shareholders EhEES = = = = = = = = = = - [45723)  (45729)
Transfer to reserve funds BREEREE = = = = = = = 44,474 - (44474 - - -
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AF+-A=1-H 123,466 2,836,673 1,834,787*  (302,457)* 26,307*  456,024* 29,649*  310871*  (87,719)* 1,850,986* 7,168,587 3,303,326 10,471,913

The asset revaluation reserve arose from the gains on property #

revaluation as a result of the change in use from owner-occupied
properties to investment properties.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$7,045,121,000 (2015: HK$8,762,930,000) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

EERMERBELNBBNEZEREDE
REMEZMEMBER -

ZEHERCEERGAMBRRARTZ
RA B BB 7045121000 (=2 —H
£ : % %8,762,930,0007T) °
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2016 2015
—NE —hE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Wit BT T BET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING & EEH
ACTIVITIES REhi
Profit before tax: B 358 A g A
From continuing operations RERFBELEER 137,713 670,879
From the discontinued REFFBELEER
operation 11 78,439 542,570
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs A KA 280,765 297,740
Share of profits and losses of ElhE & ¥R E QA
joint ventures and associates 2 K B 1E (75,291) (54,226)
Interest income B U A (16,762) (66,679)
Dividend income from available- AHHECREZ
for-sale investments % B A 5 (8,710) (8,864)
Loss on disposal of items HEME  BER
of property, plant and HE BB
equipment 4,756 11,664
Fair value gains on investment REMEZATEE
properties, net = 5 (134,888) (141,848)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary th'%—ﬁ MEAR 2z 5 = (39)
Gain on disposal of the equity HE-—H&a&E %
interest in a joint venture %EZW?& 5 (72) —
Gain on partial disposal of HE—HEHE AR
the equity interest in an o 2 W
associate = (999)
Loss/(gain) on deemed partial BRLEZ RS QA
disposal of the equity Brgm B8/
interests in associates () 33,740 (38,150)
Gain on disposal of available-for- HEAHEEZIREZ
sale investments g 5 (26,420) (26,270)
Depreciation e 97,029 147,866
Amortisation of prepaid land BALES
premiums i 16 2,601 3,890
Amortisation of other intangible Hin & &
assets B 5 15,797 12,341
Impairment of other intangible Hin & E
assets WA 6 = 19,586
Provisions/(reversal of REFERE
provisions) for and write-off (BERE)R#E
of obsolete inventories 83,267 (12,687)
Impairment of accounts and bills & T B R I B W R B ORLE
receivables 148,742 53,446
Impairment of finance lease Ji& Y5 @b & 7H & 5K IA
receivables WA 6 20,102 4,272
Impairment of available-for-sale AHHECRE
investments A 6 3,599 28,994
Impairment of prepayments and TERRIE R E b FE Y 5R I8
other receivables WE 6 = 28
Share-based payment expenses BT R IR 2 AR 5
for shares issued at discount SHEA 6 49,735 =
Share-based compensation i 2 2 B & = 34
694,142 1,443,552




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMAERETMRER

Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—ZF— "F+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 17 54/ (38 10) 155,336 (427,254)
Decrease in completed properties fF{EHE BB AL T %
held for sale L 96,082 105,064
Additions to properties under RETERME
development (78,002) (94,223) .
Increase in accounts and bills JE Wi BR 3 % e U ZE 4 i
receivables bl (138,951) (371,110) 2
Decrease/(increase) in BNRIE ReREMER o
prepayments, deposits and MR D,/ (HE ) I
other receivables 280,814 (1,036,349) Eg
Increase in finance lease JE U gt & M & 5K E fr
receivables 0 (362,528) (368,289) %
Decrease/(increase) in derivative $TE 2B T AR/ s
financial instruments (3% 1n) (67,101) 96,988 &
Decrease in accounts and bills ENERRENEE &
payables b (517,039) (2,105,581)
Increase in other payables and HEMRERERER ‘_ggﬁ."f@,
accruals 8 38,856 568,544 s, =
Decrease/(increase) in restricted =R TEBH L e |\§
bank balances (1% 0) 10,744 (69,654) @:‘1
Effect of foreign exchange rate BN &8 2w BFE
changes, net 32,923 98,925
Cash generated from/(used in) mEmE/ ()
operations ZRe 145,276 (2,159,387)
Interest received B KA B 19,728 77,903
Mainland China income tax paid ESFPBEAREMER (129,459) (381,440)
Net cash flows from/(used in) seEEmE,/ (FA)
operating activities Ren=E F58 35,545 (2,462,924)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
REeRER

Year ended 31 December 2016 HZ—F— "F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
it BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BREZBHNELRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BAWE KE
plant and equipment B (231,503) (173,698)
Additions to investment NEREME
properties (78,103) (371,071)
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE BERSZEZ
items of property, plant and P15 %
equipment 1,113 4,439
Additions to other intangible REHMEREE
assets (59,048) (26,550)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U 85 B B8 A A 38 (496,693) —
Disposal of subsidiaries el o= NG| 11, 39 1,891,334 62,289
Proceeds from disposal of HE—R&eZEtEREL
investment in a joint venture FTi8 % 22,841 —
Proceeds from partial disposal of & —RHE & QA HHRE
investment in an associate ZF53A — 1,823
Proceeds from disposal of HEAHEEZIREZ
available-for-sale investments P13 318 105,798 204,840
Dividends received from a joint YBR—ReedhEr
venture 1% & 4,534 4,823
Dividends received from WER % Fe B & A A 2
associates sy 4,875 8,761
Dividends received from available- WH R EEZHE 2
for-sale investments i & 8,710 7,978
Investments in joint ventures REELEZEE (68,892) (286,282)
Investments in associates REE R R 2IRE (8,215) (399,539)
Investments in available-for-sale AEHEZERE
investments (2,151,889) 858,474
Decrease/(increase) in other H W R IBR D
receivables (3% ) 217,753 (1,251,390)
Net cash flows used in investing EEHMERERE
activities F R (837,385) (1,355,103)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mMAERETMRER

Year ended 31 December 2016 & Z—ZF— "F+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—EB-RE —T—RF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
it BT T BT T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING R & EEM
ACTIVITIES BeRmeE
Proceeds from issue of new BITHLEBR
ordinary shares {5 58 34 711,398 —
Exercise of share options 171 B 34 12,787 15,473
New bank and other borrowings — #T3ZR1T &% E b E X 14,858,212 25,283,235
Repayment of bank and other EERTREMER
borrowings (14,309,093) (20,153,118)
Proceeds from issue of corporate 21T AR/fEHZ 115 3E
bonds 774,997 =
Interest paid BRI (280,765) (297,740
Dividends paid BT A (3,515,317) (214,454)
Dividends paid to non-controlling  # T IR E 2
shareholders BT A (45,723) (27.452)
Contribution from non-controling KB A B3 AR E 2
shareholders of subsidiaries A 17,087 27120
Deemed partial disposal of BRI D HEZHME AR
subsidiaries 632,663 =
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEEHME/(FrA)
financing activities BenRE %% (1,143,754) 4,633,064
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) BeRELEEY
IN CASH AND CASH #m/ (R 28
EQUIVALENTS (1,945,594) 815,037
Cash and cash equivalents at FENzR e R
beginning of year Re&ZEEBY 4,738,228 4,119,557
Effect of foreign exchange rate ERES T EFE
changes, net (94,476) (196,366)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXzZzHER
AT END OF YEAR BeZSEY 2,698,158 4,738,228
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES BeRBELEEUZ
OF CASH AND CASH ER D
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITE R 30 2,654,980 3,127,646
Non-pledged time deposits BEEREHER 30 43,178 144,566
Cash and cash equivalents as REEMBMRARME 2
stated in the consolidated ReEhBEEEY
statement of financial position 2,698,158 3,272,212
Cash and cash equivalents FRBLEEBREGL
attributable to the discontinued ReEMBREEEDY
operation M — 1,466,016
Cash and cash equivalents as RGeRERERMEALZ
stated in the consolidated ReEhBEEEY
statement of the cash flows 2,698,158 4,738,228
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 1% # & M 5F

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+-HA=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
Digital China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.
The head office and principal place of business of
the Company is located at Suite 2008, 20/F., Devon
House, Taikoo Place, 979 King's Road, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were involved
in the following principal activities:

o provision of information technology (“IT”) services,
including systems integration, technical service
application software development, agricultural
informatisation, sale of financial specified
equipment, etc.

° provision of supply chain services, including
e-commerce supply chain services, logistics
services, maintenance services, etc.

o provision of all-encompassing Sm@rt City services
(including internet based integrated IT platform
construction and operation) and institutional
financial services (including micro-credit loan,
leasing, factoring, etc.)

ATIREREEH

Digital China Holdings Limited (%
MEBIEZERERARDTARRRL TS
—HRERETMRILZAERA
Al e RARIZEPNERRFEL?
AL P I OB K 2 B9795%
A& 9877 N E20122008% -

REAEFEENRN AR REE AR
(GEBAEBDREATEEE
7% -

o  RHEEMBMEOTHRS @ &
BEMEK  BRMRY &
REFE - BEERIE -

ETHEARBS

e RHEHERRY EBFER
HERRY  WRRYE 4
R =

s RHZTUNBEMMES
R BREEREBRB2 5
ITFEaRERIES) REENL
TRR%E(BRHNE -HE -
RIEF)



CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

AT REEEH (&)

FENBARZER

ARBZEEWMBRRFBLT

as follows:
Percentage
Issued ordinary/ of equity
Place of incorporation/ registered share attributable to
Name registration and business capital the Company  Principal activities
FMAIL BRTEBR/ AREEGEES
L BREREBBE F B AE ARl TEXEH
Direct  Indirect
BE# Bk
Digital China (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$5,125 100 — Investment holding
REERREE 5125% T RERR
Digital China Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
WNBBERRF BB BEaT REZR
E-Olympic International Limited British Virgin Islands Us$1 - 100 Holding of trademarks
KBABRES (E RERE
Digital China Networks, Ltd. British Virgin Islands US$10,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
WMEEBEBR AR ABABRES 10,000,000% 1 RARR
Grace Glory Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
BECEEBRAR REERREE (B RERR
Instant Technology Logistics Limited+ PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100 Provision of logistics services
RIFENRER R A BB AR A K #100,000,0007T REDTRE
Talent Gain Developments Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100 Investment holding
REERREE 1£7T RERR
Power Gateway Limited British Virgin Islands US$100 - 100 Investment holding
RBERRERE 100% T RERZR
Digital China Software Limited+* PRC/Mainland China US$200,000,000 = 100 Investment holding
BHEREREERAR" HE/PERE 200,000,000% T REZR
Digital China Xi'an Industrial Co., Limited+ PRC/Mainland China RMB800,000,000 - 100 Development and construction of Science
ARENABEZERAT HE/REAR AR %800,000,00070 and Technology Park
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of incorporation/

Percentage of equity

Issued ordinary/

attributable to the

AT REEEH (&)

FEMEARZER (&)

Name registration and business registered share capital Company Principal activities
EMRL/ BROZER/ ADREEES
B BRREHHE ERUTEN BA TEXH
Direct  Indirect
B Gk
Digital China (Nanjing) Information and PRC/Mainland China HK$367,000,000 - 100 Development and construction of Science
Technology Park Limited+* E /R E AR 7%367,000,00070 and Technology Park
BHEEFER) EENRERAR! HREZENRERER
Tianjin Digital China Financing Lease Co., ~ PRC/Mainland China US$30,000,000 - 100 Finance lease business
Ltd.+* BE/RERE 30,000,000% 7T BEHEEH
REBMNBEREREBERAA
Cellular Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Investment holding
BREAERAA i BEIT REER
Digital China Sm@rt City (Chonghing) PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100 Operation of Sm@rt City Platform
Operations Services Limited+ FE/REAE A& #200,000,0007 BEHTTZEE
BEMN(BE)EERBERLA
Beijing Internetware Company Limited+ PRC/Mainland China RMB23,076,924 - B0 Data integration and management
TRREERHERAA E /B AR AE#23,076,9247 software sales
BEERRERIMHE
Digital China Information Service PRC/Mainland China RMB963,431,273 = 40.43* Systems integration services, application
Company Ltd. (DCITS”) FE/REARE AR#963,431,2737C software development, maintenance
HNaEEERBROERAR and outsourcing, consultancy and
(2NN training services
ZOENRE  ERRMHRE  RERD
DR  HARENRE
Digital China Jinxin Technology Co., Ltd.+  PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 — 40.43** Technology development and promotion,
BNBEESERERNERAT HE /B AR AR #%200,000,0007 technology consultancy and services,
computer systems services and
business of financial specialised
equipment
REREEER REHAERE 8
BEGRY NREBAPREREE
B
Beijing Zhongnong Xinda Information PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 —  40.43** Provision of rural information related
Technology Limited” R/ REAE A& #5,000,0007 services
FRPREEEERMERARA REEMAEELRE
Digital China Advanced Systems Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$531,750,000 — 40.43** Systems integration services
BNEEERZAARAT &k 7% %531,750,00070 FRERRH
Nanjing Howso Technology Co., Ltd.+ PRC/Mainland China RMB102,340,000 — 39.86*** Mobile network optimisation and big data
[*Howso Technology") RE /B AR A K %102,340,0007C services for communications

HREGMRERRA(FHEMR)

BORARILRARAREBRE



2.1

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

+ The English names of these companies are direct
transliterations of their Chinese registered names.

# Registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under PRC law.

A The Chinese name is the trade name but not the original name

of the Company.

* Digital China Information Service Company Ltd., a Shenzhen
listed company, is accounted for as a subsidiary of the Group
even though the Group has only a 40.43% equity interest in
this company based on the factors explained in the note below
and note 3 to the financial statements.

*x These companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Digital
China Information Service Company Ltd. and, accordingly, are
accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company’s control
over them.

***  Howso Technology is a 98.60%-owned subsidiary of Digital
China Information Service Company Ltd. and, accordingly, is
accounted for as a subsidiary by virtue of the Company’s control
over it.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Except for Digital China Limited, Cellular Investments
Limited and Digital China Advanced Systems Limited,
the statutory audits for the above subsidiaries were not
performed by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and certain equity investments which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group
is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;
other contractual

(b) rights arising from

arrangements; and

() the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contral, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28
(2011)

Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to
HKFRS 11

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 1

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation and
HKAS 38 Amortisation

Amendments to
HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to
HKAS 27 (2011)

Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Annual Improvements ~Amendments to a number of
2012-2014 Cycle HKFRSs

Notes to Financial Statements
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CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
12 and HKAS 28 (2011), amendments to HKFRS
11, HKFRS 14, amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
41, amendments to HKAS 27 (2011), and certain
amendments included in the Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle, which are not relevant to the
preparation of the Group’s financial statements,
the nature and the impact of the amendments are
described below:

(a) Amendments to HKAS 1 include narrow-focus
improvements in respect of the presentation
and disclosure in financial statements. The
amendments clarify:

(i) the materiality requirements in HKAS 1;

(i)  that specific line items in the statement of
profit or loss and the statement of financial
position may be disaggregated;

(i) that entities have flexibility as to the order
in which they present the notes to financial
statements; and

(iv) that the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method
must be presented in aggregate as a single
line item, and classified between those
items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the
requirements that apply when additional subtotals
are presented in the statement of financial
position and the statement of profit or loss. The
amendments have had no significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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2.2 CHANGES

IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 clarify
the principle in HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 that
revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits
that are generated from operating a business (of
which the asset is part) rather than the economic
benefits that are consumed through the use of
the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method
cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and
equipment and may only be used in very limited
circumstances to amortise intangible assets.
The amendments are applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group as the
Group has not used a revenue-based method for
the calculation of depreciation of its non-current
assets.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs Z2012-2014
Cycle issued in October 2014 sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs. Details of
the amendments are as follows:

o HKFRS 5 MNon-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations: Clarifies
that changes to a plan of sale or a plan
of distribution to owners should not be
considered to be a new plan of disposal,
rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. Accordingly, there is no change in the
application of the requirements in HKFRS 5.
The amendments also clarify that changing
the disposal method does not change the
date of classification of the non-current
assets or disposal group held for sale. The
amendments are applied prospectively. The
amendments have had no impact on the
Group as the Group did not have any change
in the plan of sale or disposal method in
respect of the disposal group held for sale
during the year.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions?®

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?®

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?®

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Leases?®
Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses’

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs" @

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

& Not mandatory effective date yet determined but available for

adoption
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS 2 in
August 2016 that address three main areas: the
effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of
a cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction
with net settlement features for withholding a
certain amount in order to meet the employee’s tax
obligation associated with the share-based payment;
and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash-settled to equity-
settled. The amendments clarify that the approach
used to account for vesting conditions when measuring
equity-settled share-based payments also applies to
cash-settled share-based payments. The amendments
introduce an exception so that a share-based payment
transaction with net share settlement features for
withholding a certain amount in order to meet the
employee’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety
as an equity-settled share-based payment transaction
when certain conditions are met. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that if the terms and conditions
of a cash-settled share-based payment transaction
are modified, with the result that it becomes an
equity-settled share-based payment transaction, the
transaction is accounted for as an equity-settled
transaction from the date of the modification. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1
January 2018. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version
of HKFRS S, bringing together all phases of the financial
instruments project to replace HKAS 39 and all
previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard introduces
new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 89 from 1 January 2018. The Group
is currently assessing the impact of the standard upon
adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements in
HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to
be applied prospectively. The previous mandatory
effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However,
the amendments are available for application now.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in
HKFRS 15 provide a more structured approach for
measuring and recognising revenue. The standard
also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation
of total revenue, information about performance
obligations, changes in contract assets and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current
revenue recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In
June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues on identifying
performance obligations, application guidance on
principal versus agent and licenses of intellectual
property, and transition. The amendments are also
intended to help ensure a more consistent application
when entities adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost
and complexity of applying the standard. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 January 2018 and
is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS 15 upon
adoption.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease, HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives
and HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. The
standard sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and short-term leases. At the commencement date
of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make
lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an asset
representing the right to use the underlying asset
during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses unless the right-of-use asset meets the
definition of investment property in HKAS 40. The
lease liability is subsequently increased to reflect the
interest on the lease liability and reduced for the
lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.
Lessees will also be required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such
as change in the lease term and change in future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate used to determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under
HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases
using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance
leases. The Group expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019 and is currently assessing the impact of
HKFRS 16 upon adoption.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both changes arising from cash
flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will
result in additional disclosure to be provided in the
financial statements. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 January 2017.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 were issued with the purpose
of addressing the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses related to debt instruments measured
at fair value, although they also have a broader
application for other situations. The amendments
clarify that an entity, when assessing whether taxable
profits will be available against which it can utilise a
deductible temporary difference, needs to consider
whether tax law restricts the sources of taxable profits
against which it may make deductions on the reversal
of that deductible temporary difference. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance on how an entity
should determine future taxable profits and explain the
circumstances in which taxable profit may include the
recovery of some assets for more than their carrying
amount. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 January 2017.

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the Group’'s share of net assets
under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures

(Continued)

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consclidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate
or joint venture, the Group recognises its share of
any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates
or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates or joint ventures is included as part of the
Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between
the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
upon loss of significant influence or joint control and
the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture
is classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS S Non-current Assets Held for
Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair value of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at the fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. \Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties,
derivative financial instruments and certain equity
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation technigues for which

the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lower level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, properties under development, completed
properties held for sale, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expenses categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of
such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

24 XTEEFHBRBE(E)

N EEFE(E)
REERMIERRERNEERA
EfmE  NEBRSREPRE
RIFEEE AT EEFESHBENR
EARI S ASE  EFFEHEIE
ETERTSEFNEEEHEE
% o

FEMEERE

WERREMABETR  XEAH
2EFAREE(FE EED
X FBFHERAZNRTIYE K
ERBEE  TREE REWE
RFEEHEZHERERINETT
MERS - BlEfstEE 2R KM
RE-RIBEEELEZHERE
REBOTREBLINEME EL LA
BEMELAZRSREGELEBR
T AUEREREEMB RS
EXBMETE)  MEEZARER
BREEXRELEUZERE
B E R EER G ERA AR
SERE) YIRBEHEEEE

EEEEREERBEAIKDNE
B D EERBEER - R EE
REER  AtERRERERR
REBEHSF G EBEREERR
BEFERBRZBEAMREFRE
HE - BEEBRIREELEHEAB
BaRPHEREEEDE —HDH
PSSR RF0ER o

REBEREARDSETHE - A

BEEBRTBEEXAIEELRD -
fid HIRERZFHR - K& E K E
REEHEET - BREEN - ERE
EEE A WEKEE 2 fhat IR &
B ZEERERCER ZRE
BRAAED - EBETSEER
REERNEBEFEEEERBERS
B2BRTMEE < kM E kR
ERTE H) o B EREESE
ZHBEDGFAREEARR 2 BER
A o

20164 )

Bz IR AR

a1
T

A B

Wiz,

s

iz,




o,

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7 ¥R R M RE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+-HA=+—H

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person,

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group;

or

= 148 =
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
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conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv] one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the assets as a replacement. \Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

24 XTEEFHBRBE(E)

BEALT(E)
(b) (&)

(vii) (@) PTEE R A ¥ %
EREEATENLEB
ZEBCKZERE 2
RENZBREEAE
&

(vii) ZEEHEMBEED
FERIKERARBAER
SAE BN RAF R
BEEE A BRI -

ME - - BERKEBERTE
BREZTEI WX BEMRE
T3z PR ANE R R 5H T 8 R AR DR E
EBRIE - WE - BERREIK
AEBREBEENEHZIUERF
R B8 B 3 G R B E A& PR I 2 (E
M EZEKA -

ME BELRREBEHRBRERMY
RZEERFREFRX  —RRE
FHIMBEEARIER o M S HER
BRE IEREZAXKREERT
BPFERMEREERAE - HWHF -
BMEEZREBEZERRNDATHE
B RAAKREBZERNERSE
BREERFEH2ENEELRE
BHEREITE -

20164 )

.

ERERAR

T

A B

S

“n

W%

—:? 14|:§




il I'J’%
150 =

It

Wi,
S

Digital China Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements
B 75 R 2K B

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+-HA=+—H

N\

&+

24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Continued)

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, any
difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property up to the date of
change in use is accounted for as movements in the
asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset
basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the
statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or loss
to the extent of the deficit previously charged. An
annual transfer from the asset revaluation reserve to
retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued -carrying
amount of an asset and the depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued asset,
the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is transferred
to retained profits as a movement in reserves.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Over the lease terms or
2% to 5%, whichever
is shorter

Land and buildings

Over the lease terms
or 20% to 33%,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Fixtures and office equipment 10% to 33%

Motor vehicles 10% to 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment property comprises completed property
and property under construction or re-development.
Investment properties are interests in land and
buildings (including the leasehold interest under an
operating lease for a property which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale
in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investment properties (Continued)

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use,
and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted
for as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated
under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above. For a transfer from inventories to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For a transfer from properties under development
or completed properties held for sale to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-current assets and disposal group held for

sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified
as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be
recovered principally through a sales transaction rather
than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of
such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be
highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held
for sale regardless of whether the Group retains a non-
controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than
investment properties and financial assets) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell.
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Patents and licences

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and
the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised using
the straight-line basis over commercial lives of
the underlying products not exceeding five years,
commencing from the date when the products are put
into commercial production.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Systems software

Purchased systems software is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, and is amortised on the straight-
line basis over its estimated useful life of ten years.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the lessee, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. When
the Group is a lessor under finance leases, an amount
representing the minimum lease payment receivables
and initial direct costs is included in the statement
of financial position as a finance lease receivable.
The difference between the sum of the minimum
lease payment receivables together with initial direct
costs and their present value would be recognised as
unearned finance income. Unearned finance income
is recognised over the period of the lease using the
effective interest rate method.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of
any incentives received from the lessor are charged
to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land premiums under operating leases are
initially stated at the cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Properties under development
Properties under development are intended to be held
for sale after completion.
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Properties under development (Continued)
Properties under development are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value and comprise
land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable
to such properties incurred during the development
period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties
held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined by
an apportionment of the total land and buildings costs
attributable to unsold properties. Net realisable value
is estimated by the directors based on the prevailing
market prices, on an individual property basis.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair
value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments as defined
by HKAS 38.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with positive net changes in fair value presented
as other income and gains and negative net changes in
fair value presented as other expenses in the statement
of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in other expenses for receivables.
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments and debt securities. Equity investments
classified as available for sale are those which are
neither classified as held for trading nor designated
as at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities
in this category are those which are intended to be
held for an indefinite period of time and which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or in response
to changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair
value, with unrealised gains or losses recognised as
other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in other
income and gains, or until the investment is determined
to be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss
is reclassified from the available-for-sale investment
revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss
in other expenses. Interest and dividends earned whilst
holding the available-for-sale financial investments are
reported as interest income and dividend income,
respectively and are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
and wealth management financial products cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for
that investment or (b) the probabilities of the various
estimates within the range cannot be reasonably
assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

(Continued)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the
near term are still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these
financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management
has the ability and intention to hold the assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the
date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or
loss over the remaining life of the investment using the
effective interest rate. Any difference between the new
amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised
over the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)
When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred assets to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses whether impairment exists
individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the assets in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and
for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment
of impairment.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(Continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in the statement of profit or loss.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment
losses on these assets are not reversed.

2AXTEEHBRBE(E)

EEEEREGE)
UBHEEIES Rz E M EE
(&)

ERERMNNRESEIREENR
HEEGFERKRNRSRE(TE
ERAEEMNAREERR)NR
BEZEERAE - BEHRERSR
EZRENZAEEREEZRAE
RAX(AFERFAHEZER
ME)HTEA -

BEREEZREERBERFBRE
BYEHLERE - MARMRESENIE
BRPHER - MBWAREHR
FREETHEELE  UERAGFER
BEERFEAUATRRAKESREZ
MERE - EFR R EEKEER T
AR BEBEYRRKREEEER
BHMEAEERRCERKCER
ERE B W -

REER IR - MEGHFHREBR
ZEBREAERREREEZEMM
KEANSOR A - Rl ST ATRE AR 2 R (B &
1B RE A B AR B Mg iR
Do fHEMEBENRRYE - Al
SHEFAARBRRANZEMER -

A E S R < B E
HEFEBTRBR - FEAASEaT
ERXFEEMARRAFEEIEKZ
FLMRETEHBREESE - %
HZEITREIAFGHELANUX
NZETAGEZITEEEHRTRR
BEEE AIBRSBERZEEL
EEEAERARRESREZRE
(ZEUEREEZRTTSEER
RFBMIZERAIR - ZFEEZ
WMEBETTREE -



24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the statement of profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the statement of profit or
loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available for sale are not reversed through the
statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair
value after impairment are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

(Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Future
interest income continues to be accrued based on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income. Impairment losses on debt instruments are
reversed through the statement of profit or loss if the
subsequent increase in fair value of the instruments
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, or as derivatives designated
as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and
other payables and interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
that specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and a
recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge
accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such
as forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments are
initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities
when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of derivatives are taken directly to the statement of
profit or loss.

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held
by the Company or the Group (treasury shares] are
recognised directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss
is recognised in the statement of profit or loss on the
purchase, sales, issue or cancellation of the Group’s
own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consclidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consclidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group
on certain products are recognised based on sales
volume and past experience of the level of repairs
and returns, discounted to their present values as
appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) from contract revenue, on the percentage of
completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Contract accounting” below;

(c) from the rendering of services, on the percentage
of completion basis, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Contracts for services”
below;
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24SUMMARY OF

SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(d)

(e

(f)

(g)

(h)

from the sale of properties, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, which is when the
construction work has been completed and the
properties have been delivered to the buyer.
Deposits and instalments received in respect
of properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current
liabilities;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms;

finance lease income, on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the
net investment of the finance lease or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the net investment of the finance lease;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.

Contract accounting

Contract

revenue comprises the agreed contract

amount and appropriate amounts from variation orders,
claims and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred
comprise equipment and material costs, the costs
of subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed construction overheads.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contract accounting (Continued)

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by
reference to the proportion of work completed to date
to the estimated total work of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management. Where contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as an amount due from contract customers.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract
customers.

Contracts for services

Contract revenue on the rendering of services
comprises the agreed contract amount. Costs of
rendering services comprise labour and other costs
of personnel directly engaged in providing the services
and attributable overheads.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
based on the percentage of completion of the
transaction, provided that the revenue, the costs
incurred and the estimated costs to completion can
be measured reliably. The percentage of completion is
established by reference to the costs incurred to date
as compared to the total costs to be incurred under
the transaction. Where the outcome of a contract
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised only
to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible
to be recovered.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as
they are anticipated by management. Where contract
costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as an amount due from contract customers.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred
to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is treated as an amount due to contract
customers.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled awards

The Company operates two share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the Group’'s operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments. Further details
of the share option schemes are given in note 35(a)
to the financial statements.

The Company operates a restricted share award
scheme (the “RSA Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. An
employee share trust is established and administered
by an independent trustee and is funded by the Group’s
cash contributions. The considerations paid (including
any related transaction costs) by the Company to
purchase shares of the Company for the RSA Scheme
are deducted from equity as an employee share
trust. The administrator of the employee share trust
purchases the Company’'s shares in the open market
as award shares to employees upon vesting. Upon
vesting of the award shares, the corresponding amount
in the employee share-based compensation reserve will
be transferred to the employee share trust. Further
details of the RSA Scheme are given in note 35(b) to
the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled awards with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-settled awards is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled awards at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled awards (Continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date
fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions
being met is assessed as part of the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. \Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a moadification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTES=HHEEEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled awards (Continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Pension schemes
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
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Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF EraidE2mEFREFEs LA i
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes BEeERKREFTE ((RESTE ) 3
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to ZEBEWZETE - HRTIRES -
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The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Where funds have been borrowed generally, and used
for the purpose of obtaining qualifying assets, the
capitalisation rates ranging from 5% to 6% have been
applied to the expenditure on the individual assets.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s
net investment of a foreign operation. These are
recognised in other comprehensive income until the net
investment is disposed of, at which time the cumulative
amount is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in other comprehensive income.
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24SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 FTES=HHEEEE)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation
of a non-monetary item measured at the fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the reporting period.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consclidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties

and owner-occupied properties

The Group determined whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Transfer from completed properties held for sale

to investment properties

Completed properties held for sale are transferred to
investment properties when there is a change in use
with sufficient evidence. The Group determines whether
a change in use has occurred based on assessment
of all relevant facts and circumstances, which include
but are not limited to: (a) a business plan that reflects
the future rental income generated by the property;
(b) the resources to hold and manage an investment
property; (c) legal permissibility for the change in
use; and (d) the commencement of development if the
property requires further development for the change in
use. Any excess of fair value over the original carrying
amount of such properties at the date of transfer was
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. During the year ended 31 December
2015, completed properties held for sale with a total
carrying amount of HK$85,727,000 were transferred
to investment properties due to a change in use, giving
rise to a net fair value gain of HK$15,874,000 in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of

dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of
dividends by certain subsidiaries according to the
relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is
subject to judgement on the plan of the distributions
of dividends.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the management of the
Group has reviewed the Group’s investment properties
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties
are held under a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over
time. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred
taxation on investment properties, the directors have
determined that the presumption that investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered through sale is rebutted.
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7 ¥R R M RE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+-HA=+—H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

(Continued)

Accordingly, the Group recognises deferred tax in
respect of the changes in fair value of the investment
properties based on management’s best estimate
assuming future tax consequences through usage of
such properties of rental purpose, rather than through
sale. The final tax outcome could be different from the
deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated
financial statements should the investment properties
are subsequently disposed of by the Group, rather than
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties are consumed substantially by leasing over
time. In the event the investment properties are being
disposed of, the Group may be liable to higher tax upon
disposal considering the impact of corporate income
tax (“CIT”) and land appreciation tax (“LAT").

Consolidation of entities in which the Group

holds less than a majority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls DCITS even though
it owns less than 50% of the voting rights. This is
because the Group is the single largest shareholder of
DCITS with a 40.43% (2015: 42.44%) equity interest.
Although the Group does not own a majority of the equity
interests in DCITS, taking into account the Group's power
to participate in the operational and financial activities of
DCITS, distribution of key shareholders and their beneficial
shareholders as well as historical voting patterns, and
the existence of any contractual arrangement among
the shareholders and/or their beneficial shareholders, if
any, the directors of the Company are of the view that
the equity holdings in DCITS are dispersed in a way that
other shareholders have not organised and the practical
risk to organise their holdings to outvote the Group in
the shareholders’ meetings of DCITS is remote so that
the Group can still exercise more voting power than the
minority shareholders. Therefore, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the Company has de facto
control over DCITS.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Recognition of employee benefit expense for

equity-settled awards compensation costs

The Company operates two share option schemes and
the RSA Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to employees. The fair values of these
equity-settled awards were valued by an external valuer
using the binomial model. These valuations require the
Company to make estimates about certain key inputs,
including the dividend yield, expected volatility, risk-free
interest rate and expected life of options, and hence
they are subject to uncertainty.

Besides, the grant of share options and restricted
share units (“RSUs") is conditional upon the satisfaction
of specified vesting conditions, including service
periods and performance conditions linked to financial
performance measure. Judgement is required to take
into account the vesting conditions and adjust the
number of RSUs and share options included in the
measurement of share-based compensation costs.

The cumulative expense recognised for these equity-
settled rewards at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period. No expense is
recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December 2016
was HK$2,195,376,000 (2015: HK%$1,215,976,000).
Further details are given in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Revaluation of investment properties

As disclosed in note 15 to the financial statements,
certain investment properties including completed
investment properties and investment properties
under construction are revalued at the end of the
reporting period on an open market, existing use basis
by independent professional valuers. These valuations
were based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the judgement, information
about current prices in an active market for similar
properties is considered and assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the end
of the reporting period are used. The carrying amount
of investment properties measured at fair value at
31 December 2016 was HK$3,046,367,000 (2015:
HK$2,123,249,000). The significant methods and
assumptions used by valuers in estimating the fair value
of investment properties are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Investment properties under construction are
measured based on estimates prepared by independent
real estate valuation experts, except where such values
cannot be reliably determined.

E X E s HE R &5 (&)

LS E ST
TXHEHARBEHRBARR 2 E
EREMTHARREMGT 2 EMbE
BRF - ZERAREEARARATLE
EYRARRMBFEERHEERA
BZHREEFHERFE -

72 Rl A A
AEBELEF—AETHER
DHRBRE Rt ENESKEE
ZHREEXBEMNZHFEREERESD
EEr - EEFHEREER  ~&E
ANt EHRSELEENAKRE
HEZBERAN ARBREZEAEZE
BELGEZSEHERSRAZEE -
RZE—ARF+-A=+—HHH
AR (E 4576 #2,195,376,0007T
—ET—h%F:5%1,215,976,000
JL) o HE— S HFBE NI R E
B 5E17 o

REYE L E

B an L B RS AR M FEN15ATIREE - B
TREMEBFEEZTHRIEEMER
EREEME - MBI EELER
RBEBRRELAHMERBITRS
EESH - HEMADIBESEBR
RETEBAHE MZEBRIGEE
TEHARZE WAl RIBERE R
#ER o RMERHE RS EEEAUY
XEFERMER2RTERER
VTeXEBFEARBREHEREHIRT
TRZBR - RZE—XRF+-A
=T —HAUAFEEFENREY
¥R {E A8 13,046,367,0007T
—E—RF : E¥2123,249,000
JC) o HEMREHFTIREMERTF
EBEMAZEZFERBREN I
B 7% 3k 2% i 5£15 o

ERREMENRERBIEME
HEBEREROMEERE - 1HEF
ZAEEDATAAISEEE o



SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment assessment for accounts receivable
The policy for impairment assessment for accounts
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation
of collectability and ageing analysis of accounts
receivables and on the judgement of management.
A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Group
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional impairment
may be required. Net impairment of accounts
receivable of HK$70,720,000 (2015: reversal of
impairment of accounts receivable of HK$31,442,000)
was recognised in the consclidated statement of
profit loss for the year. The carrying amount of
accounts receivables as at 31 December 2016 was
HK$3,961,755,000 (2015: HK$3,624,188,000).

Recognition of contract revenue

The Group recognises revenue according to the
percentage of completion of individual contracts.
The stage of completion is estimated by reference
to the proportion of work completed to date to the
estimated total work of the relevant contracts, and
the corresponding contract revenue is also estimated
by management. Due to the nature of the activity
undertaken in these contracts, the date at which the
activity is entered into and the date at which the activity
is completed usually fall into different accounting
periods. Hence, the Group reviews and revises the
estimates of both contract revenue and contract costs
for each contract as the contract progresses. Where
the actual contract revenue is less than estimated or
the actual contract costs are more than estimated, a
foreseeable loss may arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for obsolete inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories
of the Group and makes provision for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer suitable for sales. Management estimates the
net realisable value for such inventories based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. A considerable amount of judgement is
required in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
inventories. If the market conditions were to change,
resulting in a change in provision for obsolete items, the
difference will be recorded in the period it is identified.
Provisions for and write-off of obsolete inventories
of HK$10,238,000 (2015: HK%$11,978,000) was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss for the year. The carrying amount of inventories as
at 31 December 2016 was HK$788,146,000 (2015:
HK$812,451,000).

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than

goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the
fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Recognition and allocation of construction costs

on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to completed properties
held for sale upon completion. Apportionment of these
costs will be recognised in the statement of profit or
loss upon the recognition of the sale of the properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs
and other costs relating to the sale of the properties,
these costs are accrued by the Group based on
management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide
the development projects into phases. Specific costs
directly related to the development of a phase are
recorded as the costs of such phase. Costs that are
common to phases are allocated to individual phases
based on the estimated saleable area of the entire
project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related
cost allocation is different from the initial estimates,
any increase or decrease in the development costs and
other costs would affect the profit or loss in future
years.

Recognition of share-based payment expenses

for shares issued at discount

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company entered into a subscription agreement with
the Company’s directors, other employees of the Group
and a trust company who held issued shares on behalf
of certain management of the Group to issue shares
at discount to the then market price of the Company’s
shares for the purpose to provide them with incentives
and rewards for their services rendered to the Group.
The difference between the total fair values of the
shares issued at discount and the total consideration
received by the Group is accounted for as share-based
payment expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Recognition of share-based payment expenses

for shares issued at discount (Continued)

The fair values of these shares issued at discount were
valued by an external valuer, taking into account the
terms and conditions of these shares as stipulated
in the subscription agreement upon which the shares
were issued. These valuations require the Company to
make estimates about certain key inputs, in particular
the liquidity discounts resulting from the lock-up
periods of these shares, and hence they are subject
to uncertainty.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised
or the deferred tax liability is settled. Certain entities
of the Group were recognised as “High New Technology
Enterprises” in Mainland China and entitled to a
preferential corporate income tax rate of 15% for a
three-year period. Howso Technology was recognised
as “Key Software Enterprise” in national programming
and entitled to a preferential corporate income tax
rate of 10% for a period from 1 January 2016 to 31
December 2017. The tax regulations call for a renewal
process after the expiry. For the measurement of
deferred tax assets and liabilities, judgement is required
to determine whether these entities will continue to
meet the criteria of “High New Technology Enterprises”
and estimate the tax rates expected to be applied.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised based upon the likely timing and amounts
of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. The carrying amounts of deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at 31 December
2016 were HK$68,176,000 (2015: HK$78,450,000)
and HK$247,522,000 (2015: HK$84,963,000),
respectively. The amount of unrecognised tax losses
and certain deductible temporary differences at
31 December 2016 was HK$550,907,000 (2015:
HK$197,684,000). Further details are given in note 23
to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

CIT

The Group is subject to CIT in various regions. As a
result of the fact that certain matters relating to CIT
have not been confirmed by the local tax bureaus,
objective estimates and judgements based on currently
enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies
are required in determining the provision for CIT. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts originally recorded, the differences
will impact on the CIT and tax provisions in the period
in which the differences realise.

LAT

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision
for LAT is based on management’s best estimates
according to its understanding of the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by
the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its
LAT calculations and payments with the tax authorities
for certain property development projects. The final
outcome could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, and any differences will impact the
LAT expenses and the related provision in the period
in which the differences realise.

Fair values of derivative financial instruments
Where the fair values of derivative financial instruments
recorded in the statement of financial position cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined
using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement
is required in establishing fair values. The judgements
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair values of
derivative financial instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets
The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-
sale and recognises movements of its fair value in
equity. When the fair value declines, management
makes assumptions about the decline in value to
determine whether there is an impairment that should
be recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
Group also recognises unlisted equity investments
as available-for-sale and states them at cost less
impairment. Losses arising from the impairment of such
investments should be recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. Impairment of available-for-sale financial
assets of HK$3,599,000 (2015: HK%$28,994,000)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year. The aggregate carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets measured
at cost less impairment is HK$3,636,1939,000 (2015:
HK$409,677,000), of which HK$779,784,000 (2015:
HK$404,788,000) and HK$2,856,415,000 (2015:
HK$4,889,000) were included in non-current assets
and current assets, respectively, at 31 December
2016.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information of the three continuing business
groups are summarised as follows:

(@) the “DCITS” segment: Leading IT service provider
in China’s IT industry specialised in proprietary
software, services, Cloud Computing and Big Data
analysis persisting with the strategy of integrating
Sme@rt City and Sm@rt Agriculture;

(b) the “Supply Chain Management Strategy Unit”
segment: Operating through Instant Logistics
to provide comprehensive intermediary and
backstage logistics services for corporate
customers, e-commerce platforms, branded
service providers and individuals, while actively
exploring Internet-based self-branded maintenance
services; and

E X E s HE R &5 (&)

T BRI & 5 (88)
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A3 599,000 (ZE—HF
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) the “New Business” segment: Including the
“‘Sme@rt City Service Group” which is the provision
of all-encompassing Sm@rt City services for
city administrators, enterprises and citizens
based on “one centre and three platforms”
(the urban information management centre, the
integrated citizen service platform, the integrated
enterprise service platform and the integrated
city administration platform); and the “Financial
Service Strategy Unit” which is the provision of
financial services, such as financing, factoring,
leasing, guarantee, etc., to internal departments
as well as third party customers.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on the reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit before tax except that unallocated
interest income, unallocated finance costs, unallocated
corporate income and gains and unallocated corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets,
cash and cash equivalents, investments in joint
ventures, investments in associates, available-for-sale
investments and other unallocated corporate assets as
these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, deferred tax liabilities and
other unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.

q.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EZ45&H&EH(48)
(Continued)
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain TEREJINAEBBE-_ZT—F
asset, liability and expenditure information for the MZFE—RFE+=AH —Jr*EIJJ:ﬁ

EREDMZBA  EMEETE
E -BEREREH-

Group’s operating segments for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

DCITS Supply Chain Services New Business Total continuing operations
BNHEEL BB RS
LT HEREERBAN HEB BREEXBET
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
—AF | ZT-02F | ZB-AF | ZF-1F | ZB-X”E | ZF-01F | ZB-AE | Z2-5F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETTT BT BETL BETT BETL BETT BETT
Segment revenue: AHBEA:
Sales to external customers HETHNER 9,208,612 | 8,156,450 | 2,251,883 | 2,080,118 790,864 394,104 |12,251,359 |10,630,672
Segment gross profit ABER 1,759,148 | 1,646,574 358,832 345,372 385,724 224,024 | 2,503,704 | 2,215,970
Segment results AREE 418,402 537,266 37,848 69,145 127,498 145,533 583,748 751,944
Interest income, other unallocated  FIEMA + K5 BEUA K
income and gains 7 b J ) )
e i d gai Y 34 8,256 41,639 45168 | 104,058
= = -
= 188 == Other unallocated expenses APBEX = — (369,236) (174,841)
Finance costs BERK (65,758) (31,354) (196,989) (73,685)
Share of profits and EAETHIRRZEF R
. losses of: B
=] Joint ventures HRZH SR (3,058) 2,493 39,247 0,817
& Associates BE A 8,345 1,904 35,775 21,786
=
2
c VNS
< Profit before tax FR BT A 366,187 551,948 137,713 670,879
© Income tax expense ka4 (78,102) | (103,488) (148,743) | (207.371)
&
- Profit/(loss) for the year AEEEF/(58) 288,085 448,480 (11,030) | 463,508
(5]
=i
E
= DCITS Supply Chain Services New Business Total continuing operations  Discontinued operation Consolidated
n
o0 BNUBESRERG
° ARAF HREREERKAT FER BREEERAT FRAEEER &8
:% 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
g ZE-AE| R | CE-AE| —FR-If | CR-AE| ZF-REF| C¥-AE| —R-REF| C®-AE| —FR-1f | C¥-AE| —F-1f
5 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(E ERTR RETT ENTR EETTL RRTR RETT ERTR RETT ENTR EETTL RRTR ERTT
=Y
o
Assets and liabilities ~ EEREHE
Segment assets ABEE 9,588,737 | 8,292,824 801,337 832,269 | 4,508,477 | 5390,710 | 14,898,551 | 14,515,803 —| 17681689 | 14,898,551 | 32197492
Investments in joint REEREZ
ventures ®E 23,000 12101 1,008,013 929,439 = —| 1,008,013 929,439
Investments in associates B 22277 421,752 414,772 1,629,520 | 1,623,804 o 43398 | 1,629,520 | 1,667,202
Available-for-sale fEhEL
investments RE 515,699 a.217 3,808,654 596,603 —| 1267771 | 3808654 | 1,864,374
Unallocated assets FABAE = - 2,371,383 827,856 - —| 2,371,383 827856
Total assets BEE 10,549,188 | 8,760,914 23,716,121 | 18,493,505 — | 18992,858 | 23,716,121 | 37,486,363
Segment liabilities AHaR 5,334,727 | 4777440 787119 586,471 | 4,060,630 | 2,404,130 | 10,182,476 7,768,041 — | 15,204,052 | 10,182,476 | 22,972,093
Unallocated liabilies ~ AARAMR - - 3061732 | 3219953 - —| 3081732 | 3213953
Total liabilities aafk 5,334,727 | 4777440 13,244,208 | 10987994 — | 15,204,052 | 13,244,208 | 26,192,046
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EZHE&F ()
(Continued)
DCITS Supply Chain Services New Business Total continuing operations
BNBEEERBRA
ARAT HEREBRRAR HEH BESEERE
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Z2-XE | Z2-1F | ZB-RE | ZT-1F | ZB-RE | ZT-1F | ZB-KRE | ZT-1fF
BETT BEFT ik BT BETR BEFL BETT BEFT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Other segment information: Hitrp HEH
Depreciation of property, nE BERREZ
plant and equipments e 41,520 52,293 20,129 16,731 23,671 31112 85,320 100,138
Unallocated amounts Lvr -t 516 570
85,836 100,708
Amortisation of prepaid land Bt A BH
premium 549 = = = 2,052 3,890 2,601 3,890
Amortisation of other HthmpAESH
intangible assets 14,601 10,705 = = = 1,636 14,601 12,341
Impairment of other HthmFEAERE
intangible assets = = = = = 19,586 = 19,586
Capital expenditure* BART* 815,190 58,418 40,877 24,090 66,777 195,872 922,844 278,380
Unallocated amounts Lvar E 533 3,442
923,377 281,822
Impairment/(reversal of EUREHRRERZEAE,/
impairment) of accounts and (RERE)
bills receivables 63,413 (38,442) 1,691 (1,983) 5,616 8,983 70,720 (31,442)
Provision/(reversal of provisions) ~ BETF & & s /(B EER)
for and write-off of obsolete R
inventories 11,113 12,492 (885) (514) 10 = 10,238 11,978
Impairment of finance lease EYRERESE
receivables HE - - - - 20,102 4,272 20,102 4,272
Impairment of prepayments and BN HERE M EKFE
other receivables HE = 28 = = = = - 28
Impairment of an available-for-sale At &2 B A HE
investment = = = = = = 3,599 28,994

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and
equipment, prepaid land premiums, investment properties and
other intangible assets including assets from the acquisition

of subsidiaries.

EARXBREME BEERRE B
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OPERATING SEGMENT
(Continued)

Geographical information

Since over 90% of the Group’s revenue from external
customers is generated in Mainland China and over
90% of the non-current assets of the Group (except
for investments in associates) are located in Mainland
China, no geographic information is presented.

INFORMATION

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
there was no revenue derived from transactions with
a single external customer which individually amounted
to 10% of the Group’s revenue.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods and
properties sold, after allowances for returns and trade
discounts; an appropriate of contract revenue; gross
rental income received and receivable from investment
properties; and the value of services rendered to
customers, net of business tax, value-added tax and
government surcharges.

4.

EESBEHR)

ih & & ¥
ARAEEREEHIINEE ZW A
BIOO%RHFEHKNEEEBAEE
(BBt E AR 2% &N B i1B90%
IERBNEEMA PR - e &
EEER o

ITEEFEHN
RBE-F—AER-F-BF+

“A=T—HLEFE AEEHRE
ERREE@ERNEINEF RS W
ABEREEZWAI0%IA £ -

WX~ B i N\ B A
W AIRHE SRR E 2 R FE
(BRI RE BN AR B
ZAKWA fRA NS WERR
UM BB URAESR
GRS 2 BEGNGEEH - HME
BRBRHE) -



Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA Hibl A\ RIS

(Continued) (88)
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains from FELEEG 2 K A Rz 2
continuing operations is as follows: DT
2016 2015
—E-RE —Z-IfF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it BETT BETT
b
Revenue PN g
Systems integration business AOEKES 4,826,370 4,522,352 S
Technical service business BT R % 2,573,861 2,108,691 =
Logistics business N E S 1,124,853 851,699 D(;j
Application software development business ~ EREHEE £% 1,038,270 691,498 Eﬂ
E-commerce supply chain services business = 74 {tf & 5 R 7% 894,943 953,842 &
Agricultural informatisation business BERBLER 324,289 330,761 i
Financial specified equipment business CHERRBHEER 445,822 503,149 =
Financial services business SRBRBER 364,783 80,944 &
Others Hit 658,168 587,736 -‘@w@i
12,251,359 10,630,672 %@;:I:E@
Other income Ht g A
Government grants+ T T 65 B+ 60,102 65,338
Interest income FSMA 14,165 44,002
Income from wealth management BRHEMBA
financial products 21,159 8,543
Dividend income from available-for-sale AEHE s REL
investments REKA 8,710 8,864
Others it 7,883 19114
112,019 145,881
Gains I 2
Fair value gains on investment properties, net REWMEZ AFEERZE 15 134,888 141,848
Gain on derivative financial instruments fTEemI AR = 6,276
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE-—HBAR M= 39 = 35
Gain on disposal of the equity HE—MEe2tE
interest in a joint venture B2 s 72 —
Gain on deemed partial disposal of the BRI E— & N a2
equity interests an associate DR W E = 30,661
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEARLEZREZ
investments W 26,420 26,270
Others At 3 4,238
161,383 209,328
273,402 355,209
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5. BEVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

[ConUnued]

Various government grants have been received for the sale of
self-developed software products approved by the tax authority
in the People’s Republic of China (*PRC”), the development of
software products in Mainland China, and the investments in
specific provinces in Mainland China. Government grants for
which related expenditure has not yet been undertaken are
included in deferred income (non-current portion) and other
payables and accruals (current portion) in the statement
of financial position,
conditions or contingencies relating to the government grants
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

respectively. There are no unfulfilled

5 WA HbBA R &

(48)
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. Bx¥iauiFl
The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations RNE BB EEB 2 BRB AT 5
is arrived at after charging/(crediting): B&MB(GEA) ¢
2016 2015
-NE “T-AF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it BETT BETT
Cost of inventories sold EHEEZKA 5,719,147 5,676,150 ﬁ
Auditor's remuneration 2 Gl kA 3,322 4815 2
Depreciation nE 85,836 100,708 -
Amortisation of prepaid land premiums AN i 16 2,601 3,830 E
Research and development costs* MERFAEKA 519,965 510,700 jﬁé
Amortisation of other intangible assets* HEp EE#E~ 18 14,601 12,341 =
Impairment of other intangible assets* H o & R E* 18 — 19,586 e
Minimum lease payments under operating ii@&@%ZE’f g §
leases in respect of land and buildings HERSE 129,891 79,915 =
Provisions for and write-off of obsolete BRETERERME W
inventories* 10,238 11,978 é‘\ %}_
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of ERET R EREE %’a 19;§
accounts and hills receivables* RE/CRERR)* 27 70,720 (31,442) i
Impairment of finance lease receivables* ERmERENARNE 22 20,102 4,272
Impairment of prepayments and other ARNRERE M
receivables* JE MR R E* - 28
Impairment of available-for-sale investments*  a] 4t (& 2 #% & i B * 21 3,599 28,994
Loss on deemed partial disposal of the RIEHE—RAE 20N
equity interest in an associate* BoERZBR 33,740 -
Loss on disposal of items of property, HENE BEREHEL
plant and equipment B#E 4,588 4,312
Foreign exchange differences, net* INEFERR 163,198 150,652
Employee benefit expense (including EERMAX(BEES
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): e (41:28)) :
Wages and salaries TER%E 1,512,017 1,276,947
Share-based payment expenses for shares ~ Z1THERH 2
issued at discount AR & R 49,735 —
Pension scheme contributions** FIRE IR+ 206,655 100,877
Other benefits At 228,928 239,040
1,997,335 1,638,864
Direct operating expenses (including REDHESNRENER
repairs and maintenance) arising on EREEER
rental-earning investment properties (BREEENRE) 25,098 6.353
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

* %k

The amortisation of certain other intangible assets, the
impairment of certain other intangible assets, the provisions
for and write-off of obsolete inventories, the impairment/
(reversal of impairment) of accounts and bills receivables, the
impairment of finance lease receivables, the impairment of
prepayment and other receivables, the impairment of available-
for-sale investments, the loss on deemed partial disposal of
the equity interest in an associate, research and development
costs and foreign exchange loss, net are included in “Other
expenses, net” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had no material forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
pension schemes in future years (2015: Nil).

7. FINANCE COSTS

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations

BR %1 A ik I (48)
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SEEEET Y BEREZ A

is as follows: T
2016 2015
—E—-XRE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥TT BT T
Interest on bank borrowings RITE KA S 181,850 113,573
Interest on corporate bonds ANEMEHT B 11,645 —
Interest on discounted bills EREEERFS 15,716 5,364
Less: Interest capitalised B BARMEF B (12,222) (45,252)
196,989 73,685




DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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EERTTHERMNE

RAFERNZE S N7 E
T NIRBEEBBMEXIMERA
AEFLEMRNTERRAUD &
B REEPIZFE388(1)(@) ~ (b)  (c) &
AEEAR(BRBEESNEERR
I8 WEWMT :

Group
KEH
2016 2015
—E—-XF —T—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Fees e 1,500 1,564
Other emoluments: H B &
Salaries, allowances and H& EMEED
benefits in kind & A 12,095 14,653
Performance related bonuses FRIREE 2 B4 7,010 14,390
Share-based compensation AR D 24 2 B &
(note) (K1 7E) 29,231 5
Pension scheme contributions BRIKREFHEI R 125 164
48,461 0g,212
49,961 30,776

20164 )

.

ERERAR

T

A B

S

“n

H%._

s




ﬁ!ﬂ 17

Ems —
% |\t§
“in :

Digital China Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7 ¥R R M RE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+-HA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EER{THAZMNE (E)
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUKHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive RAFEAND N TELIFE
directors during the year were as follows: MITESZHREWT:
2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis & X R T4 300 300
Ms. NI Hong (Hope) {52 4T /) 48 300 300
Mr. ONG Ka Lueng, Peter’ F R EE KA 150 300
Dr. LIU Yun, John grEt 300 300
Ms. YAN Xiaoyan (note 1) 8% e 22 &= (A7 7E 1) — —
Prof. Lai Daniel, B8S, JP? FEHEHIX © BBS, UP? 300 64
/%5'- 1,350 1,264

Retired on 30 June 2016

2 Appointed on 15 October 2015

Note 1. Ms. YAN Xiaoyan waived her entitlements to
director’s fees during the term of her tenure. The
amount of director’s fee being waived during the year
was HK$300,000 (2015: HK$300,000).

Saved as disclosed above, there were no other
emoluments payable to the independent non-
executive directors during the year (2015: Nil).

1 RZB-—RENA=ZTHRME

2 R-ZE—hAF+ATHEBE
ZE

HaE1: BERZTREERTE
EHHENESNE 2
F o RAEE R R ER
# £ ¢ A% %300,000
TR Z=ZF — h: B
300,0007T) ©

Bk E X PTIEE SN KA
B A & F B IF AT
EEEMEMLMe (-0
FE) e
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERNITHAHEMLS(E)
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) BITES FkHTESER
director and the chief executive THAER
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related Share-based scheme Total
Fees in kind k I i contributi remuneration
E R4 REEE Py BikE
ik RENER A Xffz#e TEMR HemE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 4
©
BETT BETT BT BETT BETT BETT =
o~
[Note]
(H&t) [
g
L
2016 “E-RE T
%
. . = sl
Executive directors: HITES: Ay
Mr. GUO Wei BrkE = 7,622 4,673 28,752 56 41,103 %
Mr. LIN Yang* wEEE = 3,828 2,337 479 56 6,700 =
Mr. YAN Guorong' BERLLE = 645 = = 13 658 =
— 12,085 7,010 29,231 125 48,461 '1'1”'%
=
= 197 &=
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Andrew Y. YAN? R T A2 150 = = = = 150
150 12,085 7,010 29,231 125 48,611
Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related Share-based scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses  compensation  contributions  remuneration
Fe - 2H RAIEHE A BR A ERE
Be REDEH ZIEH Xfiz#e Bl Hew®m
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
[Note]
(i)
2015 —E-EF
Executive directors: HiTES:
Mr. GUO Wei BrkE - 7,833 8,486 - 58] 16,474
Mr. LIN Yang* wEE = 4,025 3,645 = 55 7,725
Mr. YAN Guorong BEKLE = 2,695 2,259 5 54 5,013
— 14,653 14,390 5 164 29,212
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Andrew Y. YAN Mk 300 — = = = 300
300 14,653 14,380 5 164 29,512
1 Resigned on 8 March 2016 1 RZZE—XE=ZANBET
B Resigned on 1 July 2016 2 R —<E+A—HEBE
* Mr. LIN Yang is also the chief executive of the Company. * IS ELE TR ARATIHTH]RE
#H o
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8. DIRECTORS’

2

At

—AE+=A=+—H

AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S

REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b)

Executive

directors, a non-executive

director and the chief executive (Continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director
or a chief executive waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration during the year

Notes: (i)

(ii)

In prior years, certain directors of the Company
were granted share options and RSUs, in
respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option schemes and the RSA scheme
of the Company, respectively, further details of
which are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements. The fair values of these options
and RSUs, which have been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, were determined as at
the date of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.

The cumulative expense recognised for these
equity-settled rewards at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement
in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period. No expense
is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest.

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
ordinary shares of the Company were issued
at discount to Mr. GUO Wei and Mr. LIN Yang
under the Subscription Agreement (as define in
note 34(c)) for their services rendered to the
Group, further details of which are set out in
note 34(c) to the financial statements. During
the year, the share-based payment expenses
relating to the shares issued at discount to Mr.
GUO Wei and Mr. LIN Yang were approximately
HK$28,752,000 (2015: Nil) and HK$479,000
(2015: Nil), respectively.

8. EBEERIT

(b)

MEME (&)

HITES  FHUTESK
TR (E)
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BHEIT LM ERRBRE
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T ZRHE -

RBEFE - ARAIHE
TEERARERAEE
1R IR TS M 9 B AR
AR A R A Bl R
X IR &I B {0 22 B &t &
T B8 IR T SR
Bfn - BRAE—
18 B2 ik B 75 3R K Y
A35 c A EBRER
ZRHBA < 2 FEE
TREHAMEE - X
ERERRRR/X
BR %5 89 53 BB HA A £ 1R
BRAWER - MEAR
FEMBHRRZIER
EBHALLEZMS
B o

REREHREES
& H HARE AR A X A5 2
B P e R 2 R At B XX
R 53 8 HA A fE O 1B
R ARAE B S R AL
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— AR AR R AR
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BRI EEEITALQA
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RHBEENESA
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K M 5£34(c) ° RA
FEARN BEAEFE
BEIRGOG TBA
S RIS E Z A
SN -G K)
7578 #08,752,0007T
(=2 —RF:\E) B
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2015: three) directors and chief executive, detail
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining three
(2015: two) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company for the
year are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

AfiGEHMES
REAFEAZ AN G MHESSR
EME(CE—RF =ZR)EFK
THAEY  BEZMEFEER L
XK EBA - AFEEHT=R(=F
—hF:MB) &S HMES QL
ARBNEZTHITRAR) 2HE
ABERT

2016 2015
—EB-RF —ZET-hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Salaries, allowances and Fe o UK

benefits in kind EYEA 4,484 2,765
Performance related bonuses TR 2 TEA 5,549 5,947

Share-based compensation AR 245 2 Bl &
(note) (#ti) 6,497 106
Pension scheme contributions RINBET B K 110 2
16,640 8,820

= IE

The number of non-director and non-chief executive X (= 9
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following bands is as follows:

MIFEERIFTRERESR
ZABEMEEEMNT :

Number of employees

HK$2,000,001
HK$2,500,001
HK$3,000,001
HK$3,500,001
HK$4,000,001
HK$4,500,001
HK$5,000,001
HK$5,500,001
HK$6,000,001
HK$6,500,001
HK$7,000,001
HK$7,500,001

to HK$2,500,000
to HK$3,000,000
to HK$3,500,000
to HK$4,000,000
to HK$4,500,000
to HK$5,000,000
to HK$5,500,000
to HK$6,000,000
to HK$6,500,000
to HK$7,000,000
to HK$7,500,000
to HK$8,000,000

75 2,000,001t £ % %2,500,0007T
75 2,500,001t £ % #3,000,0007T
75 3,000,001t £ % %3,500,0007T
75 3,500,001 £ % %4,000,0007T
75 4,000,001 £ % %4,500,0007T
75 %4,500,0017T £ 7% #5,000,0007C
75 5,000,001 £ 7 #5,500,0007T
75 #5,500,0017T £ 7 %6,000,0007T
7 #6,000,0017T £ % #6,500,0007T
7 6,500,001 7t £ % #7,000,0007T
7 7,000,001t £ % #7,500,0007T
75 #7,500,0017T & 7 %8,000,0007T

EEAH
2016 2015
=F-R"E| ZT-IF
1 1
1 1
1 f—
3 2
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9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(Continued)

Notes: (i) In prior years, certain non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees were granted share
options and RSUs, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option schemes and the RSA
scheme of the Company, respectively, further details of
which are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.
The fair values of these options and RSUs, which have
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period in which the performance and/
or service conditions are fulfilled, were determined as
at the date of grant and the amount included in the
financial statements for the current year is included in
the above non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2016, ordinary
shares of the Company were issued at discount to two
(2015: Nil) non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees under the Subscription Agreement (as
defined in note 34(c)) for their services rendered to the
Group, further details of which are set out in note 34(c)
to the financial statements. During the year, the share-
based payment expenses relating to the shares issued at
discount to non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees were approximately HK$6,497,000
(2015: Nil) in aggregate.

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

9. Afim

og=20)]

(i)

EHMES(E)

RBEFERN » & T &%
FEERIFTREHIESER
ERAEERERS D IR
BARRIE R B R R
B 17 22 B =t 81 2 X BB AR )
ZRHIBD - BREE—THIE
AL B 5 MR MTRES5 © 3%
EERERZREIRD 2 AF
BEDRELEHEE X
RERRBER LRHEHEH
BHAERERAER - Mat
ARNEREFBRRZECH
AL ssHMEEERE
THREZEEHEER S -

REBE-T—XRF+-A=+
—BLEFER  ARARER
EiHEEEERHE34)E
B EERTARR LT ABRS
TRESEHFHEEERIE
TREREENESAEAEE
RUERYE  E—FTFHFBEHR
1t B 75 3 2% BT 7E34(c) » RAR
FERN - BRKRTEERTR
MIETRERRTHNFEESER
SETTER B EE B 2 AR X+
& A A5 # R B16,497,000
TL(ZE—RF:E)-

10. iR HER

2016 2015
—E—XREF —ZE—0E
HK$’'000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Current — Mainland China NH — AR K RE
cIT EEMREH
Charge for the year NG 110,320 137,564
Underprovision/ URIFEE LR
(overprovision) (%)
in prior years 4,991 (37)
LAT £ i IEE R 12,212 18,431
127,523 155,958
Current — Hong Kong RE — BH 17 —
Deferred iR ST 21,203 51,413
Total tax charge for the year REEMBSZHEET 148,743 207,371




10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PRC CIT represents tax charged on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Mainland China. In
general, the Group’s subsidiaries operating in
Mainland China are subject to the PRC CIT rate
of 25% except for certain subsidiaries which are
entitled to preferential tax rates.

PRC LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging
from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of the
land value, being the proceeds from sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including
amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs
and all property development expenditures.

Hong Kong profits tax had been provided at
the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year ended
31 December 2016. Taxes on profit assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates. No provision for Hong Kong profits
tax has been made as the continuing operations
of the Group did not generate any assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2015.

The share of tax charge attributable to
joint ventures of HK$21,457,000 (2015:
HK$12,1776,000) and the share of tax charge
attributable to associates of HK$22,069,000
(2015: HK$6,373,000) of the continuing
operations of the Group are included in “Share of
profits and losses of joint ventures” and “Share
of profits and losses of associates”, respectively,
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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10. FiIRHRERE)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PECEMESHERFEKX
BE EE A 2 Rt FE SR B i BT
BRzZHEE -BRETHEBEAR
AZEMBERIN AEH
FERBRAELBENN B AR
—BABNPRCEMBR
Z TR EB25% °

FRED b E R Tt (A
1% R E N T30% =60%
Bk - Bl ¥ ERT B RIE
B AT 0 BR B 2 (B 458 -t (3 FR
N BERAREZBY
¥RAERAY) -

HEZZ—RF+=ZA=1—
HIEFERN - BEFNEHRT
BEBBEEZHERM
mAMIE18.5% 2 FHERAE - &
it Hb [ A FE S0 R 15 B B IR AR
SECEEBEBRRNE
AMEGE BAREERE
REEBHEREEBEEM
FTRERBET - WEREE
TR+ A=+—HIt
FEREMNESHIELEE -

REBFELEXER RN
EEPEIZHREILAS
#21,457000C (= & — &
£ 7 #12176,0007T) &
BE R ZHESHABE
22,069,000c (=& —H%F :
7 #6,373,0007T) ° 25 7
FFAREGREEmEAR 2B
GELEZREFNEEBEIR
[FE(REL & AR 2 F & 518 |
|9q °
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10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax from continuing operations at the statutory
rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates is as follows:

10. FiIRHRERE)

BIBARE R AIBHEK B AR
ERAEEBRZATHERAEHE
KRR 7 BB AT R A B A 2 BB
THERBEESRHEAEZHEBES
HEERAT

o,

= 202 =
EN

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
Profit before tax from continuing FEEEEB
operations BR % A A 137,713 670,879
Tax at the applicable tax rate BERBEXFAEZNIE 34,428 167,720
Lower tax rates for specific provinces FE AP sk 7 # G T2
or local authority i (57,503) (28,577)
Adjustments in respect of current tax A B AR FEEHE 2
of previous periods o 4,991 (37)
Profits and losses attributable to joint A& & % K2 N a2
ventures and associates J& @ I 2 &5 18 (18,756) (10,697)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KERZ AFAFEEIEZ
recognised WHis w2 73,860 65,519
Income not subject to tax EERTZHBA (22,543) (27,495)
Expenses not deductible for tax ATt 2 2 123,588 32,232
Tax losses utilised from previous FABESHEZ
periods HIEEE (1,534) (9,725)
LAT + i I E 12,212 18,431
Tax charge at the Group's effective RAEBEBREHRFE 2
rate BB 148,743 207,371

Digital China Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report



11.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 7 August 2015, the Company published an
announcement in relation to its proposed disposal of
the subsidiaries engaged in the distribution business
(namely, “Digital China Group”) to Shenzhen Shenxin
Taifeng Group Co., Ltd.* (“Shenxin Taifeng”), the
details of which have been set out in the circular of
the Company dated on 9 August 2015. Following the
completion of the transaction, the entities engaged in
the distribution business will cease to be the Company’s
subsidiaries. The disposal of Digital China Group was
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
special general meeting held on 26 August 2015 and
the approval from PRC regulatory authorities was
received by Shenxin Taifeng on 18 December 2015
Digital China Group was classified as a disposal group
held for sale and as a discontinued operation, and
accordingly the distribution business is no longer
included in the note for the operating segment
information as a continuing operation. The disposal of
Digital China Group had been completed on 28 March
2016.

* The English name of the company is a direct transliteration of
its registered Chinese name.

11.
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NE ARFEREETBEBORES
HEBW AT GERMN BB RE]D)
FTRITRERE (EBE)RNER
REI(DRERE)) BHEFRCH
R-ZE—RFN\ANLBHEKT -
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 11.

The net assets of Digital China Group disposed of as

EBBEEXRBTR)
REEBH - HEM BB EED

at the date of disposal were as follows: BEFEBMET:
HK$’000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment M- BERZE 370,011
Investment in an associate REERNR 2 ™E 43,668
Available-for-sale investments AEHEZERE 75,464
Deferred tax assets IEEFIHE E 309,768
Inventories FE 5,803,416
Accounts and bills receivables JE W BR 3R N fE I R 4R 6,084,877
Prepayments, deposits and other TENHIE - HE2 R
receivable H i i W R IE 3,314,765
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMITA 2,954
Cash and cash equivalents ReEKREZEED 2,534,688
Accounts and hills payables ENERR L EMNEE (5,621,913)
Other payables and accruals EMEMNZFELRERER (1,805,219)
Tax payables FE #7118 (122,669)
Interest-bearing bank borrowings MR ERITE R (6,818,296)
Deferred tax liabilities REERIBEBAR (198,175)
3,973,339
Exchange fluctuation reserve P& 5K B 7% & (45,348)
3,927,991
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE % H B AR 2 W& 842,047
Tax and expenses MERER (344,016)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, KMERHERERERE
net of tax and expenses ZEMEB ARz W E=E 498,031
4,426,022
Satisfied by cash XRRBE 4,426,022




11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows:
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M EFBEEEXHE &)

HEZRMBARZEEMNEESSE

EMRAFBIONET:

HK$'000

BYETR

Cash consideration Re(E 4,426,022

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEREMEEEEY (2,534,688)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEZEHEBAT ZIRE K

respect of the disposal of subsidiaries WReEEYRAFE 1,891,334

The results of Digital

China Group contributed to

the Group, which are only from transactions with
counterparties external to the Group and do not
necessarily represent the activities of the operation as
individual entities, are presented below:

BERTASE NGB EBERE -
HEEAEEENERFIHF IR
FAPT—ERRREBERNEE

B AT

2016* 2015
ZE—REF —T—HF
HK$'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Revenue A 12,913,654 59,712,174
Cost of sales HE KA (12,189,837) (56,676,220)
Gross profit £ 7 723,817 3,035,954
Other income and gains Eo At e A R 2= 92,573 460,281
Expenses & A (654,444) (2,720,433)
Finance costs BE KK (83,776) (224,055)
Share of profits and losses of a [EEE&EBEREE QT
joint venture and an associate 2o A R 1R 269 (9177)
Profit before tax from the FERBREEBZ
discontinued operation Bk B4 A1 v A 78,439 542,570
Income tax Frisfi & A (16,847) (80,363)
61,592 462,207
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, &HKRRIEBLREREZTE
net of tax and expenses PN & 498,031 —
Profit for the year from the ERFBREEB2
discontinued operation N Z g A 559,623 462,207
S These numbers represent the activities of Digital China Group * ZEHFTRREBTAEE 21808

contributed to the Group in the current year prior to its disposal.

BEBHERRZ AN AFEZSE

B o
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Digital
(excluding assets and
continuing operations eliminated as usual

liabilities with
in the

1. FEHE

£5(8)

R EHR - 18 NEE B A%
BHEZTEZEENRABREMNCE

BRENAMHEEHEEFESE

PR

consolidation) classified as held for sale as at the end ¥BNEEREE)OT:
of reporting period are as follows:
2016 2015
—E-XRF —T—0F
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
iikz3 BT T BT T
Assets BE
Property, plant and mE - BB
equipment B = 379,707
Investment in an associate REE QAR ZEKE — 43,398
Available-for-sale investments At HEZ K& — 1,267,771
Deferred tax assets BELEFIREE — 181,232
Inventories FE — 5,697,842
Accounts and bills receivables U R KW ZE  (a) = 6,218,664
Prepayments, deposits and BT FIE ~ R & &
other receivable o {th pE W 5k IE (b) = 3,728,928
Cash and cash equivalents & NEESEEY = 1,466,016
Assets classified as NRFEBHEZ
held for sale BE = 18,983,558
Liabilities =R
Accounts and bills payables ENEREEMNZEE (o — 6,189,781
Other payables and accruals E i /& 30 E &
EiRE A (d) — 1,967,673
Derivative financial PTESMIEA
instruments = 64,147
Tax payables FE #7118 — 88,084
Interest-bearing bank Mt B RITE
borrowings = 6,741,689
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIBEE — 83,539
Deferred income iR E U A — 49,838
Liabilities directly associated 7% A&FHELEEE
with the assets classified BERMEEaE
as held for sale = 15,194,751
Net assets directly associated £2 1 & & B & % #H #8
with the disposal group 2L BEEFE = 3,788,807

pou =)



11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Included in the assets classified as held for sale of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 were accounts and bills receivables
due from a joint venture of the Group of HK$10,748,000.

(b) Included in the assets classified as held for sale of the Group
as at 31 December 2015 was a loan of HK$5,962,000 to a
joint venture of the Group, which is unsecured, bears interest
at a rate of 4.62% per annual and is repayable within in one
year from the end of the year.

(c) Included in the liabilities directly associated with the assets
classified as held for sale of the Group as at 31 December
2015 were accounts and bills payables due to a joint venture
of the Group of HK$95,000.

(d) Included in the liabilities directly associated with the assets
classified as held for sale of the Group as at 31 December
2015 were other payables and accruals due to associates of
the Group of HK$43,752,000.
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M EFEEEXH &)

VEE

(a) RZZE—FF+ZA=+—H Kx&
B ARELEZEERTERKASE
E-MAEEZERERKRER
= 4% A7 #10,748,0007T °

(b) RZFE—AF+=_A=+—H 'K
SENARALECEERIERK
5,962,000t ARASE —fHE &0
¥RHER 2FERVEER &
F4B2% 2 FIRTE MRS FF
KE—FAEE -

(c) RZZE—FF+ZA=+—H K&&
BHEI ABALEEEREEMABZ
BEBRENEAEE -—HBEEhE
CEMNERRENZERESEABE
95,0007 °

(d) R=ZZ—AF+=ZA=+—H &%
BENAFALELAEEEEBRZA
ERERMNASEZHBE AR ZH
MhEMNREREREASCEABE
43,752,0007T °

20164 )

1N BAS I B R A A

S A B3 é\wl"f%
The net cash flows incurred by Digital China Group are HEMNBBEERELZREREF = 207 &=
as follows: BT : %ﬂ?@
2016* 2015
—E—XE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Operating activities K ES (189,081) (2,234,278)
Investing activities ®EEE 1,190,356 1,637,190
Financing activities BE & 62,789 325,321
Net cash inflow/(outflow) BernERA(rd)
F R 1,064,064 (271,767)
Earnings per share: gRA:
Basic, from the discontinued R REFRFHE HK cents HK cents
operation T 49.94 #E Al 43.08 &l
Diluted, from the discontinued BE - REERE HK cents HK cents
operation s 49.93 #E Al 43.02 #Al
& These numbers represent the activities of Digital China Group ZEHRFTRRAMTASEE 21912
contributed to the Group in the current year prior to its BEELHERMZANAFERSE
disposal. g o
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share
from the discontinued operation are based on:

1M FFBEEERHR)
REFHABLEEBZEREER
BEERN TR BT RIS E

2016 2015
“E-RE “E-hF

Profit attributable to ordinary equity REFHRELCEER
holders of parent from the ISYNGIES 8 HK$559,623,000 | HK$462,207,000
discontinued operation JEE 1l 3% 1 ##559,623,000 | J&%462,207,000

Weighted average number of ordinary

AR EERERAT 2

shares in issue less shares held under AEERETTAR
the RSA scheme during the year BEXB KD B ET
used in the basic earnings per share T #5AR  2 IN4E
calculation (note 13] FHEH#13) 1,120,671,262 1,072,957,445
Weighted average number of ordinary ARAEBREERT
shares during the year used in the AEELBRZINE
diluted earnings per share calculation T8 (Hi213)
(note 13) 1,120,712,935 1,074,294,107
éﬁtﬂf%‘
. G 12. DIVIDENDS 2. B2
IS
) 2016 2015
% —E—RF —E—hF
= HK$'000 HK$'000
g B¥ETT BT T
; Special dividend — HK$3.20 BRIl E — 8
= (2015: Nil) per ordinary share T R B % 3.207T
o —E-RF:E) 3,515,317 —
é Proposed final dividend R R AR AR B — —
E
g 3,515,317 =
g"

SERHERMN BB EEE - AAF
Bk & X A1 5 18 % 3.20 7T H9 #5 5ll
REREBBTARBER -

Upon the completion of the disposal of Digital China
Group, the Company declared and paid a special cash
dividend of HK$3.20 per share to shareholders of the
Company.

EECTEBREBE_T—X~F+
“A=ZT—HIEFERERARKE
(ZZ—FHF:#E)-

The board of directors does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: Nil).



13. EARNINGS/(LOSS)

PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculations of the basic earnings/(loss) per share
amount is based on the profit/(loss) for the vyear
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average of 1,120,671,262 (2015:
1,072,957,445) ordinary shares in issue less shares
held under the RSA Scheme during the year.
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13. BASEERKRRELS

BREAM(E8)

BREARBRN (BB IEAE
B2 & AR EERRKRREEGR
FABR WERAFERE
BT R X R &I () 22 B &t £
BT R AR 10 2 A AR hn R 15 £
1120,671,262/K% (= & — 1 F:

1,072,957,445/%) 51 & - i
The calculations of the diluted earnings/(loss) per REFz2ERESRF (FEE)D 8
share amount for the year is based on the profit/(loss) HARFE 25 A7) AR E E
for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of wmA(E1E) - ARZTENL @ B
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary RNEFEBEANRNEEANZEE 5
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary 17 3 AROR 7R 2 PR Il AR 17 SR B &t & &
shares in issue less shares held under the RSA scheme THRHERO(MEARGFESRE %
during the year, as used in the basic earnings/(loss) REF(E18)) - WINFRERAE @R =
per share calculation, and the weighted average number SERESBE CMERER -
of ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no BENEBREE/ETRERBES iz,
consideration on the deemed exercise of all the dilutive BETEERZMETHEH - £ 2

potential ordinary shares related to the Group’s share-
based incentive schemes into ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share are based on:

FREAREBERF (BR)IDR
BATBIRAHE

“n

—:? 20|:§

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Earnings/(loss) BN (E#E)
Profit/(loss) attributable to ARitEEREARN#E
ordinary equity holders of the B8R (EB8) 2817
parent, used in the basic and TR AR R (L = A
diluted earnings/(loss) per (E18) :
share calculations:
From continuing operations RKEFELLEER (170,309) 199,469
From the discontinued REEFELEER
operation 559,623 462,207
389,314 661,676
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13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BASILERIREEGLS
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY BRER (EE)(E)
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (Continued)

Number of shares

IR #E
2016 2015
—RE —ZE—hF
Shares vy
Weighted average number of AR EERERRT
ordinary shares in issue less (BR)ZAFEDET
shares held under the RSA - 38 AR OR AT 52 PR 6l AR 19
scheme during the year used BRI EI T ARG 2
in the basic earnings/(loss) per hn#E 719 8
share calculations 1,120,671,262 | 1,072,957,445
Effect of dilution — weighted BETE — TRk
average number of ordinary pilik: B E) -
é@.ﬂf% shares:
s 0 = Share-based incentive schemes P& B ED 51 2 41,673 1,336,662
S
Weighted average number of AR EESREERT
ordinary shares during the year (B ZARFE
used in the diluted earnings/ L3 AR 2 N RE I
(loss) per share calculations 1120,712,935 | 1,074,294,107

Digital China Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

14. W% -BEREHE

Fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
Building impr JuiF hicl in progress Total
RER
- E3 HEEE BAERE AE HEEIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT YT BETT BETT
31 December 2016 ZB-AE+ZA=1-H
At 31 December 2015 and
at 1 January 2016:
Cost 631,389 119,025 500,721 17,342 11,734 1,280,211
Accumulated depreciation (73,952) (96,938) (304,464) (12,021) = (487,375)
Net carrying amount EEFE 557,437 22,087 196,257 5,321 11,734 792,836
At 1 January 20186, net of R-ZB-—A"E-A—-H8"
accumulated depreciation MR E 557,437 22,087 196,257 5,321 11,734 792,836
Additions RE - 29,258 74,722 1,543 571,686 677,209
Acquisition of subsidiaries - E4u 10|
(note 38) (H#38) 30,436 315 7,831 454 - 39,036
Disposals HE - (102) (5.407) (40) - (5,549)
Surplus on revaluation upon REBERENERELEZ
the transfer to investment ke E
properties 601,807 = = = = 601,807
Transfers B 418,239 = 425 = (418,664) =
Transfer to investment properties ~ WA ZE R ENE
[note 15] (Hi##15) (853,531) (3,118) (908) = = (857,557)
Depreciation provided during rEEHE
the year (11,149) (10,816) (62,312) (1,559) = (85,836)
Exchange realignment ERRE (26,647) (1,182) (12,195) (337) (33,030) (73,391)
At 31 December 2016, net of RZE-A"FtZA=+—-8"
accumulated depreciation MR R E 716,592 36,442 198,413 5,382 131,726 1,088,555
At 31 December 2016: RZF-AF+-A=+—-A:
Cost B E 764,958 120,497 480,601 18,583 131,726 1,516,365
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (48,366) (84,055) (282,188) (13,201) = (427,810)
Net carrying amount REFE 716,592 36,442 198,413 5,382 131,726 1,088,555

N
[y
[

HINBESIE IR AR A E 20165F 3,

=
=
S
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERHRE (&)

(Continued)
Fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
RKER
BT HEXE MOERME AE EEIR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTT BETT BETT BRI BETT BETT
31 December 2015 —¥-EF+-A=+-A
At 1 January 2015: RZE-RE-A—-H:

Cost RAE 931,686 172,598 1,020,793 49,215 108,148 2,282,440

Accumulated depreciation 2 E (89,436) (139,026) (697,244) (33,296) = (959,002)

Net carrying amount REFE 842,250 33,572 323,549 15,919 108,148 1,323,438
At 1 January 2015, net of RZZE-RE-A-H"

accumulated depreciation k2T E 842,250 33,672 323,549 15,919 108,148 1,323,438
Additions NE = 11,875 109,328 2,992 14,363 138,558
Assets included in the BREFRBREEGCAE

discontinued operation (Hiz#11)

(note 11) (261,505) (6,241) (104,910 (7,051) = (379,707)
Disposals & - (286) (15,100) (717) - (16,103)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 39) &N B AT (4 239) - - - - (452) (452)
Transfers 284 38,757 (104) 514 (93) (39,074) =
Transfer to investment properties ~ BB EHENE (715

(note 15] = = = = (66,984) (66,984)
Depreciation provided during the KEEHE

year (24,189) (15,414) (103,138) (5127) = (147,866)
Exchange realignment EXAE (37.876) (1,315) (13,988) (602) (4,267) (58,048)
At 31 December 2015, net of R=B-—RF+-A=+-H"

accumulated depreciation N2 E 557,437 22,087 196,257 5,321 11,734 792,836
At 31 December 2015: RZE-REF+ZA=+—H:

Cost KAE 631,389 119,025 500,721 17,342 11,734 1,280,211

Accumulated depreciation 2iTE (73,952) (96,938) (304,464) (12,021) = (487,375)

Net carrying amount REFE 557,437 22,087 196,257 5,321 11,734 792,836

At 31 December 2016, the Group’'s property, plant and
equipment with a carrying value of HK$173,097,000
(2015: HK$427,632,000) were pledged to secure
certain bank loans of the Group (note 33(a)).

RZE—RE+-A=1+—H8 K
£ EERmEE A B %173,097,0007T
—F — hAF: % 427,632,000
TIZME - BEREZEE TUE
B EAREBESETRITER
2 1R (M 5£33(a)) °
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. &YX

2016 2015
—B-XKF 1%
Investment Investment
Completed properties Completed properties
investment under investment under
properties construction Total properties construction Total
BRR iE BT g
RENE RENE @it REM%E REN%E @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- — e — e — oo
BB BT BT ERT T BB T BT T @'
(<o)
S
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—-BzE&EE 1,880,510 232,739 2,123,249 777564 966,662 1,744,226 N
Additions AE 33,263 23,876 57139 2,297 158,903 161,200 =3
Transfer from owner-occupied BEERENE/BH u(\ni
properties/prepaid land Tl EE
premium 932,396 = 932,396 81,643 = 81,643 =
Transfer from completed BRAREHERENET il
properties held for sale mE = = = 85,727 = 85,727 Hifi
B
Transfers Ea 90,338 (90,338) = 870,467 (870,467) — =
Net gain from a fair value BOTEERABZZhE &
adjustment recognised in profit BRBER
or loss 123,352 11,536 134,888 114,458 27,390 141,848 »@:1,1 H@,
y =
Exchange realignment ERAE (188,683) (12,622) (201,305) (41,648) (49,749) (91,385) =§213 5‘:
—
=
%
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—-BZzKEE 2,881,176 165,191 3,046,367 1,890,510 232,739 2,123,249

The Group’s investment properties are situated in
Mainland China and are held under medium term
leases.

The directors of the Company have determined that
the investment properties consist of one class of
asset, commercial properties, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The
Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2016 based on valuations performed by
Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited and
Valuelink Asset Appraisal (Beijing) Co., Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$3,046,367,000
(2015: HK$2,123,249,000) on an open market, existing
use basis. Each year, the Group’s management decides
to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s management has discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results once a year when the valuation is
performed for annual financial reporting.

AEBZREMEHDURHPEAX
P WIAR MBS -

RARRESZRESMEZME &
BRREREEREMERLE B
REE BIEEDE AEE 2
BEDER-_ZS—"F+_A=+
—BERBEBUEXSERME
ME—ARFEHBHEHHEREER
BERRAARERULR) & EF
HERABZHEDNZRARAMS
RRTRAEEERITEMABAEE
3,046,367,000T (= —HF : /&
#2123,249,0007T) - BFFEAEE
ZEBEREZEINBEERRE
BEAEEYE ZINEBHE - BEER
EREMHNH B8 B
REENKERTEBUGER -REBFE
—IRFLEE MR EEITEHER -
AEEEREED BHEMRGHE
ReE R EEERETT® o
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Certain investment properties are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 41(a) to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has not yet obtained
the real estate ownership certificates for the Group’s
investment properties with a net carrying amount
of HK$371,411,000 (2015: HK$232,739,000) from
the relevant government authorities. The directors of
the Company consider that the relevant real estate
ownership certificates will be obtained in the near
future.

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s investment
properties with a carrying value of HK$1,875,703,000
(2015: HK$1,305,524,000) were pledged to secure
certain bank loans of the Group (note 33(a)).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment
properties are included on pages 293 to 295.

15.

BHEYEE)
ETHREDERECERERTE=
7o BEE—SHMEFBIERNUTHB
RE M E41(a) ©

R-ZE—RE+-_A=+—H =&
SEHAKREEEBRTEERAEE
BR % {8 /8 #371,411,0007T (=
T — R4 : B#232,739,0007T) 2
REMEMSEERGESE - K
REEERABE RO BHEEIEE
B EZ A -

RZZE—RF+-A=+—H8 ' &&
B B8R (& A&7 #1,875,703,0007T
—ZT—h%F : #%1,305,524,000
T ZIEWMES TUEE - EAAR
SEESETRITERZERA
$¥33(a)) ©

REBEEMEZE—THBEBIE
MREE293H = F295H A o



15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy
The following table

illustrates the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment

properties:

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

15. REME(E)

NFEBEZERH
TRINRARE 2 RENEORF

EBEFESFHR:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using
RZB-AE+ZA=+-BAFEEFEER
Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EEBTSE EXATEE EATTEER

HEE oS ol
(B&-) (B#&=) (&= @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT

Recurring fair value measurement for: BRATEESER:

Commercial properties EEZ/ES = — 3,046,367 3,046,367

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2015 using

R-E-RF+-_A=t-BATYEEHERA

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

EEDTSE EATER EATATEER

CORSLE HmRAE Eal[:0 )5S
(&) €3 ) (E#R=) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT

Recurring fair value measurement for: BROTEESER:

Commercial properties EENE — = 2,123,249 2,123,249

20164 )
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15.

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2015: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

REME(E)

DR EESHR(E)
REAFER RER-—RER—_2
REBRATEESE  MRF
M=MEBAREH (T —0F:
&) -

DERFE=Z2RAFEESFRHA
FEEFEZHEK:

Commercial

properties
[EERYES
HK$'000
BEET T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2015 RZE-—RF—H—RAZEEE 1,744,226
Additions nNE 161,200
mw% Transfer fr‘om owner‘-occgpied properties H#EEEBRAMERENTHEAS
= P = and prepaid land premium 81,643
%ﬂ?ﬂ‘@ Transfer from completed properties ERASEHEAENEIYE
held for sale 85,727
= Net gain from a fair value adjustment BRATEBERABZ FRAERR
oy recognised in other gains in B Hh e
E profit or loss 141,848
% Exchange realignment PE 5, 78 & (91,395)
3 Carrying amount at 31 December 2015 W-Z—AF+-_A=+—AK
= and 1 January 2016 —T-AF—A—AZKHEE 2,123,249
g Additions RE 57,139
= Transfer from owner-occupied properties #EEEAEFEYENBHLHHES
fIé and prepaid land premium 932,396
5 Net gain from a fair value adjustment BERATFEEAE 2 FRSER
g recognised in other gains in Bz Efh s
= profit or loss 134,888
Exchange realignment P& W 38 2 (201,305)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 HKR-ZE—XXF+=-_A=+—HZ
FREE 3,046,367




15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment

Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

15. REME(E)

R EESHR(E)
Pl B8 E S R A S
HEREBZRR:

properties:

Valuation techniques

Significant unobservable inputs

Range or weighted average

RV EATABREINER RERmMETLY
2016 2015
—E2-XF ik
Commercial properties Discounted cash flow method Estimated rental value (per s.g.m. From 12 to From 16 to
and per month) 371 325
HEME BRRAERBE BEEEEEETHARER) H12Z371 H16%325

Commercial properties

Hypothetical development method

RERERA

Long term vacancy rate
EHTER

Discount rate

TR

Unit rate (per s.g.m.) (HK$)
BUEX(BTHXA)(ERT
Construction costs (per s.q.m.)

(HKS)
BERA(EBIHR(EET)

Other costs and expenses/
construction costs

EfRARRS /BERAK

Discount rate
BHE

From 5% to
15%

5% Z15%
From 6% to
8%
H6%Z8%

From 8,857 to

From 5% to
15%
5% £15%
From 6% to
7.5%
FHB%Z£75%

From 8,501 to

12,179 12,286
[8,857% #18,5012
12,179 12,286

From 4,089 to

From 3,933 to

4,725 5,089
#14,089% f3,933%
4,725 5,089

From 15.66%

From 9.75% to

to 18.04% 18.75%
#15.66% % H9.75% 2
18.04% 18.75%
4.75% 4.75%
4.75% 4.75%

20164 )
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£

The Group has determined that the highest and best
use of the commercial properties at the measurement
date would be to convert those properties for
residential purposes. For strategic reasons, the
properties are not being used in this manner.

AEECHREZSHEMERAE
Bz &S MREAEBERASE
EERRZZEME - HNRER
RS EIAZ T AEM o
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is
estimated using assumptions regarding the benefits and
liabilities of ownership over the asset’s life. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
property interest. A market-derived discount rate is
applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish
the present value of the income stream associated with
the asset.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing
of inflows and outflows are determined by events such
as rent reviews, lease renewal and related reletting,
redevelopment and refurbishment. The appropriate
duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic
cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease
incentives, maintenance costs, agent and commission
costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the
end of the projection period, is then discounted.

In the case of investment property under construction,
estimates of capital outlays and construction cost,
development costs, and anticipated sales income are
estimated to arrive at a series of net cash flows that
are then discounted over the projected development
and marketing periods. Specific development risks such
as planning, zoning, licences, and building permits are
separately valued.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated
rental value and the market rent growth rate per
annum in isolation would result in a significant
increase/(decrease) in the fair value of the investment
properties. A significant increase/(decrease) in the long
term vacancy rate and the discount rate in isolation
would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in
the fair value of the investment properties. Generally,
a change in the assumption made for the estimated
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar
change in the rent growth per annum and the discount
rate and an opposite change in the long term vacancy
rate.

15.

REME(E)

NFEESERE)
BIBMBERESREE -
KABRKEBEMEENNELEE
HIBEE S ETMHE - ZFE
BREMERER —ERRERE
ZTEB o TS HTHE 2 B IR @ AN
ERABReRENEELEEESH
2R IRE

RFEET

e REZFHERERTANRH
WERKMEBELNE SR - 8
HEBRRABEN ZEEREFE
BEMRTE - BEZHERBRTS
TR (RMEER A —ERM) T
2. THRSRERAW AMRE
B ArERS - KRB L - H
ERE HEER RKEBENASE
ARkAEMGENERRASY - % —&
BTEHEERAFE  ERBEFR
TEORI B 4% 45 By 2 #om (B E {d 5T 2
B BRI EIRME -

RERREMEMS - B EAX
HEZERA - FHERA - ARTE
HEERAGBFR -—EZRHER
ERFERAFAEREHBRATEAR
ZEW - BRFERR  WRE -2
B -HFAILEIHARDDHEMG
-

BREEEEELAMEHEHEFER
REFAEEINORD) B EHEK
BEYEN AT EEKNEE N OR
D) RMZEXRBBAREFGAK
M, CRD) BEBIREWEZ
NFEBEKNERD, M) —K
mE MEGEEBEFLINER
MEDHEERHESFIRRMPREK
HRBUTMEHREHEHEE
RRBERAZ -



16. PREPAID LAND PREMIUMS
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16. L EL

I

219 &=

o

2016 2015

—E-RF —ZET-hfF

HK$’'000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEEE 120,352 145,178
Additions NE 36,630 — =3
Transfers to investment EREREME %
properties (74,839) (14,659) &
Amortisation during the year ENCIER: 37 (2,601) (3,890) E
Exchange realignment PE % 38 % (7,268) (6,277) =
Carrying amount at R+=—A=+—B8z iﬁ
31 December RmEE 72,274 120,352 &
Current portion included in MENES D BIEETEN z

prepayments, deposits and IE - Re RHEM

other receivables FE W Fh 1B (4,337) (4,670) §-”
Non-current portion % B EB 19 67,937 115,682 %

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s prepaid land
premiums with a carrying value of HK$23,073,000
(2015: HK$100,344,000) were pledged to secure
certain bank loans of the Group (note 33(a)).

RZTE—RNF+-_A=+—8 'K
& B8R | B &% %23,073,0007T
(Z= — A% : /5 ¥100,344,000
) ZTEMN T HAEE T AR - 1

RASEERSE

(Pt 3£33(a)) °

TRITERZER
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17. GOODWILL 17. &
The amount of goodwill capitalised as an asset, arising B s B 2 [ B /88 8 B B A T B A1
from the acquisition of subsidiaries, was as follows: BEZABSENT:
2016 2015
A —T—0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
At 1 January: R—H—8:
Cost B ANE 1,228,452 1,292,407
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE (12,476) (17.592)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,215,976 1,274,815
Cost at 1 January, net of R—A—BZKAE
accumulated impairment B ZERE 1,215,976 1,274,815
n Acquisition of subsidiaries e B2 B B A A
Wiy, [note 38) (Kt 338) 1,073,696 —
%{;&@ Exchange realignment S (94,296) (58,839)
£ Cost at 31 December, net of R+=—A=+—82
5 accumulated impairment PAME - HIBR REHRE 2,195,376 1,215,976
< At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
g Cost B AN B 2,195,376 1,228,452
o Accumulated impairment Z5HRE — (12,476)
E
& Net carrying amount AR EF(E 2,195,376 1,215,976
3
gﬂ



17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is
allocated to the following cash-generating units for
impairment testing:

° Industry application software and solutions cash-
generating unit;

° Rural information services cash-generating unit;

° Mobile network optimisation and big data services
for communications cash-generating unit;

° Data integration and management software sales
cash-generating unit; and

° Agricultural internet of things services cash-
generating unit.

Industry application software and solutions

cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the industry application
software and solutions cash-generating unit is
determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to cash flow
projections is 15% (2015: 15%) and cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth
rate of 3% (2015: 3%).

Rural information services cash-generating unit
The recoverable amount of the rural information
services cash-generating unit is determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to cash flow projections is 15% (2015: 16%)
and cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 3% (2015: 3%).

17.
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e (8E)

(GRS RER:E=
BREBEFWE 2 HEDKIAT
ReEEBRDE - AETTRER
=

s TEREATMRBRTRR
TELEM:

s ENEERBReELFEM:

s RBIPKELEBEXREE
RSB ELEN

s HEBEERMEERTUMFHER
TELEEM R

s EREVBMBRGETSELE

fiL e

TREFAEHRBERT ZERE
ELEN

TEEREMHEBRTRRATE
HEEBEM A EETREEREE
B mEABENRARESR
EEEHRECAFRYBEER
AR REFHE  -BRRERE
PIERZBERERISN (ZT—1
F:15%) REABBRFHI% (=
T-—RF 3R ERXREHESR

= °

EBNEERBEREETELEN
BNEERBESEEEMN 2RI
EEDREFEREEEE  mEH
BEDRARESAEEEMEL
hEHUBEEEAZRESRER
o FBARSREMEAZARE
B15% (ZEFE—FHF : 16%) & &K F
BAAFHI% (T —HE: 3%)
BEREREHRSRE °
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17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Mobile network optimisation and big data
services for communications cash-generating
unit

The recoverable amount of the mobile network
optimisation and big data services for communications
cash-generating unit is determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to
cash flow projections is 13.5% and cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth
rate of 3%.

Data integration and management software

sales cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of the data integration and
management software sales cash-generating unit is
determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections based on financial budgets
covering a five-year period approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to cash flow
projections is 16.5% and cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of
3%.

Agricultural internet of things services cash-

generating unit

The recoverable amount of the agricultural internet of
things services unit is determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The discount rate applied to
cash flow projections is 20% and cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a growth
rate of 3%.

17. B2 (8)

72 R BB = ()
BERHEELREESAHBER
BREELEN

BHEEELRBERNBBRE
ReELBEM 2 REETREE
REEETE MEMREBEIIHEAR
EEMERELEZ AFMMEE
BHEAZEEREFE - BRARS
mE AT A2 BA 3R R 13.5% M B
FiEidRFH3%EREEHR S

s =
JILE °

BEENREEEHMHIEER 2
EEEY
HEENLEERGHEERSEE
B zA WO EDRESFEAEEE
FomMEREBENDRARESRE
BEMAE AFHMEEEREANZ
HeRErTE - BARSREME
BAZBIR KR A16 5% MIERABBT
FHINERXREHRERE -

BENHEHRELEEELEN

BEYBBEREESEESEM A
WEEDRIEFEREBEETE @ mE
BEADNFEARERRERE I #E
2HFHPBBEEEN RS RS
AE - RS REMERA AR
& 520% & F A8 1B A F Bi3% 18
REHEHRSRE o



17. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

17. B2 (48)
EE AN EAC D)
UT AN REESBSELSEM IR

the cash-generating units is as follows: EIREE
2016 2015
—F-AF —F—AF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T -
o
Industrial application software TEERITMR g
and solutions 2R T B 214,421 230,915 =
Rural information services RSB R 914,696 985,061 >
Mobile network optimisation BEMEE e ARG iii
and big data services for N B 4% R 75 &
communications 965,841 — %
Data integration and management £ &5k kB IR EFiEE ﬂ:i
software sales 78,470 —
Agricultural internet of things B R R T éﬂ':"w%
services 21,948 — & 223 &=
US>
Total & &t 2,195,376 1,215,976

Key assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the industry application software and
solutions cash-generating unit, the rural information
services cash-generating unit, the mobile network
optimisation and big data services for communications
cash-generating unit, the data integration and
management software sales cash-generating unit
and the agricultural internet of things services cash-
generating unit for the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2015.

The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to
determine the value assigned to the budgeted gross
margin is the average gross margins achieved in the
year immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements, and expected market
development.

REBEEZZE—R"FR-_ZT—HF+
—A=t+—BLFER  TETE
EATHRBATRRESELS
i » BNEERERESELEEN
BEMABELERBERNEERE
REEEBEMN  BIEERLEREE
HHERSELEM N EBEYHBA
IREREELBMNZFEAEERY
EHEERX -

T I B A 1T 7 R
HEHREREKE I REEE
B

FEENE — REENREEZ
BEEEELERBEFEN—(EF
BB ZFHEMNE  BFER
MREZENRBHATSER -
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17. GOODWILL (Continued) 17. BE (&)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued) 2R AR (E)
Discount rate — The discount rate used is after tax and BHE — FERAZMBEERRM
reflects specific risks relating to the cash-generating BANIRE  BERMBAEMTIR
unit. 2B R B
The values assigned to the key assumptions on market FERBAIRITEIE ARG R R
development of the industry application software and ﬁ%fﬁiFE 57 - BAHE B ARTS
solutions cash-generating unit, the rural information ReELSMN - BERKELRRA
services cash-generating unit, the mobile network BERBIBERERESEELSEN - BUE
optimisation and big data services for communications ERREERRGHEHERSEEEN
cash-generating unit, the data integration and NEEVBBRGRESEEEULN
management software sales cash-generating unit iz E 2 B(E - DA K ALIR 5
and the agricultural internet of things services cash- AR RR— 3K e
generating unit, and discounts rates are consistent with
external information sources.
18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. Hith M & &
Deferred
Patents  development Systems
and licences costs software Total
HHER BE
AR E REBRA EY L st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTT BETT BT BT
31 December 2016 ZE-RETZAZT-H
At 1 January 2016: RZZ-~"F—A—H:
Cost A E 19,554 30,738 71,898 122,180
Accumulated amortisation and Rt HERAE
impairment (5,077) (4,383) (54,345) (63,805)
Net carrying amount REFE 14,477 26,355 17,553 58,385
Cost at 1 January 2016, net of RZB-—R"E-A—-HZ
accumulated amortisation and KAE  MAZEHER
impairment BIE 14,477 26,355 17,553 58,385
Additions AE 2,048 9,462 46,392 57,902
Acquisition of subsidiaries fnote 38) WK BAR (41238 499 = 54,962 55,461
Amortisation provided during the year 7% [E % 4 (4,281) - (10,320) (14,601)
Exchange realignment ESuEEE (976) (3,253) (875) (5,104)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AE+-A=1+—H 11,767 32,564 107,712 152,043
At 31 December 2016: RZZ-A~E+ZA=+—A:
Cost A E 23,975 32,564 124,874 181,413
Accumulated amortisation and A5t
impairment &R E (12,208) = (17,162) (29,370)
Net carrying amount FEFE 11,767 32,564 107,712 152,043
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18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18. HEfh R & &E (&)

Deferred
Patents development Systems
and licences costs software Total
EFER Bt
HOE:L: REKA 2o @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EBTL EETL EETL EETL

31 December 2015 “E-Rf+-A=1+-H ﬁ
=
At 1 January 2015: RZZE-1%5—-A—-H: =
Cost RAE 58,340 5,664 62,296 126,300 B
Accumulated amartisation and ZEtEER e
impairment e (17,738) (3,535) (39,241) (60,514) &
Net carrying amount REFE 40,602 2,129 23,055 65,786 §
5
Cost at 1 January 2015, net of RZZE-R§-A—-HZ
accumulated amortisation and ﬁﬁmﬁ E: S $:01 éﬂw%
impairment AR 40,602 2129 23,055 65,786 = 225 =
Additions NE == 25,501 1,049 26,550 %n@
Amortisation provided during the year — REE B K (5,435) (624) (6,282) (12,341)
Impairment loss during the year AEERE (19,586) — - (19,586)
Exchange realignment i 53R (1,104) (651) (269) (2,024)
At 31 December 2015 R-F-RE+-A=+-H 14,477 26,355 17,553 58,385
At 31 December 2015: R=Z-HF+-A=+—A:
Cost RAE 19,554 30,738 71,898 122,190
Accumulated amortisation and ZEHEAHER
impairment e (5,077) (4,383) (54,345) (63,805)
Net carrying amount REFE 14,477 26,355 17553 58,385
During the year ended 31 December 2015, an REBEE-_FT—HF+_A=+
impairment of HK$19,586,000 was recognised for —BIEFERN REHAEEBEEK
certain patents and licenses with an aggregate carrying 32,644,0007T (41 Bk & 18 & 18 Al)
amount of HK$32,644,000 (before deducting the WETENERITAERE BRE
impairment loss) because those patents and licenses BCER SBRER - ERIBE
had been dormant and/or obsolete. 75 #19,586,0007T °
The recoverable amounts of the certain patents and MEB D B2 B T HE N RETr] &
licenses in the New Business segment as at 31 R —FNREEME  FHtEE
December 2015 have been determined as nil because BERELRFAEFER_Z—HET
these patents and license will be written off within one ZA=t—HBWAKREEERETE R
year at nil consideration. zo
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

19. REEREZRE

2016 2015

—E-REF —FT—HRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Share of net assets JE(EEEFE 991,219 912,645
Goodwill on acquisition AWEEEzEE 16,794 16,794
1,008,013 929,439

The details of the Group’s loans to joint ventures
included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and
other receivables are disclosed in note 28 to the
financial statements. In the opinion of the directors,
these loans are not considered as part of the Group’s
net investments in these joint ventures.

The details of the Group’s accounts receivable balances
due from joint ventures are disclosed in note 27 to the
financial statements.

The details of the Group’s loan from a subsidiary of a
joint venture of the Group included in the Group’s other
payables and accruals as at 31 December 2015 are
disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Group’s material joint ventures are
as follows:

Place of

registration Particulars of
Name and business registered capital
L AMBERFEBHE KEREMEAFE

AEBEEREASEZANNIEA -
BehEMEEREAEZRAA S D
EREZEFNFBREN U
BHRERWFB - EERR - ZF
EFXTEERRAEERZEARE
ERFREN A -

REBEKZEEEDE ZERE
TREE R FEIE I B R B S SRR B
FF27

R-_ZE—FAFE+-_A=+—HB 'K
SEBREASE B EMAIE
RBRERAZAAREES & XN
BArRREZERNFBRENIL
B 75 s = B 532 o

AEBNERGECEZFBN
T

Percentage of

ownership
interest
attributable

to the Group Principal activities

BN
Bk AR
BEEAL FEXH

Chongging Digital China HC

PRC/Mainland China

RMB1,000,000,000

Micrafinance Co., Ltd." HE /B R A K #1,000,000,0007T
EERMNEEER N ERERBERAR"
+ The English names of this company is direct transliteration of

its registered Chinese name.

A Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

60 Provision of microfinance services

RENBERRE

+ ZARZEXAEHEFBEM S
ZHXET o

2 FFBB B L KB BRI LKE
A EBATE M ERBRKERE
% o
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19 REB8¥2HE(8)
(Continued)

The above investment is held through a subsidiary of MR BETNFERBARF ZHE AR
the Company. A -
Chongging Digital China HC Microfinance Co., Ltd., BERHEMNEBERE)BEERERA
which is considered a material joint venture of the RS AASB cEREERE
Group, is engaged in the provision of microfinance EtErsRtERHENEER
services in Chongging province and is accounted for AR5 I B IR 25 VR T BR ©
using the equity method. ﬁ
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRINTEEMMNBGBERNEE =
information in respect of Chongging Digital China HC HREBRARKRAESHBREERZ =
Microfinance Co., Ltd. adjusted for any differences in M E R Z Eg
accounting policies: Exﬂ
8
2016 2015 E
—E-AE —T-AF =
HK$’'000 HK$'000 -
BT T BEET T §:1.'|H%
E 227 &=
Current assets MEE E 1,359,758 1,628,180 %I\E@
Non-current assets FERBEE 594,389 68,529
Current liabilities mEAIE (735,377) (466,491)
Net assets AEFE 1,218,770 1,230,218
Revenues A 234,385 148,605
Profit for the year N [E 5 A 80,438 36,633
Total comprehensive income RERZ2HEK R
for the year #ER 80,438 36,633
All the joint ventures have been accounted for using FiB& & EHBILER AN LI

the equity method in these financial statements. BmK IR -
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REEBLEZHE(H)
(Continued)
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRINTAERE S E % GEE R
information of the Group’s joint ventures that are not BR)ZHBEREE:
individually material:

2016 2015
=F-AF —F—AHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BEF T
Aggregate carrying amount of rEEBREERHEZ
the Group’s investments in the KERMKREESF
joint ventures 187,176 156,865
Share of the joint ventures’ EEEEREIAEE
profit/(loss) for the year wm A (B ) (9,016) 19,226
Share of the joint ventures’ ElEEaahF¥ 2 AREE
é@.ﬂf% total comprehensive income/ 2EzE S (EBE)
= 28 = (loss) for the year 48 %8 (9,016) 19,226
- 20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REtZEAT 2R E
£ 2016 2015
: —E-AF —T-nF
; HK$’000 HK$’'000
& BT T BT T
o
é Share of net assets BEEEFE 1,128,307 1,087,110
g Goodwill on acquisition HWBEL2HE 501,213 536,694
z
g
= 1,629,520 1,623,804
g
5 Analysed into: AT
Unlisted shares FE LT AR D 197,232 202,019
Shares listed in Hong Kong REB LT 2 &M 918,942 916,695
Shares listed in Mainland China PR B R B E Tz B 7 513,346 505,090
1,629,520 1,623,804




20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(Continued)

The Group’'s trading balances with associates are
disclosed in notes 27 and 31 to the financial
statements, respectively.

The Group’s advances from associates of the Group
included in the Group’s other payable and accruals are

disclosed in note 32 of the financial statements.

Particulars of the material associates are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
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20. REtE AT ZIRE(E)

AEERSHHLAAT 2 BBER
85 5 B B R I B 75 R R M AT
27531 °

AEEBBEAREZ B RN
ARERER CANEERYZ AR
TR FE PO ube B 7S R MY 5232 e

TEMERRZHBOT:

Percentage of

ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group Principal activities
L
EEmAE
BHEAD I TEEH

Place of Particular of

incorporation/ issued

registration share capital/
Name and business registered capital

EMARL HECRTRE/
L] BRREBHE HAMEEFHE
DigiWin Software Co., Ltd. (‘DWS”")"* PRC/Mainland China RMB263,426,943
REGHRHBERAR(RERE) B/ HEAE AR 263,426,943
HC International, Inc. ("HCI")"** Cayman Islands/ HK$100,430,810
ERBERDA(ZEAE]) ** Mainland China #%100,430,8107T

MeRs /MAXE

# DWS is accounted for as an associate of the Group as the

Group is able to exercise significant influence over DWS
because the Group had more than 20% of the voting power
of DWS through a non-wholly-owned subsidiary and a wholly-
owned subsidiary.

# HCI is accounted for as an associate of the Group as the Group
is able to exercise significant influence over HCI because the
Group has representation on the board of directors of HCI and
participates in policy-making processes of HCI through a wholly-
owned subsidiary.

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

* Listed on the ChiNext of The Shenzhen Stock Exchange. The
total market value of the Group’s listed shares as at 31
December 2016 was HK$1,492,535,000.

*x Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The total market value of the Group’s listed shares as
at 31 December 2016 was HK$944,706,000.

The Group’s investments in the associates are held
through the subsidiaries of the Company.

All the associates have been accounted for using the
equity method in these financial statements.

11.02¢ Provision of ERP software and
related services

RAERPE (B AR

16.53*  Provision of B-to-B e-commerces
services

BEELRHFA

# SRERMBRE-—HFEZERENER
Ak-—HE2ERENBEAREARE
LB IBR0%M RIRE - HEERG
EBEEAFTE AUSERMHTIER
KREBNBE QT -

i rEERE-HEERAMNBARE
BEERBERG L ARE2ESES
ZRF B HEBRBAEERY
g AUZRENESASENEE

A -

. FEMBRB L KB M EBARLKE
&t BN 35 75 P L Al 2 B AR K B PR
% °

S ORI BT Bl AR £ o R=T—
ANE+TZA=+—A AEELHR
2 1B 58 A& 11,492,535,000
ﬁ o

i REBBHERSGMBER AR ER £
MmeR=ZFE—R"FEF+=ZA=+—8"
AEBEMRHZMELEARBE
944,706,0007T °

AEERBMERR 2RENERE
BARBZHBARFA -

PRAHE S QA1 B iR s A I e B
&R o
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INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

DWS, which is considered a material associate of the
Group, is engaged in the provision of ERP software and
related services and is accounted for using the equity
method.

IN ASSOCIATES

HCI, which is considered a material associate of
the Group, is engaged in the provision of B-to-B
e-commerces services and is accounted for using the
equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial

20. REtE AT 2/ E(E)

RREOHRISAKE 2 EREE
NAE] HREE R HERPE T KA
R M EIRERE SR

LNWWE$EIZEKM%Q
H%%“%%tx%iA&E
ﬁfﬂ

Yc?}qu“’

TRINRFBERE R ZREEHE

information in respect of DWS and HCI adjusted for ARRERCUMBERBRE
any differences in accounting policies:
DWS HCI
SBESRY EHA
2016 2015 2016 2015
—RE —h4F —NE —FA4E
HK$’'000 | HK$'000 HK$’'000 | HK$'00O0
BETT | BETT BT | BETIT
Current assets mEE E 1,083,131 [1,200,454 | 2,743,974 | 2,606,127
Non-current assets EMBEE 890,018 | 648,466 | 4,134,028 | 4174,574
Current liabilities mEAaE (666,858)| (497,471)| (2,698,235)((2,437,802)
Non-current liabilities JERENAE (3,135) (634)| (605,769)|(1,244,157)
Net assets BEFE 1,303,156 | 1,350,815 | 3,573,998 | 3,098,742
Less: Non-controlling & @ JE 2 B 4 5
interests 9,903 5,961 309,283 157,400
Net assets B N A AR R (S
attributable to ZEEFE
shareholders of the
associates 1,293,253 | 1,344,854 | 3,264,715 | 2,941,342
Net assets, excluding ZEFE X T8
goodwill of the NS
associate 1,303,156 | 1,344,252 | 2,390,482 | 1,869,997
Revenues A 1,332,834 | 1,256,232 | 2,289,506 | 1,128,187
Profit for the year REE i Al 49,698 14,491 351,532 28,395
Other comprehensive  H i 2 Uk =5
income/(loss) /(E518) 22,252 1,020 (67,060)| 172,989
Total comprehensive A E 2 K &=
income for the year R 71,950 15,511 284,472 201,384




20. INVESTMENTS
(Continued)

IN ASSOCIATES

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group’s associates that are not

individually material:
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20. REt B AT 2/ E(E)

TR AR H B &

A (F fE 5l

EXIZHBERAE:

2016 2015
—E-XE —E—AF
HK$’'000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Aggregate carrying amount of REEREERFZ
the Group’s investments in the KEMKRHEESF
associates 197,232 202,018
Share of the associates’ profit/ [JE{hEEE R A 2 ANEFE
(loss) for the year wmH (B 1E) (8,126) 6,884
Share of the associates’ total ELEE NR 2 ANEE
comprehensive income/(loss) 2EM = (E8)
for the year 4B RE (8,126) 6,884
21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 21. THEEZRE
2016 2015
ZE-XRF —ET—ARF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ika BET T BT T
Current B
Wealth management B Em &
financial products, at B AR ME
cost (a) 2,856,415 4,889
Non-current IE % B
Listed equity investments, tMEZRIRE -
at fair value BRIV EE (b) 172,455 186,926
Unlisted equity ELmEREE -
investments, at cost B KA B (b) 779,784 404,788
952,239 591,714

—

il

n

20164 )
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AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

(Continued)
Notes:
(a) Wealth management financial products were issued by

reputable financial institutions in Mainland China and have
original maturity from three months to one year (2015:
one month to three months) when acquired. These wealth
management financial products would mature in 2017.

(b) The investments consist of investments in equity securities
which were designated as available-for-sale financial assets and
have no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

There was a significant decline in the market value of certain
listed equity investments during the year. The directors
consider that such a decline indicates that the listed equity
investments have been impaired and an impairment loss
of HK$3,599,000 (2015: HK$28,994,000), which included
a reclassification from other comprehensive income of
HK$3,599,000 (2015: HK$28,994,000), has been recognised
in the statement of profit or loss for the year.

The Group’s unlisted equity investments and wealth management
financial products are measured at cost less impairment. The
directors consider that fair values of these investments cannot be
measured reliably because the probabilities of various estimates within
the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
values.

21. IHEHEZIRE (&)

Mt

(a)

(b)

BEHERSHPEREEEFHBE
BEOTRERBIHAR=EAZ—
F(ZZE—AF:—@AE=@EA) -
WEBMERER_T—LFHH -

HZERACEERESRE  ZEFR
EREERAHEESREE -

ETLMESEERZYPB TS
BEKRKETYK ZEERAX KA
NEMEEREERMERREEE
A7 %3,599,0007C (ZE—HEF : 5
#28,994,0007T) M BEIERE EA
2 E 4 %5 8 13,599,000 (ZF —
F 4 ¢ % #£28,994,0007T) 2 E# 5
BOERAEEBESRER -

AEE 23 LT HIRE RIRMERERA
ERAEIE - EFRA - AREHRERN
BB 20 AR 2 IR AT A R PRI
TR - BORORE A B I LA R 2
AT EME -
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22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES CENREHERE
2016 2015
—E-KE —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Finance lease receivables JE U g & T & F IR 736,803 375,975
Impairment B (22,674) (4,272) =
H:j,
714,129 371,703 8
=
“q
Non-current receivables JERE R IA %é
Finance lease mEMHS :'f:
— gross receivables — B SRIERE 352,532 421,250 e
Unearned finance income AEHEBERA (24,667) (49,547) §
5
327,865 371,703
= 233 &=
Current receivables B A m@
Finance lease MEMESE
— gross receivables — BWRKRIERRE 443,613 —
Unearned finance income REHRBEKA (57,349) —
386,264 —

An aged analysis of the finance lease receivables, as

RBEHR BUBEHEFRRZ

at the end of the reporting period, is as follows: FREOITAT
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥TT BT T

Finance lease receivables: FE W B E T & IR

Due within one year —F AR E B 400,454 —
Due in one to two years — = FH|H 222,198 270,482
Due in two to three years —E=FF 114,151 94,955
Due in three to four years = Z U4 5 5 = 10,538
736,803 375,975
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22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 22 FEWRSHERIE(E)
(Continued)

The movement in provision for impairment of finance

A TR R

lease receivables are as follows: EJRCINE
2016 2015
—E-RF —HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
At the beginning of year NN =R ) 4,272 —
Impairment losses recognised R ZIBEEE 20,102 4,272
Exchange realignments S (1,700) —
At the end of year MAFER 22,674 4,272

The Group provides finance leasing services on REBRPBEKERE TRER SR
certain equipment in Mainland China. These leases are MEHERY - ZFHECHER
@:1'"!%,_ classified as finance leases and have remaining lease BMEMHE  BRMsgp N F—Z=20F2

= 24 = terms ranging from one to four years. THER °
%n@

Minimum lease Present value of

'é payments minimum lease payments
& BEEESRE BEEEMRERE
2 2016 2015 2016 2015
= —B-AF |-T-6% |ZB-AEF |Z2-0fF
g HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$OOO
B BETT | BT | B¥%Tr| B%Trx
E
& Net finance lease JE Yt & 1 & 3UE
= receivables: H1E
5 Due with one year —FAREIH 443,613 — | 386,264 —
& Due in one to two —EZFE|H
,Tgo years 234,296 281,401 214,856 267,148
S Due in two to three —E %38

years 118,236 110,883 113,009 94,017

Due in three to four = ZE /04 E|H
years — 28,966 — 10,538

796,145 421,250 714,129 371,703

Less: unearned finance J&: A ZEIRFELE I A
income (82,016) (49,547)

Present value of EEHENZKBERE
minimum lease

payments 714129 371,703
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23. DEFERRED TAX 23.

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
during the year are as follows:

B E B IR
BELEHREAERBERAFERNZ
BT

EEBBEE

Deferred tax assets

2016
ZB-XEF
Losses
available for
offsetting against
future Asset Sales rebates b
taxable profits provisions payables Others Total IGS
AR R 8 g
R IR B SHERN I
B 2R BERE %A Hith st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 E
BT BT T BT BT BT T o
T
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"E—-A— 1,281 165,978 157,095 55,209 379,563 228
Deferred tax credited/(charged) AEER E?ﬁ %EP 84
to the statement of profit or A/ (k) 2 P
loss during the year EEHIE 40,853 48,573 23,314 (4,178) 108,562 w
Acquisition of subsidiaries U5 B BT R R R (A7 i£38) =
[note 38)] = 1,525 = = 1,525 b
Disposal of the discontinued HEFBECEER
operation (42,137) (162,211) (180,772) (14,476) (399,596) “Hlﬁy
Exchange realignment [& 5 3% 3 (4,025) 363 (2,095) (5,754) *‘,ﬂg_fa_
= 235 &=
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 RZZB—R%F
December 2016 +=ZA=t+—-H2
BIEHBAEAT = 49,840 = 34,460 84,300
e epeas N v -
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIEBEEE
2016
ZB-XREF
Unrealised
loss from Revaluation Purchase
intragroup of rebates  Withholding
transactions  properties receivables tax Others Total
EER
REEEZ 23 ik
ARAFR L/ESE3FN EWHE bRl Hity gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
BT BRI BT BT  E¥TT E¥TR
At 1 January 2016 RZT—R"E—A—8 74,793 79,549 48,330 93,539 2,172 298,383
Deferred tax charged/(credited) the — AFEREBm KT/
statement of profit or loss during (GEA) Z B IE B TR
the year (7,.391) 33,379 44,777 36,800 (1,472) 106,093
Deferred tax charged to the AEFRAERZEHRPN
statement of change in equity Bz IEER B
during the year = 150,452 = = = 150,452
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38] U B B B A B (A7 72 38) — — — — 9,877 9,877
Disposal of the discontinued HEFRHELEER
operation (67,595) = (89,828) (130,580) — (288,003)
Exchange realignment ERERS 193 (13,573) 116 241 (133) (13,156)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZF-RE+-A=1+—
at 31 December 2016 BeREREABRE — 249,807 3,395 — 10,444 263,646
Net deferred tax credited to the FEEREBRERTIAZ
statement of profit or loss during BEEREFR
the year (2,469)
Net deferred tax liabilities RZFB-—AFE+-A=1—
at 31 December 2016 AZEEHRBEEF (179,346)
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. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

23.

EIEBLIH (88)

Deferred tax assets ELEMIBEEE
2015
—ZT—hF
Losses
available for
offsetting Sales
against future Asset rebates
taxable profits provisions payables Others Total
7 PR 15 3 ‘
REEEB BEFM \
BNz EE BERE EARE Hit Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT EETT BETxT BETT BEETRT
At 1 January 2015 RZE—hE—H—H 19,392 162,505 163,441 27,160 372,498
Deferred tax credited/ REFERNEEDRHR
(charged) to the AR 2
statement of profit or iR 3E %6 18
loss during the year (16,483) 12,814 814 30,174 27,339
Exchange realignment ME 5, ) B (1,648) (9,341) (7,180) (2,125) (20,274)
Gross deferred tax assets WRZ-Z—hH4F
at 31 December 2015 TZA=+—HZ
EERIEE E AT 1,281 165,978 157,095 55,209 379,563
q o 3 . =
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAE
2015
—®—0fF
Unrealised
loss from  Revaluation Purchase
intragroup of rebates  Withholding
transactions properties  receivables tax Others Total
SER
RIEEZ R
AERER MEMLE FEWRIE itk HAth o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT BT BT BTt BETx
At 1 January 2015 R-ZT—hE—A—H 91,729 47163 38,139 = 2,858 179,889
Deferred tax charged/(credited) the AEFREBERPMB
statement of profit or loss during (GtA)Z BB E
the year (13,654) 34,576 12,386 95,180 (574) 127,914
Deferred tax charged to the AFERERREBRAN
statement of change in equity oz BT BB
during the year = 246 = = = 246
Exchange realignment e (3.282) (2.436) (2,185) (1.641) (112) (9.666)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 31 RZE-AF+-A=+—
December 2015 B2 REERBEERS 74,793 79,549 48,330 93,539 2172 298,383
Net deferred tax charged to the AEEAERBRTPNKRZ
statement of profit or loss during RIEBIEFE
the year 100,575
Net deferred tax assets at RZB-—RF+A=+—
31 December 2015 AZEERBAEFHE 81,180
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23. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 23. BEHIE(4E)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The following is an
analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group as
at the end of the reporting period and the deferred
tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss during the year for financial reporting

EER R B E (&)

EIME  HREMBIRNKAN
ETEREERAFECDEE - T
R RE BRI E 2 AN ERER &
SHRELEHBHRBELRAFEER
EFaBRaxTHR/GIA)ZE
B2 DM

purposes:
2016 2015
A —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T &M F T
Net deferred tax assets AT BARARFER
recognised in the consolidated ZIRETIEE IR
statement of financial position 68,176 78,450
Net deferred tax liabilities B BB AR R KFPER
recognised in the consolidated ZRERIBAEFE
statement of financial position (247,522) (84,963)
Net deferred tax assets included BHEEHEEE
in the disposal group ZIRERIBE E TR
(note 11) (K7 aE11) = 181,232
Net deferred tax liabilities BREEHESHE
included in the disposal group ZELEFIBAEFE
(note 11) (K7 aE11) — (93,539)
(179,346) 81,180
Net deferred tax charged to SEBICEEG 2 ANFETE
the consolidated statement of REBRRNERZ
profit or loss from continuing B E R K OF R
operations (note 10) (B 7£10) 21,203 51,413
Net deferred tax charged/ IR EREER I AEE
(credited) to the consolidated ANEHFEBERERP
statement of profit or ek (GtA)Z
loss from the discontinued iR JE T 18 % R
operation (23,672) 49,162
Net deferred tax charged/ REENEHREERKP
(credited) to the consolidated Mk (GtA) 2 BT
statement of profit or loss I8 EE
during the year (2,469) 100,575
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DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

The Group’s tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$508,090,000 (2015: HK$163,662,000) which are
due to expire within five years for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the subsidiaries in which the
losses arose, have not been recognised as deferred
tax assets. These tax losses and certain deductible
temporary differences of HK$42,817,000 (2015:
HK$34,022,000) have not been recognised as deferred
tax assets since they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been making losses for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement has
become effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rates is 5%
or 10%. The Group is therefore liable for withholding
taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2016, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established
in Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised
totalled HK$29,053,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$987,993,000).

23. i 3 1A ()

ELEFEEE (&)
AEBREPE AREZHIEEIE
/578 #508,090,000 T (—ZE— X
£ ##163,662,0007T) © A AR
WHEEBBZWB AR Z KK
JERFRH - EERAFAE®
WARERBELEFIEEE - AR
EREBEREE TR EREE
¥ 58 ¥%42,817000L(ZE— %
& 1 # #34,022,0007T) Ty 5K B E
EEE-BEEZHBAR -
RERBELEHBEEE AR E
Z 5 % 7K 0] BE 75 FE SR FX v ) DA 4K 8
AIE AR IEEIE -

BIEFPBRTERERE  PRAE
2B ECERIINRIEEE D
A& B, EIRI10% 2 T R U Fa
HeZBERN_ZEZTN\F—H—H
BEERTBEBRAR_ZTELF+=
A=+—BzRELZEBF - HE
FRARREEIINHIGEEEZRIEE R
BEEEBE S HE MERZ
AT KA TR IE - NEE 2 E A
i R A5%510% ° W 7 5 [F 78 5t
EREFESMARPEKREZ W BAFR
H_ZEZNF—HA—HEBEELEZHA
MET IR T2 &2 &4 E B
oo

R-E—ARF+-_A=+—H ®mAK
SEEM AP KEZ KB AR ER
MAELANZ BEMENHMES
WABRERMELEHRE EF2R
B EARBR  ZENB ARG
TERRZEBH  c RZT—RE+
ZA=+—8 - ERFRE KK
BRrrziREERE SR EEZRA
HHERERTMELHBEAE) A
7 #29,053,000L (= — A&
7 987,993,000 7T) °



23. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

As at 31 December 2015, deferred tax of
HK$93,539,000 included in the non-current liabilities
of the discontinued operation of the Group has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the subsidiaries in the discontinued
operation of the Group established outside a Mainland
China (the “Overseas Subsidiaries”) once distribution of
dividend to their shareholders incorporated in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is probable that
the Overseas Subsidiaries will distribute such earnings
in the foreseeable future.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

Notes to Financial Statements
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23. i3 IA ()

EEFEEE(E)
RZE—ARE+-_A=+—H8 2
RBHBHEAREEBBLEER
EMBABEPHERELERIB LK
93,539,000t * AEBEEFEHA
3B SN L Y FE R B A TS B
AR(DEINMHB AR - @ ES
B b s A S AR R D IR AR B
AEEFH M ARWEALTF -
FaiENN c EERAE - BINEE
NE) R A] R R A B R SRAE ) E Al AT
5K °

ARBABRZNZEE - Tk
BRIEHER -

24. INVENTORIES 24. 58
2016 2015
= —T-0fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trading stock BEH5FE 788,146 812,451
25. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25. EEYE
20186 2015
=i —F-EHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 January m—H—H 437,788 562,445
Additions = 50,815 200,885
Transfers to completed EREREHEREN
properties held for sale w I (226,218) (299,783)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 3 B (19,868) (25,759)
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 242,517 437,788
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s properties under development are situated
in Mainland China and are stated at cost.

At 31 December 2015, the Group’s properties under
development with a carrying value of HK$205,450,000
were pledge to secure certain bank loans of the Group
(note 33(a)).

Further particulars of the Group’s properties under
development are included on page 295.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE

The Group’s completed properties held for sale are
situated in Mainland China and are stated at cost.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of HK$85,727,000 of the Group’s
completed properties held for sale were transferred to
investment properties (note 19).

At 31 December 2015, certain items of the Group’s
completed properties held for sale with an aggregate
carrying amount of HK$32,855,000 were pledged to
secure interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group
(note 33(a)).

Further particulars of the Group’s major completed
properties held for sale are included on page 296.

25.

26.

HEMEGE)

AEBZEZYEBURNPEK
BE - WA AES B -

R-ZEBE—RE+=-_A=+—H K
£ BER|E A8 %205,450,0007T
ZEZYEBTUER  (EALXE
EESETRITERZERTE
33(a)) °

AEEBEEMEZE—FTFHBEEE
NEL95E A °

FIERERBMRITME

AEBEZFHFEHEREGNRTIYE
7 57 R B K B - 30 DA B AN B B
BE o

REBEE-_Z—RAF+_-_A=+
—BR - AEBEKREEAEEE
85,727,000t 2 FEHE R E &
BTYECEBEEZ R EME M=
15) °

R-ZEBE—FRAE+-_A=+—H K
& BBk | 8 &% %32,855,0007T
ZREHERBNRTIYMEE T
BH EARAEBEESHERTE
K2 PEAR (P 7£33(a)) °

AEERFHERAENRIME L
E—THFBEEENE296EA -



27. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
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27. FEUER A & B E 1

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current &

Accounts and bills receivables JE UK BR TR K e Uk 2R 4.164,343 3,947,398
Impairment B (292,256) (248,475)
3,872,087 3,700,923

Non-current ¥R B
Accounts receivable & I BR 3R 132,857 —
Impairment A (1,329) —
131,528 =
Total A 4,003,615 3,700,923

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit, except for new customers, where
payment in advance is normally required. The credit
period is generally 15 to 720 days in which the
credit period of factoring and micro-credit loans in
the New Business Segment is generally 90 to 720
days. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit
control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by management.
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group’s accounts and bills receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its
accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivable are

non-interest-bearing.

AEBEXTEUEEFRBERSE

1%?& H—REERMEFEN
B EEH—KAI15E720K -
ﬁﬂP%ﬁ%ﬁ%”*ﬂZFﬁ%{%ﬁ&J 5]
BEREBHEES M AE90=E720
X o REBEEARWKEEWFEE
MR B WRRAEEEEE
9 BRECEERRRERK - &
BE2 TR BHGTE A5
A ZEEHRBFETANEARNKE
MeE AL NoRE ERE M o BN £ X
Frii® - BEE EASE 2 B
?A&J%“M&?ev%iﬁikiﬁ%&zgﬁﬁ
B RmEERRETES  AEH
Iﬂiﬁﬁzaﬂﬂﬂzﬁ%a LRI B M
EH AR EMEERE o BUIER
I KB o
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27. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 27. FEUBR = & FE = 18
(Continued) (48)

RmERR  HERBHFERM
BRRER 2 BWERREEERE

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

Sy,

= 2 =
EN

invoice date and net of impairment, is as follows: IR DI
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEETT BT T
Within 30 days 30K 2,048,714 1,767,807
31 to 60 days 31£260X 342,964 305,622
61 to 90 days B1Z290K 115,122 209,369
91 to 180 days 91£180X 440,582 745,987
Over 180 days #1180k 1,056,233 672,138
4,003,615 3,700,923

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts

FEW R R B RIR 2 B ERE

and bills receivables are as follows: ZEBIINT ¢

% 2016 2015
o e —E-FF
§E HK$’000 HK$’000
s T T
=
% At the beginning of year NZINCIEE ) 246,475 879,794
go Amount written off as RUg Bl 2 8 & 58
= uncollectible (2,847) (36,985)
= Impairment losses recognised BRZBEEE 70,720 53,446
5 Impairment included in the BRETHESEE 2 RE
%‘0 disposal group = (599,377)
2 Exchange realignment PE 5 38 2 (20,763) (50,403)

At the end of year RAFER 293,585 246,475




27. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivables
that are not collectively considered to be impaired is
as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5
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7. FE W AR 3R % FE W 3R 4

(48)
7R 7 15 R 1B 2 8 Mt R 30 e M 3R
B2 REATRBMT

2016 2015

—F-AF —F—AF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEETT BEET T

Neither past due nor impaired REEI B RRVE 2,894,874 2,771,052
Less than 30 days past due B H D RB0K 191,931 72,656
3,086,805 2,843,708

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a large number of diversified customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of
the balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable.

Included in the Group’s accounts and bills receivables
are amounts due from joint ventures, an associate and
related companies of the Group of HK$134,941,000
(2015: HK$1,499,000), HK$103,000 (2015:
HK$179,000) and HK%$26,445,000 (2015: Nil),
respectively, which are repayable on credit terms
similar to those offered to the major customers of the
Group.

REHI B RRME 2 U R TY &
ZHETEPER REEOHY
AR IR Z R o

B HA R 1B I R E 2 FE U R K
DEETEYEFER Z55FP
EARSEABRIFNEGRLE - 1R
EBRELR ARREZRSEH
% RER I R B (E R E B
BRAREEFZEEEEYRENXN
R 2 AR BRI R R IR AR A 2 8K
Yem -

AEBRUKEREEREESSE
BRERERASE ZHEGEDE -
—MHBE AR M ZEBEARZK
I8 5 Bl & 7 #134,941,0007T (=
T — R4 B%1,499,0007T) * B
¥103,000L (Z T — R F: B &
179,0007T) X 5 #26,445,0007T
(ZE—hF: | BFEHTR
BERETASEFEXF 2EUE

ERREE-
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27. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
Financial assets that are derecognised in their

entirety

At 31 December 2016, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by reputable banks in the
PRC (the “Derecognised Bills”) to certain of its
suppliers in order to settle the accounts payable
due to such suppliers with a carrying amount in
aggregate of HK$6,345,000 (2015: HK$3,0839,000).
The Derecognised Bills have a maturity from one to
six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in
the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a
right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of
the directors, the Group has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognised
Bills. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
accounts payable. The maximum exposure to loss from
the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase
these Derecognised Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group’'s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Bills are not significant.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
has not recognised any gain or loss on the date of
transfer of the Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses
were recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively.

27. FEWBR &k & FE W ZE i

(48)
CEMRIEBEAZEHEE

RZE—RNFE+_A=+—H ' =&«
SERMEETHENEZEPIHES
BRRITEMANE TRKERE ([
IHERERE]D  LUEERSZEHR
FEERENER  REERAERD
#6,345,0007L (ZF — R F : B
3,089,0007T) - M¥EHIR - #&R1kE

REENERINT —=2~E
A - BEFBEZEEE  MEZEPH
IRITHER - RILERERFEAY
AEBHBEERE(FESR]D -
EERE AEEEEBREBAL
WREENORISHER LB - B
It - HEERIEERZKIEERER
MEBENEFRNEZHERE - &
SERFESRRIEBRREEUR
KR IEERERENARTRIR SR
MAEMESEERRBEERE
EEE@“%%M\Z\% KEEBFES
MRILERZENAFEBATTE
7{0

REBEE-T-—X"F+-_A=1t—H
IFFEAR  AEBYERNEZLIL
BRRE BRREER - AK
B A St R AR S K e AR AN BRRE Sk
/\E-‘—Tﬁﬁn



28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
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28. EfMIE - ERERHEMIE

RECEIVABLES W =K I8
2016 2015
A —T—A1F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ilz3 BETT BT T
Current B
Prepayments T8 I8 157,190 155,632
Due from contract EWENERP 2B
customers 29 774,938 646,727
Loans to joint ventures AeEPERME
B3R 19 459,185 395,846
Deposits and other & K& H M pE Uk
receivables A 561,619 385,368
1,952,932 1,583,573
Non-current R E
Prepayment for the B8 A - Hb {5 A
acquisition of a land use 8 7 ;I8
right — 382,731
Prepayments for equity BmRE 2B
investments KIE — 256,746
= 639,477

None of the above assets is either past due or
impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances relate to receivables for which there was no
recent history of default.

Included in the Group’s prepayments, deposits and
other receivables as at 31 December 2016 are (i)
loans of HK$383,900,000 (2015: HK$217,000,000)
to joint ventures of the Group, which are unsecured,
bears interest at rates ranging from 4.35% to 12%
(2015: 6% to 8%) per annum and are repayable within
one year from the end of the reporting period; and (ii)
a loan of HK$75,285,000 (2015: HK$178,846,000) to
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group’s joint venture,
Digital China Technology Industry Investment Co., Ltd.
(“DCTII"), which were secured by the entire interest of
DCTIl held by another joint venture of DCTIl as at 31
December 2015, bears interest at a rate of 16.15%
(2015: 15.10% to 16.15%) per annum and is repayable
within one year from the end of the reporting period.

A LEEELEBPKBE - FIA L
AL AE SRR B BRE BT AN R HE R
BEHOTENEUFIER -

R-E—XRF+-_A=+—H ' 8
EAEEZBEMNKIE  He LHAMW
& U #X 18 A ¢ (i) B #383,900,000
T(ZF — R 4F : B ¥217000,000
TARAAEEZHEHEGE D ERME
ERXR - -RBEHR ZEERLE
R BFEAT HL35%E212%
—ZE—FF 8% E8%) Z Fl Xt
B WHR—FREE: AR
#75,285,000L (= —HF : B
178,846,0007T) ARIAEE A &1
FMMNESEI R EERERREE
ARI([EBRREXRENDZEE
HEMBARIREER - ZZEEXK
RZE—RAF+_A=+—HA#®
BERREEREZS —GELEU
EREMEEREEXRENES
BRETERER BFIE1615%
—E—hF:1510% £16.15%) 2
MEFHE  UER—FREE -
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Notes to Financial Statements
Bt & 3R R MY RE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+-HA=+—H

29. DUE FROM/(TO) CONTRACT 29 Bl (EfEHEEZ

CUSTOMERS I8
2016 2015
—E-—XE —E—hF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
o3 BT T B F T
Gross amount due from B ETA B A FE Wz IE
contract customers ZRBREHER
included in other IE 2 858
receivables 28 774,938 646,727
Gross amount due to B AT A E A& F0IE
contract customers ZERNEHNER
included in other payables TRIB 2 HBER 32 (211,813) (185,712)
563,125 461,015
é&‘jﬂf%’ Contract costs incurred plus REDEL 244
& 26 &= recognised profits less B A DN E B 2R
m@ recognised losses to date MR EEREE 4,031,898 4,406,443
Less: Progress hillings W 2 R (3,468,773) (3,945,428)
563,125 461,015

30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 30.FR&RIREEFED
RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

Digital China Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—HRF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT ST T

Cash and bank balances R & RIR1T 4 & 2,713,890 3,197,300
Time deposits E HiF R 43,178 144,566
2,757,068 3,341,866

Less: Restricted bank balances B X R IR 1T 4 fR 58,910 69,654
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 2,698,158 3,272,212




30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31.

AND RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
("RMB”) amounted to HK%$2,490,267,000 (2015:
HK$2,960,038,000). The BMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between one day
and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payables as
at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

30. RERBTEEFEM(E)

31.

RBERR  NEBUARETA
RENEEZREEAECEEYA
# & 78 #2,490,267,0007T (= &
— A B#2,960,038,0007T) °
ARETBERLILAEME -
SR+ AR IR P B K BE 2 SINEE B 2 M
BIR4EE « HEREEEERTE -
AREEREFBEREETINE
EGZRITBARBL B AREME
?t\’g o

8171 K Th 28 B R AT 17 ORI % A
FHFENE - BHEHTRNT
HEE— X2 =EABMETE &
AEBHEHRSERME LR
4R B A1) 2 B 5 B9 77 R S B R
B o $RITEEB T RE B MR 5
BT EREY R -

FE 1 Bl 70 % FE 1 SR 4%
RIREEIA - R BB AR EN
PR RN R 2R AT -

2016 2015

—EB-RF —T—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT e

Within 30 days 30K 1,069,278 1,246,761
31 to 60 days 31£60X 327,893 245,030
B1 to 90 days B1£E90X 57,036 108,376
Over 90 days #83#AO0K 670,140 405,650
2,124,347 2,005,817
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 7 ¥R R M RE

31 December 2016 —Z—"F+-HA=+—H

31. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, included in the Group’s
accounts and bills payables are amounts due to
associates and related companies of the Group
of HK$148,000 (2015: HK%$1,239,000) and
HK$20,117,000 (2015: Nil), respectively, which are
repayable on credit terms similar to those obtained
from the major suppliers of the Group.

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled within a period of 30 to 180 days.

32. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

1. FE £ BR =R R FE A R 4R (1)

R-E—XRF+-_A=+—H &£
EEMERRENERSHEBRIEE
NAREEz ZMHEAF N ZEE
HENR Z FIAD B A’ 148,000
T (ZZ—H%F : H#1,239,0007T)
N A&#20117,000C (—E—HF !
/) WHEBRTIREAERF ZH
ER T4 T2 U ERREE -

EENERERETHE - T—RKR30E
180K HIEAEE -

32 HihrEFRRIERTEIRER

2016 2015

—EB-KF —E-RHF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

B & BT T BT T

Receipts in advance T8 IR BR 3K 1,101,318 840,791

Other payables H b FEAS KB 957,906 569,269

Accruals THIRE A 471,447 411,128

Payroll payables ERTE 294,931 200,151

Due to contract customers [ENEHNRFEZ KA 29 211,813 185,712

Contingent liabilities HANBE 20,061 —

Deferred income iR E WA 14,649 12,087
Loan from a subsidiary of a & & 1 %M EB A A

joint venture R ZER 19 — 35,769

Advances from associates % A 7] & 20 — 26

3,072,125 2,254,933

At 31 December 2016, other payables are non-
interest-bearing and have an average term of three
months. Except for a loan from a subsidiary of a joint
venture of the Group included in the Group’s other
payables with an amount of HK$35,769,000 at 31
December 2015 was unsecured, bore interest at a
rate of 4.6% per annum and was repayable within one
year, other payables are non-interest-bearing and have
an average term of three months.

R=ZFE—R"F+=ZA=+—0" &
thEMZTIETH S - FHERAE=
A - BREEEAEREMmEMNRK
HNAEBE AL PENBARRE
R-ZE—RAF+-_A=+—H&H
/& 7 35,769,000t H) & 2 3 &
W B46% 2 FI KB R AR
—FREEN  EMERZKEST
B FHHRA=ZM@EA -
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 33.MiERiTREMESE
BORROWINGS

2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE—-hF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BHA=E ViR
(Bot) ZHA BETR (Ao L) FEH BB T
Current RE
Bank loans, unsecured  $R{TE - &K 2.50-4.79 2017 2,122,832 | 0.05-6.09 2016 3,222,238
Bank loans, secured RITER FER 4.79-5.70 2017 2,750,407 | 5.08-5.64 2016 47,692
Current portion of long EHETER 2
term bank loans, mEEBG
— unsecured — EE A 5.64 2017 11,071 1.67-2.41 2016 1,064,848
— secured — HiEH 5.50-5.64 2017 93,276 — — —
Corporate bonds NGILE -
(note c) (P 3 ) 3.48 2017 221,428 — — —
5,199,014 4,334,778 ___§\$
=
Non-current Bk
Bank loans, unsecured  $R{TEF - HIKFE 2.75-5.88 2018-2023 381,964 | 2.34-5.06 2018-2020 775,000
Bank loans, secured RITER - FER 4.99-5.64 2018-2026 1,530,341 | 5.64-6.48 2017-2025 1,401,903
Corporate bonds RNAEFH
(note d) (Pt 5Ed) 4.90 2019 553,569 — — —
2,465,874 2,176,903
7,664,888 6,511,681
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33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (Continued)

33. MBRITREMER(E)

2016 2015
—E-RF —ET—RF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Analysed into: DI :
Bank loans repayable: EEERITER:
Within one year —&R 4,977,586 4,334,778
In the second year F_FNRA 634,944 107,308
In the third to fifth years, F=FEFRF
inclusive (BEERMSF) 493,230 1,389,980
Beyond five years B A F AN 784,131 679,615
6,889,891 6,511,681
Analysed into: DI :
Corporate bonds repayables: JEEENRIES
Within one year —&R 221,428 —
In the third to fifth years, F=FZFNF
inclusive (BEERMSF) 553,569 =
774,997 —

Notes:

(a)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured

by:

0]

(ii)

(iii)

mortgages over the buildings, which had an aggregate
carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
HK$173,097,000 (2015: HK$427,632,000) (note 14);

mortgages over investments properties, which
had an aggregate carrying value at the end of
the reporting period of HK$1,875,703,000 (2015:
HK$1,305,524,000) (note 15);

mortgages over the land use right, which had an
aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting
period of HK$23,073,000 (2015: HK$100,344,000)
(note 16);

Hrat

(a) AREEE TRITREMEKEATIE

R

0]

(ii)

(iii)

RBEHARAREEERLES
#173,097000t (= —#
& % ¥427,632,0007T) 2
12 (E K38 (KT 514)

RBEHREROELES
#1,875,703,0007T (= & —
T4 : #%1,305,524,0007T)
2B Y EEER (M 5E15)

REBHRAREDEBKE
23,073,000 (ZZE—H%F :
7 #100,344,0007T) 2 t i
£ A R4 1 (Bt 5216) ¢



33. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(d)

(Continued)

(iv) mortgages over properties under development, which
had an aggregate carrying value at 31 December 2015
of HK$205,450,000 (note 25);

(v) mortgages over completed properties held for sale,
which had an aggregate carrying value at 31 December
2015 of HK$32,855,000 (note 26);

(vi) The Group’s borrowings of HK$2,933,915,000 provided
by certain financial institutions were secured by
225,340,800 ordinary shares issued by DCITS, a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, directly held
by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, with an
aggregate fair value of HK$5,296,530,000 as at 31
December 2016.

At 31 December 2016, except for the bank borrowings
of HK$270,000,000 (2015: HK$650,000,000]),
HK$943,300,000 (2015: HK$2,945,619,000) and nil (2015:
HK$673,582,000) are denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
United States dollars and Euro dollars, respectively, the
remaining bank and other borrowings are denominated in RMB.

On 2 September 2016, DCITS issued short-term notes (the
“STN”) with a total principal amount of RMB200,000,000
(equivalent to HK$221,428,000) in the national inter-bank
market of the PRC. The STN carry interest at the rate of
3.48% per annum and will mature on 30 May 2017.

On 7 September 2016, Digital China Software Limited issued
medium-term notes (the “MTN”) with a total principal amount
of RMB500,000,000 (equivalent to HK$553,569,000) in the
national inter-bank market of the PRC. The MTN carry interest
at the rate of 4.9% per annum, which will be payable annually
on B September in arrears, and will mature on 6 September
2021 (with the investors’ option to sell back the notes after
the end of the third year from the issuance date).

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

33. MBRITREMERE)

Wit (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

€-))

(iv) RZE-—RAF+ZA=+—
BRBEHARAERAESE
205,450,000 2 7 & ¥ ¥
YEAE# (MY 5£25)

(v) R=ZFE—RAF+=A=+
—BEEEEEBELREBE
32,855,0007T 2 5 #4 & A
BRI W) R
26) ;

m

i) AEBRBELEEBEER
7 #2,933,915,0007T = M
CREBERHETFASEEE T
WEBRAR LWR=ZF—X&F
+=ZA=+—BARFF2
EHmANRBARSMMER(HE
BERARARZEREHNEBA
Al¥FA) #172225,340,800
BEBREAFEBEAE
#5,096,530,0007T £ & K&
-

v

R-ZB—RNE+-A=+—H8B' 5%
7l & # ¥270,000,0007T (= & —
T4 : 8 #650,000,0007T) « B #
943,300,000t (Z T — R F: B %
2,945,619,0007T) & E(=Z T — f
4 : 7% #673,582,0007T) 2 B 1T &
T T - ETRBBEBIIE - &
TRITREMERAARKS|E -

MRZZE—XRNENLAZH @M EER
THREHRES((BRPANES]
K& 48 % 5 A R #200,000,0007T
(HBZE N A8 #021,428,0007T) °
EHBMESFNEAEIA8% R
—tFRA=tBEXFREE -

RZZFE—AFALALH  @MNE&H
HHEBRARZETRYPER(PR
HERD "B EARARE
500,000,0007t (18 & » & & &
553,569,0007T) ° F Hi 2 #& F F| £
#"B4.9% FFRNARNBIN - AW
RZZE-—SNANBEH(HER
BERBTRAHNE-FRBFRE
REEEHZE) -
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. k&
Shares % 15
2016 2015
—E-—XE —E—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Authorised: JETE
2,000,000,000 2,000,000,0008%
(2015: 2,000,000,000) —E—RE:
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 2,000,000,0008%)
(2015: HK$0.1) each FlREEBE0T
—FE—REF:
BEEOIATL) 2B’ 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EBETREARKRRK:
1,234,655,581 1,234,655,581 1%
@EL"J’% (2015: 1,096,365,581) —E—AHE:
S x5 = ordinary shares of HK$0.1 1,096,365,581/%)
?’f@ﬂnﬁ (2015: HK$0.1) each 5 MR E B B0
—ZE R
BEOATT) 2 E B 123,466 109,637
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued) 34. EAR (&)
Shares (Continued) B%1p (48)
A summary of the movements in the Company’s issued REBEE-ZT-—R"FR-ZT—HFT
share capital and share premium account during the “A=+—HIEFER Zl—‘ Gl
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 is as BETRARKRMD R ERZSHH
follows: m
Number of
ordinary Share
shares premium S
in issue Issued capital account Total kg
BB &
BB BRTKRE ROBER 5t -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 §
BETT BETT BET T T
2
&
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—A&%—HF—H 1,093,738,581 109,374 2,060,433 2,169,807 Hifi
Exercise of share options 171§ BBk & (f7 iZa) g
(note a) 2,627,000 263 20,047 20,310 7
\ SO
At 31 December 2015 RZZ—RF =§253 %‘:
and 1 January 2016 +-A=+-AK £ I\§
—ZE—R"F—-A—H 1,096,365,581 109,637 2,080,480 2,190,117 '&ﬂ
Exercise of share options 17 F ¥ B% 1% (477 a)
(note a) 2,171,000 217 16,568 16,785
Issue of new shares BT R (M 2t b)
(note b and c] 136,119,000 13,612 697,786 711,398
Share-based payment BITHERDZ
expenses for shares VAR 1 = 15 & A
issued at discount (i ate)
(note cj = 43,658 43,658
Share issue expenses BITRNER — (1,819) (1,819)
At 31 December 2016 HR-Z— <&
—“A=+—H 1,234,655,581 123,466 2,836,673 2,960,139
Notes: |y
(a) During the year ended 31 December 2016, the subscription (a) REBEE-_Z—XRNE+-_HA=+—H

rights attaching to 2,171,000 (2015: 2,627,000)
options were exercised at a subscription price of HK$5.89
(2015: HK$5.89) per share, resulting in the issue of a total
of 2,171,000 (2015: 2,627,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$12,787,000 (2015: HK$15,473,000). An amount of
HK$3,998,000 (2015: HK$4,837,000) was transferred from
the employee share-based compensation reserve to the share

share

premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

¢¢J*ﬂq 2171,000h (=ZZF — H
4 : 2,627,00017) Mi B RERE 2 BRK
EAGRAES8I (=T —AF:
75 K5.897T) 2 R B (B & 1T {F
It - 252,171,000/ (=T — R 4F:
2,627,0004%) & i E & ¥0.17T 2
LM LIRS REGIRERAD A
7 #12,787,000c (ZF —HF + B
#15,473,0007T) T LAZE1T - REERR
EREATER - RBUE 3,998,000
(== — A% : % %4,837,0007T) K
SHEEHURDXTEE 2 M2 i
EREZRMOEEE -
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

On 1 June 2016, the Group entered into the conditional
sale and purchase agreement with Dragon City International
Investment Limited (‘Dragon City”), pursuant to which the
Group conditionally agreed to acquire and Dragon City
conditionally agreed to sell the entire interest in a property
located in Mainland China to the Group at the a maximum
total consideration of RMBB30 million (equivalent of HK$749.7
million), which shall be satisfied by the allotment and issuance
of shares of the Company. On 17 June 2016, 78,000,000
ordinary shares were issued by the Company to Dragon City
at issuance price of HK$5 per share for a cash consideration
of HK$390,000,000.

On 5 September 2016, the Company entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) with the
directors, other employees and a trust company (collectively
named as “Subscribers”), pursuant to which the Subscribers
have conditionally agreed to subscribe, and the Company
has conditionally agreed to allot and issue, an aggregate of
99,381,000 ordinary shares (“Subscription Shares”) at the
subscription price of HK$5.53 per share for an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$549,632,230. For all the Subscription
Shares, not more than 50% of shares will be released from
the lock-up period of six months after the issuance date, and
more than 50% of the shares will be released from the lock-
up period of twelve months after the issuance date.

On 21 December 2016, the Company issued 58,119,000
Subscription Shares at the subscription price of HK$5.53
per share, for a total consideration of approximately, before
expenses, HK$321,398,000.

Given the Subscription Shares were issued to the Subscribers at
a discount to the then market price of the Company’s shares for
the purpose to provide incentives and rewards to the Company’s
directors and other employees of the Group, the difference
between the total fair value of these shares and the total
consideration received by the Group of HK$49,735,000 (2015:
Nil) is accounted for as share-based payment expenses by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 (note B).

The fair values of these shares issued at discount were valued
by an external valuer, taking into account the liquidity of these
shares as a result of the aforesaid lock-up periods, and liquidity
discounts were applied to measure their fair values.

35. SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(a)

Share Option Schemes

The Company operates two share option schemes
One of the share option schemes was adopted
on 18 July 2002 (the “2002 Share Option
Scheme”) and the other share option scheme was
adopted on 15 August 2011 (the “2011 Share
Option Scheme”) (the 2002 Share Option Scheme
together with the 2011 Share Option Scheme,
hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Share
Option Schemes”).

34. Iz & (&)

M40 (48)

Hiet: (&)

(b) RZEBE-—XNREXA-—B &&
# £ Dragon City International

(c)

Investment Limited ([Dragon City])
RAIVERHEE RS Bl AEE
A &1+ R = #8 8 & Dragon City/h A
SR RENek= S VA NGIE NS E J: )
2HERTAEE  BREZZR/A
R#¥B30B &7 (IHENBRK749.780
Bn) WEBERETARAKRGDH
XX - RZE—RFXA+ER
AABIAEBRABBESTHETERE
7778,000,000/% & i@ A% F Dragon
Gity * 34 £ 855 #%390,000,000
=0

MRZZE—RENARH  KRREE
TEE HMEEREEAAHHE
RIRBADITLRABEHHE(RE
Wl B REAGHRARER
B mMARBEGEREZSBREN
HBH553TT e RIBES AR B RELT
99,391,000 & @A ([REEEAD ) -

] e KB 4% A% 549,632,230
ToRMERBRMAMS TR

50%.2 B0 74 8 17 B HI R /< 8 A 2R
BREE - MZR50%2 IR IR BT
BHR T —EAMBREE -

RZZE—R"E+ZA=+—H &2
AIE IR SR #5553 T REE
%% 1758,119,000/ R ik 5 - K
B (k& A Al A& % 321,398,000
= o

BN RERMDIZARARRG ERHE
ZIREERT  LWARRREZERAE
SEHMESREBRERER - Mz
ERMHZEATFEELLERENESE
BB #49,735,000T (=T — R 4F:
&) B AREBE-_ZT—X E+=A
=t BUHEEEARBRNIHZER
(Fff 36) °

% BT & B B A T B (B S EE A
ERETHE TEEINZEROE
A 25 B R RO B I BT ER A
SAEEAFEE-

35. B #E 3 Bt &l

(a)

AR RERTE

KRN F) A W E R AE 5 2
HEh—EBREAERN=
E-_F+A+NB(=ZEE=
FEBREFEDESN MR
—REEREFEIRN = ——
FNATHRB(ZZE——F8
R DRA(ZEEF
BRESER_FT——FE
IS M s B T~ X A [ R A
EErED o

o

Al



35. SHARE-BASED

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(Continued)

(a)

Share Option Schemes (Continued)
The principal terms of the Share Option Schemes
are as follows:

0]

(1

{m

Purpose

The Share Option Schemes seek to
recognise and acknowledge the contributions
or potential contributions made or to be
made by the qualified persons (as defined
below) to the Group, to motivate the qualified
persons to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group,
and to maintain or attract business
relationships with the qualified persons
whose contributions are or may be beneficial
to the growth of the Group.

Gualified persons

Any part-time or full-time employee or
officer or director (including executive, non-
executive or independent non-executive
directors) of any member of the Group or
of any associated company, or any supplier,
agent, customer, joint venture partner,
strategic alliance partner, distributor,
professional adviser of, or consultant or
contractor to, any member of the Group,
or the trustee of any trust pre-approved by
the board of directors of the Company, the
beneficiary (or in case of discretionary trust,
the discretionary objects) of which includes
any of the above-mentioned persons.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares available
for issue under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme immediately before its expiry was
86,303,308 and that under the 2011
Share Option Scheme was 109,206,058,
which represent 6.80% and 8.60% of share
capital of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the financial statements,
respectively.
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35. B # ) BT 81 (&)

(a) BER#ER S (&)
BT EEGRFRAT

0]

(1

{m

B #9
BI85 £ HER
EHABEBAL(ESR
RTX)EARNEEME
H e 1EH 2 BBk A
BEZER - BUABES
ERALRAKEZH
mfERRBERREERE
LR - A MR SR R
HEBBALHNEBEH
% AEBALTHRR
ZELEEINAEAEHE
HY R o

AREBAL

AEBERKERRHK
EfIEE QR 2 E/E2
B RBESHISMA
BERER(EREAT
FERITHBILIFATE
%) AAKEEMAKE
REZEAHER - K
B BF A2EH.
RESMBBRN D
B BEXAEAALER
FARE  AARFE
EEHEEEMTEA
B EREMALZE
MERE&ERERE
o RneERENY
RIZEFEA

w=ERGEE
E_TT-_FHEKE
5T & K &% Ay AT @ B
TZRHhESHE A
86,303,308/% K £ —
T ——FHERETET
AHBTIRNES
B %&109,206,058%
2 Bl Ak AN B 75 R R it
HEBHZARFEETT
% 7~6.80% % 8.60% -
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35. SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE SCHEMES
(Continued)
(a) Share Option Schemes (Continued)
(IV] Maximum entitlement of each qualified

person

The maximum number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options

granted under the Share Option Schemes

and any other share option schemes of the
Company to each qualified person (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in
any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company then in issue. Any
further grant of share options in excess of
this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval
in a general meeting of the Company.

Any grant of options to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of
the Company or any of their respective
associates must be approved by the
independent non-executive directors of the
Company (except when the independent non-
executive director is the grantee of such
options).

Any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any
of their respective associates must, in
addition to obtaining the approval of the
independent non-executive directors of the
Company, be approved by the shareholders
of the Company in a general meeting if
such proposed grant of share options,
when aggregated with all options (whether
exercised, cancelled or outstanding) already
granted to such substantial shareholder or
independent non-executive director during
the 12-month period up to and including
the date of such grant of options, would (i)
entitle that relevant person to receive more
than 0.1% of the total issued share capital
of the Company for the time being; and (ii)
represent an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at the date of such grant.
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35. SHARE-

BASED INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(Continued)
(a) Share Option Schemes (Continued)

(V)

(i

(Vi)

Timing for exercise of options

The period during which an option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Schemes shall be the
period set out in the relevant offer letter,
provided that such period must expire on
the date falling on the tenth anniversary of
the offer date.

Acceptance of offers

An offer of the grant of an option shall be
accepted by the grantee on or before the
last date for acceptance of such offer as set
out in the relevant offer letter, which must
not be more than 28 business days from
the relevant offer date. A consideration of
HK$1.00 shall be received by the Company
on acceptance of each offer.

Basis for determination of the

subscription price

The subscription price shall be the highest
of (a) the closing price of the shares on the
offer date; (b) the average of the closing
prices of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the offer date;
or (c) the nominal value of a share.

(VIll] Life of Share Option Schemes

The 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2011
Share Option Scheme shall remain valid
and effective for a period of ten years
commencing from 18 July 2002 and 15
August 2011, respectively, being the dates
on which such schemes were deemed to
take effect in accordance with their terms.
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35. SHARE-BASED
(Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements
Bt 15 R 2 K
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INCENTIVE SCHEMES

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

The

following table shows the movements

in the share options under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme during the year and the options
outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

35. B # 3 BT 81 (&)

(a)

Number of share options

REERA

Outstanding Granted Exercise

BRETE(E)

TR

—EEFHER

BETETHEERERAFEENR
ZEE  UERFNRFR
) R AT 8 2 B B -

Lapsed  Outstanding Subscription

as at during the during the during the as at price per
Grantee 1/1/2016 year year year 31/12/2016 share Date of grant Exercisable period
RZB-RE RB-RF
-A-H REE REE AEE TZAZt-H
ARA LEXHd R R RER HATE SRIBE RUAH s
(HKS)
[note i) [note ] [note i)
(B
(Hiii) (Witi) (Wati)
Director
YAN Guorong
(resigned on
8 March 2016) 668,000 = = = 668,000 15.04 11/01/2011 11/01/2012-10/01/2019
Other employees HitER 2,175,000 — (2171,000) (4,000) - 5.89 21/05/2008 21/05/2008-20/05/2016
3,310,000 = — (1820000  3128,000 15.04 11/01/2011 11/01/2012-10/01/2019
In aggregate At 6,153,000 — (2171,000) (186,000) 3,796,000
Notes: oz

0]

(i1)

(iii)

(iv)

The subscription price of the options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

All options granted are subject to a vesting period of
four years with 25% becoming exercisable on the first
anniversary, 25% on the second anniversary, 25% on
the third anniversary and 25% on the fourth anniversary
of the respective dates of grant.

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year was
HK$8.66 per share (2015: HK$8.597).

No options were granted and cancelled under the 2002
Share Option Scheme during the year.

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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BB R A TR -
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FZHBRITEE » 25%A NF
ZRFZARRITRE - k25%
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35. SHARE-BASED 35. IR Bh et &I (48)
(Continued)
(a) Share Option Schemes (Continued) (a)

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

BRESTE (E)

Share options do not confer rights on the holders
to dividends or to vote at general meetings.

Since the adoption of the 2011 Share Option
Scheme, no options were granted, lapsed or

BREYEETRAAZS
BREIRBERAGLEER
R -

BRI — — F R
212 - B ML RUE R 5 = F

cancelled under the 2011 Share Option Scheme. ——FRERE 2 ER ﬁ
R EUH ° S
The fair values of the share options granted during RiBEFEEAMEDER =
the prior years amounted to HK$53,000,000, BEHNRAFTEEAEXAEE o
of which the Group recognised share option 53,000,0007C - REZ-F Eﬁ
expenses of HK$34,000 during the year ended —RF+_A=+—HLFE &
31 December 2015, 7Y 7S o B 3R B AR M B X b
7% 75 #34,0007T ° =
The fair values of the share options granted under T _FEREFTET iz,
the 2002 Share Option Scheme were estimated IR EREZAFEERAT =

as at the dates of grant, using a binomial model,
taking into account of the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

RERREERRA-ZER
BEAGE  EhEsthERE
2R EARK R AR - TRE
SRR ARE 2 BB EF

11 January 21 May
Granted on: 2011 2008

—g——f —2BNE
RHER: —At+—8H EA=+—H
Dividend vyield (%) 3.5 per annum 3.5 per annum
REE(BDL) HFE35 BF35
Expected volatility (%) 48 per annum 45 per annum
TEHRE (B S tk) T 48 T F45
Historical volatility (%) 48 per annum 45 per annum
BAEKE(BED L) T 548 FF45
Risk-free interest rate (%) 2.1 per annum 2.6 per annum
EEBRFNE(AD L) B2 FF2.6
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 14.98 5.89

e RBAE (BB IT)
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35. SHARE-BASED

Notes to Financial Statements
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INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(Continued)

(a)

Share Option Schemes (Continued)

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is
not necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns
that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

As at 31 December 2016, the Company had
3,796,000 (2015: 6,153,000) share options
outstanding under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding
share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 3,796,000 (2015: 6,153,000) additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional
share capital of approximately HK$380,000
(2015: HK$615,000) and share premium
of approximately HK$56,712,000 (2015:
HK$72,025,000) (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
on 25 January 2017, a total of 108,200,000
share options were granted under the 2011
Share Option Scheme to certain directors of the
Company and other employees of the Group in
order to award their services to the Group with
an exercise price of HK$6.71 per share and an
exercise period from 25 January 2017 to 24
January 2025. The share price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant was HK$86.71 per
share.

At the date of approval of these financial
statements, the Company had 3,786,000 share
options outstanding under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and 109,200,000 share options
outstanding under the 20711 Share Option
Scheme, which represented approximately 0.3%
and 8.60%, respectively, of the Company’s shares
in issue as at that date.
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35. SHARE-BASED

INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(Continued)

(b)

Restricted Share Award Scheme

The Company’s RSA Scheme was adopted on 28
March 2011 for the purpose of rewarding and
motivating, among others, directors (including
executive and non-executive) and employees of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Participants”)
with the shares of the Company. The RSA Scheme
is intended to attract and retain the best available
personnel, and encourage and motivate the
Participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Group and the Company’s shares by aligning
their interests with those of the shareholders of
the Company.

Pursuant to the RSA Scheme, existing shares of
the Company will be purchased by the trustee
of the RSA Scheme from the market out of
cash contributed by the Group and be held in
trust for the relevant Participants until such
shares are vested with the relevant Participants
in accordance with the provisions of the RSA
Scheme. The shares of the Company granted
under the RSA Scheme and held by the trustee
until vesting are referred to as the RSUs and
each RSU shall represent one ordinary share of
the Company.

No RSUs were granted to the Participants and no
RSUs were outstanding during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
on 26 January 2017, a total of 21,471,185 RSUs
were granted to certain directors of the Company
and other employees of the Group in order to
award their services to the Group. These RSUs
vested on 26 January 2017. The share price of
the Company’s shares at the date of grant was
HK$6.77 per share.
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35. SHARE-BASED INCENTIVE SCHEMES

(Continued)

(c) Share issued at discount

On 21 December 2016, 58,119,000 ordinary
shares of the Company had been issued to certain
directors of the Company and other employees
of the Group at a discount to the then market
price of the Company’'s shares for the purpose
to provide them with incentives and rewards
for their services rendered to the Group, and
the related share-based payment expenses of
HK$49,735,000 were recognised by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
Nil) (note B). Further details are disclosed in note
34(c) to the financial statements.

36. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 124 to page 125 of the financial
statements.

Reserve funds

Reserve funds are reserves set aside in accordance
with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to the
Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China. These reserve
funds can be used to offset accumulated losses but
are not be distributable in the form of cash dividends.
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS

On 22 July 2014 and 20 August 2014, DCITS, an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a share purchase agreement and related
supplemental acquisition agreements (collectively
the “Acquisition Agreements”) with the shareholders
of Beijing Zhongnong Xinda Information Technology
Limited (“Zhongnong Xinda”), pursuant to which
the shareholders of Zhongnong Xinda (“the Original
Shareholders of Zhongnong Xinda”) agreed to sell and
DCITS agreed to acquire 100% equity interests in
Zhongnong Xinda (the “Acquisition”). Zhongnong Xinda is
a private company with limited liability established under
the laws of the PRC and is principally engaged in the
rural information related services. The total purchase
consideration was settled by:

(a) issuance of 20,520,227 new shares of DCITS to
the Original Shareholders of Zhongnong Xinda (the
“Zhongnong Xinda Consideration Shares”). After
completion of the issuance of the Zhongnong
Xinda Consideration Shares, the equity interests
in DCITS held indirectly by the Company was
reduced from 45.17% to 43.12%; and

(b) cash of RMB213,000,000, which was raised from
issuance of 7,171,717 new shares (the “Placing
Shares”) at BMB33 per share (the “Placement”).
After completion of the issuances of the Placing
Shares, the equity interests in DCITS held
indirectly by the Company was further reduced
from 43.12% to 42.44%.
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PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (Continued)

As part of the Acquisition, DCITS also entered
into a profit compensation agreement and related
supplemental profit compensation agreements
(collectively the “Zhongnong Xinda Profit Compensation
Agreements”) with the QOriginal Shareholders of
Zhongnong Xinda, pursuant to which the Original
Shareholders of Zhongnong Xinda agreed to pay a cash-
based compensation or a share-based compensation or
a combination of cash-based compensation and share-
based compensation to DCITS if there is any shortfall
between the cumulative actual net profit and the
cumulative committed net profit of Zhongnong Xinda for
the financial year ended 31 December 2014 and each
of the financial years ending 31 December 2015 and
2016. The payment methods would be fully decided by
the Original Shareholders of Zhongnong Xinda.

The compensation for each of the relevant financial
years shall be calculated based on any shortfall between
the projected net profits of Zhongnong Xinda for each
of the financial years ended 31 December 2014, 2015
and 2016 and the actual net profits of Zhongnong
Xinda for each of these financial years.

As at 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016, no
compensation from the Original Shareholders of
Zhongnong Xinda is considered necessary to be
recognised in relation to the Zhongnong Xinda Profit
Compensation Agreements.

As part of the Acquisition Agreements, DCITS
committed to give rewards to the certain management
who were also the existing shareholders of Zhongnong
Xinda (the “Management Shareholders”) if certain
predetermined performance conditions are fulfilled
which included but not limited to (1) the cumulative
actual net profit exceeds the cumulative committed
net profit of Zhongnong Xinda for the financial year
ended 31 December 2014 and each of the financial
years ending 31 December 2015 and 2016; and (2)
the Management Shareholders do not resign from
Zhongnong Xinda as at 31 December 2017. The
rewards, which are considered as remuneration to
the Management Shareholders, are calculated based
on 50% of the surplus between the cumulative actual
net profits and the cumulative committed net profit
(the “Surplus”), should be accrued based on the best
estimation of the Surplus at every financial year end
of 2014, 2015 and 2016 in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, HK%$1,240,000 (2015:
HK$4,480,000]) is accrued in relation to the expected
rewards to be given to the Management Shareholders.

On 24 May 2016, DCITS entered into a share purchase
agreement (the “2016 Acquisition Agreement”) with the
shareholders of Howso Technology, pursuant to which
the shareholders of Howso Technology agreed to sell
and DCITS agreed to acquire 96.03% equity interests
in Howso Technology (the “2016 Acquisition”) for a total
consideration of RMB1,152,338,870.43 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,275,798,000). Howso Technology
is a private company with limited liability established
under the laws of the PRC and is principally engaged in
the mobile network optimisation and big data services
for communications. The total purchase consideration
was settled by:

(a) 50% of the purchase consideration of
BRMB576,169,435.22 was settled by issuance
of 23,092,959 new shares of DCITS to the
shareholders of Howso Technology (the “Howso
Technology Consideration Shares”). After
completion of the issuance of the Howso
Technology Consideration Shares, the equity
interests in DCITS held indirectly by the Company
was reduced from 42.44% to 41.40%; and

(b) 50% of the purchase consideration of
RMB576,169,435.21 was settled by cash, which
was raised from issuance of 22,526,398 new
shares of DCITS (the “2016 Placing Shares”) at
BMB25.57 per share. After completion of the
issuances of the 2016 Placing Shares, the equity
interests in DCITS held indirectly by the Company
was further reduced from 41.40% to 40.43%.
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PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (Continued)

On 25 May 2016, 8 July 2016 and 9 August 2016,
DCITS entered into acquisition agreements to acquire
a total of approximately 2.57% equity interests in
Howso Technology (“Further Acquisitions”) for a total
cash consideration of RMB30,845,417.07 (equivalent
to approximately HK$34,150,000) from a shareholder
of Howso Technology. After the completion of 2016
Acquisition and Further Acquisitions, DCITS acquired
98.60% equity interests in Howso Technology.

As part of the 2016 Acquisition, DCITS also entered
into a profit compensation agreement (the “Howso
Technology Profit Compensation Agreement”) with
the shareholders of Howso Technology, pursuant to
which the shareholders of Howso Technology agreed
to pay a cash-based compensation or a share-
based compensation or a combination of cash-based
compensation and share-based compensation to DCITS
if there is any shortfall between the cumulative actual
net profit and the cumulative committed net profit
of Howso Technology for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 and each of the financial years ending
31 December 2017 and 2018. The payment methods
would be fully decided by the shareholders of Howso
Technology.

The compensation for each of the relevant financial
years shall be calculated based on any shortfall between
the projected net profits of Howso Technology for each
of the financial year ended 31 December 2016, and the
financial years ending 31 December 2017 and 2018
and the actual net profits of Howso Technology for each
of these financial years.

As at 31 December 2016, no compensation from
the shareholders of Howso Technology is considered
necessary to be recognised in relation to the Howso
Technology Profit Compensation Agreement.
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES

WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS (Continued)

As part of the 2016 Acquisition Agreement, DCITS
committed to give rewards to the certain management
who were also the existing shareholders of Howso
Technology (the “Howso Technology Management
Shareholders”) if certain predetermined performance
conditions are fulfiled which included but not limited
to (1) the cumulative actual net profit exceeds the
cumulative committed net profit of Howso Technology
for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 and
each of the financial years ending 31 December 2017
and 2018; and (2) the Howso Technology Management
Shareholders do not resign from Howso Technology
as at 31 December 2018. The rewards, which are
considered as remuneration to the Howso Technology
Management Shareholders, are calculated based on
50% of the surplus between the cumulative actual
net profits and the cumulative committed net profit
(the “Surplus®), should be accrued based on the best
estimation of the Surplus at every financial year end
of 2016, 2017 and 2018 in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

As at 31 December 2016, HK$731,000 is accrued in
relation to the expected rewards to be given to the
Howso Technology Management Shareholders.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s equity interests
in DCITS held indirectly by the Company was 40.43%
(2015: 42.44%), the Group still retained its rights
to nominate three out of the five (2015: three out
of the six) non-independent directors of the board of
directors of DCITS. Taking into account the Group’s
power to participate in the operational and financial
activities of DCITS, distribution of key shareholders
and their beneficial shareholders as well as historical
voting patterns, and the existence of any contractual
arrangement among the shareholders and/or their
beneficial shareholders, if any, the directors of the
Company are of the view that the equity holdings in
DCITS are dispersed in a way that other shareholders
have not organised and the practical risk to organise
their holdings to outvote the Group in the shareholders’
meeting of DCITS is remote so that the Group can
still exercise more voting power than the minority
shareholders. Therefore, the directors of the Company
are of the view that the Company still retains de facto
control over DCITS. Further details are included in note
3 to these financial statements.
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES 37 BEEXI ERERSZE

WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING SEEMBATE(E)
INTERESTS (Continued)
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material BAERNFIERER 2 RN EENE
non-controlling interests are set out below: NAZFBEET :
2016 2015
A —T—AhF
Percentage of equity interest held  3F 1% A% # 25 % /5 &9 A% 4
by non-controlling interests: B
DCITS EUNEESS 59.57% 57.56%
2016 2015
—E2-RF —E—hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
. \ P,
s Profit for the year allocated to DN IEERER 2
=-§_~§';68 2 non-controlling interests: A &g A
= I\ﬁ DCITS RN RS 159,401 202,741
Accumulated balances of non- MR EHR 2 JEE R =
controlling interests at the B RETEREE
reporting date:
DCITS HHE B 3,142,875 2,316,521
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37. MAEXFEEREZ 2
SHAMBAE (&)

37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES
WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS (Continued)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations:

TRIVRAEE i ERRE
BERBE - KEFNEERAZSQ
A EEANEERE:

DCITS and its subsidiaries

BMNEEREHE AT -
2016 2015 i
—B-AE TR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 E
BT BT §
Revenue and other income AU A R H b U 2= 9,316,916 8,324,415 =
Total cost and expenses AN B AR (9,028,831) (7.875,955) ]
Profit for the year NF JE 5 A 288,085 448,460 5
— attributable to equity holders — 53E R IN{EE &
of DCITS and subsidiaries HME AR 2 BER ‘é“ﬂg%
% 273,504 423,624 %@ﬂm@
Total comprehensive income REE2EY R BRE
for the year 45,523 266,542
— attributable to equity holders — 53Rt IN{EE &
of DCITS and subsidiaries HMBE AR 2 KRR
T 25 30,942 241,706
Current assets mE A E 7,098,883 7,029,498
Non-current assets FERBEE 3,456,652 1,745,013
Current liabilities mE B & 5,288,658 4,840,695
Non-current liabilities FnmBEE 48,915 —
Net cash flows from operating REXBHMEHRERE
activities b=t 659,643 93,455
Net cash flows used in investing REEZBMARSKE
activities FHR (1,194,900) (43,533)
Net cash flows from financing BREEHAEREERAE
activities FER 360,054 161,407
Net increase/(decrease) in cash R&NIEESEEWIEMm,
and cash equivalents ORi ) 558 (175,203) 211,329
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38. BUSINESS COMBINATION 38. £H &
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group REBEE-_ZT—XRE+-_F=+—H
entered into the acquisition agreements for the IEFER - AEBAT W I
acquisition of the equity interests in subsidiaries. BB P B~ R AR AE -
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities RKEBBHNB AR #A & E
of the subsidiaries as at the date of acquisition were RBEZAFEBELT:
as follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
U B8 R R
2T EE
Notes HK$'000
H &t BT T
Property, plant and equipment mE - WE&&RE 14 39,036
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 18 55,461
Available-for-sale investments AEEEZRE 11,872
Deferred tax assets RIETIEE E 23 1,525
Inventories FE 302,209
Accounts and bills receivables JE W2 BR 3R I FE W = R 178,698
Prepayments, deposits and other ERRIE - 2Rk
receivables H b e W 5k 18 46,380
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEEYD 129,381
Accounts and bills payables EERA L EMNEE (67,701)
Other payables and accruals HEmEMRIENRERER (193,933)
Tax payable JE # %1 18 (4,057)
Interest-bearing bank and other Bt 2 ER1T R
borrowings HEMER (38,750)
Deferred tax liabilities EXEBIBRE 23 (8.877)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value FAJ:#RI&EEFEZ
NFEE 450,244
Non-controlling interests on acquisitions 4% 8% 2 3F 4% A% # 25 (51,522)
Goodwill on acquisitions Rl Y 17 1,073,696
Satisfied by: AT
— Cash — Be 626,074
— lIssuance of shares — BITRMD 637,899
— Other receivables — Hib R FRIE 23,750
— Other payables — H b B IR 184,695

1,472,418




38.

39.

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the
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38. X5 & fit (&)
EHKERBAT 2R RESN

acquisition of subsidiaries is as follows: ONE
HK$’000
BT T
Cash consideration HeRE (626,074)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Fri s € RIRSFEY 129,381
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included FTAREEHHIRSTE
in cash flows from investing activities WIRE RIREEEYR
L F 5 (496,693)

Since the acquisitions, the subsidiaries contributed
HK$320,457,000 to the Group’s revenue and
HK$28,596,000 to the consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of
the year, the revenue from operations of the Group
and the profit of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 would have been HK$600,573,000
and HK$41,635,000, respectively.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

The details of disposal of subsidiaries engaged the
discontinued operation during the year ended 31
December 2016 are included in note 11 to the financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
entered into the a share transfer agreement for the
disposal of its equity interest in a subsidiary for a total
considerations of HK$62,300,000.

BlER  WBRARREBEE_Z—

NET-_A=T—HIEFERAAE
B B Bl & %588 %320,457,0007T
N 47 & i K 7% #28,596,0007T °

WeaEHERFNELE  AEER
HE_ZT—X"F+=-A=+—8”
IEFE Z WA RE A =5 5 5l
A 7 ¥600,573,0007T K B
41,635,0007T °

39. HEMEBAT
REBE-T—AE+-A=+—8
FEERHEREE S ECSER
THEBAT Y HEEAEE LTS
SEATEILE

REBEE=-ZT— £¢+—H*+—El
EFEARN  AEERET—HlRHE
e ﬁ%—FWﬁF A2 R i -
@R (B £ A B 62,300,0007T °
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 39. HEMB A S (E)

Details of the net assets disposed of under the share
impacts are
summarised below during the year ended 31 December

transfer agreement and the financial

REE-F-RF+-A=+—8
I - R IR 8 15 3 A3
0 4 R (B R R AT B

2015: N
31 December
2015
—E—A0F
+=—A=+—H
Notes HK$’000
k3 BT T

Net assets disposed of: HEEEBME:
Property, plant and equipment M- BRENEE 14 452
Prepayments, deposits and other BRRIE - - E2 Rk

receivables H fth & W 5K IR 61,802
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREEED 11
62,265
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHRBAR 2= 5 35
62,300
Satisfied by cash XN RBE 62,300

An analysis of the cash inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary

is as follows:

HE—HNBARIZRERREE
EYMRAFEZONET :

31 December

2015

—E—hfF

+=—RA=+—H

HK$'000

BT T

Cash consideration ReRE 62,300

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHEBRERREEFEY (11)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HE—FEHBEARZERE X

in respect of the disposal of a REeEEYR A FE
subsidiary 62,289




40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

41.

The Group made a provision for liabilities with an
amount of approximately RMB18,120,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$20,061,000) for the year ended
31 December 2016 in respect of the judgment handed
down by Suzhou Intermediary People’s Court ((2015) Su
Zhong Shang Chu Zi No. 00145) for a case involving
DCITS, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
DCITS, the first defendant and the plaintiff of the case
has filed an appeal to Jiangsu Provincial Higher People’s
Court against the judgment of the first trial. As at the
date of approval of these financial information, a verdict
has yet to be issued.

After considering the judgment of the first trial made
by Suzhou Intermediary People’s Court and the legal
advices given by the legal counsel, the directors of the
Company are on the opinion that no further provision
is considered necessary as at 31 December 2016.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15 to the financial statements) under operating
lease arrangements, with leases negotiated for
terms of ranging from six months to ten years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenant to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total
future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants
falling due as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

40. A EB&E

41.

AREBREBEE-_ZT—X~E+ -1
—t+—BLEEEZFRETAEGD
A R#18,120,0007T (18 & #9741
20,061,0007T) ' BARAE 2 kR
B A B AR IS5 B AR IR
RN AR AR A BROABT (2015) 8
1T E001455 2 H R ERFTIE o
BMEE ARE—HE REE
TR—FBHREMIHERRAAR
ERTRE EFF - EARBEE R 2 HE
HERARERRHAR -

REBHMNTHRRARER 2 —F
HREOERERG THERSR
® ARBEFERR R-_T—RX

= A=+ BmMAHRE
L
CEHERH

() FER/HBEA

AEBRBEEHERHD
THE R & W 5 (L B 75 S % B
#£15) - Ak E A BE AT
NE AR+ F - MR E
FEEXHEPXNERES
I 51| B & AR 1% JE I T O E 8
AEEE -

R_F—ARE+-_A=1t—8"
REAEEREBPREITZT
AR KREHE - BIHIEK
MZARZFEBRERNROT :

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Within one year —F RN 118,031 65,765
In the second to fifth years, H_FE=FHF

inclusive (BHEERMF) 304,047 169,081

After five year ERHF 41,544 22,871

463,622 257,717
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)
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4. EEHELHER)

(b) As lessee (b) fEAEIEA
The Group leases certain of its office AEBBRELEHELHM
properties and warehouses under operating EEETHAEYMERER °
lease arrangements. Leases for properties and FzEmERERBELHM
warehouses are negotiated for terms ranging RE—EAZE+TF -
from one month to ten years.
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total REE—RF+ZHA=1+—8"
future minimum lease payments under non- RIRZE T P AIHEE 2 &R &1
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: g KAEEFHBHAEZNZRRK
RIEBRERNZTOT:
2016 2015
o —T—0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Within one year —F A 141,860 111,434
In the second to fifth years, S _-_FEZFHF
inclusive (BREEEMTF) 53,762 66,646
195,622 178,080
42. COMMITMENTS 42, R 1E
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed Br EX Mol EElE
in note 41(b) above, the Group had the following capital ZHON RBERAR - AEBEEL
commitments at the end of the reporting period: AT B AR HE
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
B¥TT BT T
Contracted, but not provided for: B %418 K& & :
Land and buildings + 3 R F 281,626 288,985
Capital contributions payable to mMEEEELETE
joint ventures 60,273 91,474
Capital contributions payable to MZEEE A RER
associates 16,607 26,231
Capital contributions payable MEEAHEE 2
to available-for-sale KEEE
investments 163,856 3,577
522,362 410,267




43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Transactions with related parties

In addition to the transactions and balances
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements,
the Group had the following material transactions

(a)

Notes to Financial Statements
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43. FEALT XS

HBEEALTZRS

5z

B It B 75 ek B A BB (0 P 2

RERXHREHIN K

SEEUTERRARBRBEAL

with related parties: IR
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—RF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Hiat BETT BB T T
Transactions with joint ventures HEELEZRD
Sales of IT products to joint ventures AEEPXEEZITEY (i) 1,169 14,166
Provision of IT services to joint ventures RAEESERMEZITRE (i) 9,896 17,576
Purchases of IT products from joint ventures HARGEBEZITE (i) — 2,487
Provision of IT services by joint ventures HASCERMEZITRS (i) 3,050 —
Rental income from joint ventures EECERBRZAEKRA (iv) 785 1,139
Interest income on loans from joint ventures SEECERBM 2 ERF L
'ON (v) 53,412 37,675
Transactions with associates HRENE 2R S
Sales of IT products to associates RS ARHEEZITEY (i) 33,624 38,326
Provision of IT services to associates B & QR R 2 ITHRE (i) — 815
Provision of IT services by associates 2 DR U 2 ITAR# (ii) - 1,082
Rental income from associates B AR R Z B ERA (iv) 1,698 2,217
Transactions with related companies HEENAZRS
(note [vi)) (W1 & (vi))
Sales of IT products to related companies REERBHEEZITEY (i) 27,415 —
Provision of IT services to related companies REERRREZITRE (i) 232,504 —
Purchases of IT products from related HBERABEZITEY
companies (iii) 79,718 =
Provision of IT services by related companies MEERQR R ZITRS (i) 135,428 —
Rental income from related companies HEER R MR 2 & WA (iv) 38,198 —

Notes: Bt et -

(i) The sales were made with reference to the listed price 0] ZEHEHREAEE R E
and conditions offered to the major customers of the BRI Z AT B R AR T 3
Group. 17T °

(i) The prices for the provision of IT services were (i) TRPUITAR S < (B4R T IR IR AR
determined at rates mutually agreed between the Group @Eﬁiz@ﬁg HMEATESHE
and the corresponding related parties. MmEE °

(i)  The purchases were made at prices mutually agreed (iii) axw?ﬁfﬁ&%?ﬁ?ﬂ@@/\i%
between the Group and the corresponding related BYIEREPE 2B RIE
parties with reference to the listed price and conditions b4 $EB§$§§§E$H Eﬁ/%ﬁ@)\
offered by the related parties to their major customers. TEFIHE ZBIRET

(iv)  The rental income was determined at rates mutually (iv) HEBAT2EWEHESR
agreed between the Group and the corresponding ?J%ZK%EJE@}E HEREALTE
related parties with reference to the market rental. 75 1% 7E i & 5E ©

V) The interest income is calculated with reference to (v) ”Q%Xﬁ'\]ﬂ%ﬂﬁl?\%%%ﬁ%ﬂ
market interest rates. EErH o

(v  Digital China Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries are i) RIS SR B AR B R A E) R
the related companies of the Group, as the Chairman HtE AR AR EXRER
of Digital China Group Co., Ltd., Mr. GUO Wei, is also Al EE R RSN BISE
the Chairman and key management personnel of the @Hﬁf’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&52§$§ IR

BARRZEFERBAREREA

Company.

8 o
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Other transactions with related parties
During the vyear, the Group had provided
guarantees in favour of two financial institutions
for certain asset-backed securities issued by
a joint venture, Chongging Digital China HC
Microfinance Co., Ltd., up to an aggregate
amount of RMB354,000,000 (2015: Nil). As
at 31 December 2016, the value of the asset-
backed securities issued attributable to the
aforesaid guarantees amounted to approximately
HK$283,497,000.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

(i) Details of the Group’s trade balances
with the joint ventures and associates as
at the end of the reporting period are
included in notes 27 and 31 to the financial
statements, respectively.

(i)  Details of the amounts due to a subsidiary of
a joint venture included in the Group’s other
payables and accruals as at the end of the
reporting period are included in note 32 to
the financial statements.

(i) Details of the loans to the joint ventures
included in the Group’s prepayments,
deposits and other receivables as at the end
of the reporting period are included in note
28 to the financial statements.

(iv) Details of the balances of the discontinued
operation with the joint ventures and
associates of the Group as at 31 December
2015 are included in note 11 to the financial
statements.

43. FEANTX 5 (&)

HEBMALT ZHMR S

RAFEER  NEBR—H
EELCEEEMMNBTRR
NEEFRERARAMEES
MEBREHETETEEX

(b)

(c)

FREFIRE

RESBHOR

A R#354,000,0007t (=&
—hF B RZT—RF
+-—A=+—HB  LitR&E
BN CEEIRBELFHNBE
283,497,0007T °

HEEALZERESE:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv]

RIBERR - AL E MR
BELERBENRZ
BHREBRZFBOANE

Rt mE M F27 &
31 o

RBEHKR > BHEE
CEZHBAT ZHAE
BREEAEEZ EME

NRBERERER 2
1B B0 1 B 75 R B A
32 °

RBEHR masd
EREERBRELE
B FEMFIE  BER
H & IR 2 5 A
&N UL B 7 R Y AR
28 -

R-ZE—RAF+_-_A=
+—H8  AEEHEER
BREEKZAELE
KB NG 2 R 2 &
15 B A I B 75 SR 2 B A
11 °



Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. FAEALTRS(E)
(Continued)

(d) Compensation of key management d) AEERAREEBAEZR
personnel of the Group [5)
2016 2015
—E-REF —ZE—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYET T BT T
E
Short term employee benefits A EBE A 19,105 29,043 ]
Post-employment benefits B 1E & 4E T 125 164 B
Share-based compensation LARR (0 214 2 Bl & 29,231 &) E
=
T
Total compensation paid to key SM#ABEEEEAEB =
management personnel 2R BN 48 5t 48,461 29,212 i
w
Further details of directors’ emoluments are FHEEMecE— T =
included in note 8 to the financial statements. B Uk B S SR R BT 528 o
o,
= 7 =

S




44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 44 . REMEISZ&MTIH
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RWmERR SR ITAEER 2K
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting HEWMT:
period are as follows:
2016 —E-RF
Financial assets TELEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Emk AHEEZ
BE W | TREE Bt
HK$’000 HK$°'000 HK$°'000
BT T BT T BT T
Finance lease receivables FE U Bt & & FRIE 714,129 — 714,129
éﬂﬂ%’ Available-for-sale investments AfHEZRE — 3,808,654 3,808,654
— Accounts and bills receivables — EWERZ R EWREE | 4,003,615 — 4,003,615
%m@ Financial assets included in BERBEMNKIE -
prepayments, deposits and Ze Rk EMEK
5 other receivables REPZEREE | 1,694,649 — 1,694,649
& Restricted bank balances SRR 1T & R 58,910 = 58,910
§ Cash and cash equivalents ReMkBEEED 2,698,158 — 2,698,158
2
Q 9,169,461 3,808,654 12,978,115
=
£ Financial liabilities ZTHEE
oo
% Financial
P liabilities at
§ amortised cost
g 2 8 PR Bt B
a ZeREE
HK$’000
BET T
Accounts and bills payables ERTAR R R BN R & 2,124,347
Financial liabilities included in other BEREMENREANRBRERT
payables and accruals ZEHARE 1,309,630
Interest-bearing bank and other Bt B ER1T R
borrowings HihEH 7,664,888
11,098,865
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
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44. HEMNEI P2 &M IR

(Continued) (8)
2015 —E-—FREF
Financial assets THEE
Available-
for-sale
Loans and financial
receivables assets Total
Bk AftHEZ
JE W R 1E TREE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Finance lease receivables ek @& T & 18 371,703 — 371,703
Available-for-sale investments  A[fEHE 2R E — 596,603 596,603
Accounts and bills receivables FEWER X & EKREE 3,700,923 — 3,700,923
Financial assets included in BERBEN A -
prepayments, deposits and Ze Rk EMEYK
other receivables HREFRZzEREE 1,395,635 — 1,395,635
Restricted bank balances IR HI 88 17 45 £k 69,654 — 69,654
Cash and cash equivalents RekRReZEEY 3,272,212 — 3,272,212
8,810,127 596,603 9,406,730
Financial liabilities TEEE
Financial
liabilities at

amortised cost

REBHR A E

ZEmaE

HK$'000

BT T

Accounts and bills payables JER BR K R FE 1 R 1B 2,005,817
Financial liabilities included in other BEREMENRERBRERS

payables and accruals ZEHARE 1,402,029

Interest-bearing bank borrowings M ERITE R 6,511,681

9,918,527
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's
financial instruments not measured at fair value, other than
certain unlisted available-for-sale investments measured at
cost included in non-current assets, of which the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors are of the opinion that fair value cannot be
measured reliably, and those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximating to their fair values largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments and that
these instruments are with floating interest rates, are as
follows:

45 AEEEEREHMIAZY
EEEHER

REERERBEE ZIERANG
ENETHLEMARLEZRER
EEMNATFEERFTHEEN &
ERRHERFEETEAEE -
ARBEREHMER— LT
AZREEEAEAFEERERZ
SETEFBMEAIN RNEEZIE
AAFEEAEZEHMIAZERE
BEREAQAFEEIROT:

Carrying amounts Fair values
IREE AFEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE| ZT-hF | ZB-RF | ZT—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT
Financial assets SREE
Accounts receivable & U8R 3k 131,528 — 132,939 —
Finance lease FEl R EEE
receivables IR 327,865 371,703 336,013 377,268
459,393 | 371,703 | 4es.952 | 377268
Financial liabilities £@M&&
Interest bearing B B AR 1T &
bank and other H i B
borrowings 586,783 — 578,048 —

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair value:

SRAERARZAFRERENLT
ARERX S (MERAERER
BEEARHFZAXRFLBA
R o LT RIBRE B3t A
FEE:



45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of the non-current portion of accounts
receivable, finance lease receivables and fixed rate
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group’s own non-performance risk for interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2016 was assessed to be insignificant.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with
a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 December
2016 and 2015:

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input Range
GRCPR BEATABERINERE #E

45

Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 ¥R R Y &

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

AFEFREREMIAZY
FEEFRER)

MR RER B 2 - B EE
HERAREEBEZMERTR
HtpER 2 A FEE  BEMBKRE
RenEA+E ANTREXZ
RIBEGR  FERRNHEREH
BHmERFERTA R-F—
NETZA=+—8 ~EEFH
HHSRITREMERNEOR R
RE -

UWTAERZZE—A"ER_T—HF
T A=t+—HYeMIEFHEEN
BATAEREMEAE k2L HUX
EAMERE:

Sensitivity of fair value to the input

EEHAFPEENHKRE

Finance lease Discounted cash Discount rate

2016: 7% to 14.21%

receivables flow method (2015: 7%)
EUREHE BMBRBEREE Bh IR R TE-RF:7%E14.21%
R (ZZ—RF :7%)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial
instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2016:

50% (2015: 50%) increase (decrease) in discount
rate would result in decrease (increase) in fair
value by HK$21,825,000 (HK$24,506,000)
(2015: HK$16,371,000 (HK$18,433,000)

Bh 38 R 38 0 CFfL ) 50% + (= — A F : 50%) 2
FAE{E AR A (8 i) # #21,825,0007T (& #
24,506,0007L (=% — A4 : 8%16,371,0007C
(7#%18,433,0007T))

RFEEER
TRIRAEEERMTAZAFE
BAEFR:

HUR-FEMEBHEE:
R-ZE-—NF+ZH=+—H:

Fair value measurement using
AFEEHEER
Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EEHHE EATHE EAXFITBRE

R E FHERE AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(BH-) (FH) (E®=) st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T

Listed equity investments included in BEAHEEZREDN

available-for-sale investments FTERRE 172,455 — — 172,455
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45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued)
As at 31 December 2015:

AFEFEEREMIAZY
FREREFLRE)

N EEER(E)
uﬂﬁfiﬁféffgﬂﬁﬁ/z' (#)
—E-AF+_A=+—H:

Fair value measurement using

AT EERER
Quoted
prices  Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
EEHNE ZFEAUBEE SBEATAEE
B3R (B Elll:0)7S W E R
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(&) (EH=) (EH=) @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T BT T BET T
&’\m% Listed equity investments included in BEAREEZREN
s 5 = available-for-sale investments EHERRE 186,926 = —  18B,926
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured RZE—REFERZZT—RF+=A

Digital China Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

at fair value as at 31 December 2016 and 31
December 2015.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets
(2015: Nil).

Assets for which fair values are disclosed:
As at 31 December 2016:

=t—B AEEYEEFAR
EBEENAE -

z'z

RAFEER  EREENRER—
REF_ZHABEBBRAFEE
AR MRER=ZTEEARE R
(ZZ2—hF |-

BURFEERENEE:
R-E—NFf-HA=1+—H:

=<

Fair value measurement using

AFEEFEEH
Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EEBHHSE EATER BEATTEHE

MR E FHEE AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(ER— (E&=) (ER= #at
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Accounts receivable JE I BR 3R — 132,939 — 132,939
Finance lease receivables KRB EMRE A = = 336,013 336,013
— 132,939 336,013 468,952




45. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
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45. A EBFEREMIAZS
FEEFRER)

DR EESHR(E)

Assets for which fair values are disclosed: UAFEEHEEFENEE: ()

(Continued]
As at 31 December 2015:

R_E—AF+A=1+—H:

Finance lease receivables JE U b & & 18

Fair value measurement using if
AT B E <
Quoted &
prices  Significant Significant T
in active observable unobservable S
markets inputs inputs f‘?—é
EEHTE ZFAUBE BEATAHEE =
ME  EMER ELolES fﬁ
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total %
ER-)  (FHRD) (E®=) st -
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETL  BETR EETL  BETE I
=
= 283 &=

— — 377,268 377,268

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:

As at 31 December 2016:

R FEEKBEHER:
R-FE—NF+-_A=1+—H:

Fair value measurement using
AFEEHEER
Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EEHHE BEATER BEAFTITEHE

MR E AR AR
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B&/—) (€3 5=)) (FE&=) st
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Interest bearing and other borrowings HERITREMER — 578,048 — 578,048
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and cash
and cash equivalents. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
capital expenditure and operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts and bills receivables and accounts and bills
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
principally forward foreign currency contracts to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s
operations and sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, market risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives
are set out in note 2.4 to the financial statement.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
borrowings with floating interest rates.

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s interest-
bearing borrowings of HK$5,959,103,000 (2015:
HK$5,556,893,000) bore interest at floating rates. The
Group believes that the exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates is minimal.

46. B EGEEERE RBUE
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BEsREMEREENAE - f
MEERETERES 2 BUIRR
Ko B W B2 1R DA Ko AT B R e B AT
ER-

AEBIBFLMETARS T8
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (through the
impact on floating rate borrowings).

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% 3R R M 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

46. U R EEERERBK

(4&)

A= E ()

RBEHRR  TRBRAEARE
) == 28 3 (T H b 28 BUR A &) 3
N6 [ B B AT a A (38 38 % B A =K
ERZEE)NGPRE -

Increase/
(decrease) in

Increase/ profit before
(decrease) in tax for
basis points the year
REERBA
2 % F 18 hn
EH (B E) /OR 2)
HK$’'000
BET T
31 December 2016 —E-RE+ZA=+—H
HK$ borrowings ok =N 100 (59,591)
HKS$ borrowings ok =N (100) 59,591
31 December 2015 —E-haFt+=—A=+—H
HKS$ borrowings ok =N 100 (55,569)
HKS$ borrowings B E R (100) 55,569
Market risk ™ % & b

The Group trades in financial instruments including

derivatives.

Market risk represents the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables, such as interest

rates and foreign exchange rates.

AEEBEEsMIABENLET

H o
==

mERRERR

== 48 &4

BB BINFIE R

SNEZBMERESRMTAZAFE
BIARARESREDAEEZRA

B -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign currency exposures mainly arise
from the balances of current accounts and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies as at 31
December 2016 and 31 December 2015. In order to
minimise the impact of foreign exchange exposure, the
Group has entered into forward currency contracts
with creditworthy banks to manage its exchange rate
exposure.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the RMB exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant of the Group’s profit before tax
from continuing operations (due to changes in the fair
value of monetary assets and liabilities).

46. U EGEEERE RBUE

(48)

SN R By

ANEE B P AE 2 SNEE[EL B E BIR R
BIEEN BN S AINE HE
AEZERKRERWERITREA
EXR=ZZE—R"F+=ZA=+—8
RZZE—hF+-A=+—Hz#%
o AREREIINERBRZEE
AEBBEHEAEHRZRITAIL— L&
RHEBSAONEREEERER

TRETRBSHRELMEED
BONBERLT  AREREKLEERD
MBEHAE N (BN EBEERSR
BHAFEEZS) HRARKE
ENAREEEREPNHAE -

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) in
(decrease) in profit before tax

RMB rate for the year
rEE
ARBE=R B B A& F
EH (BB IR) 2, R 2)
% HK$’000
Batk BETT
31 December 2016 —E-R¥+-HA=t+—H
If RMB weakens against US$ EARBHEEETEE (1 (13,386)
If RMB strengthens against US$ & A B ¥ #H ¥ 35 oo B2 §E 1 13,386
31 December 2015 —ET-RF+ZA=t+—H
If RMB weakens against US$ EARBHEBETRER (1) (32,589)
If RMB strengthens against US$ # A K ¥ #H ¥ 3 T B2 #E 1 32,589




46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, restricted
bank balances, available-for-sale financial investments,
other receivables and certain derivative instruments,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral. Over 90% of the Group’s customers
and operations are located in Mainland China.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by industry
sector and customer.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts and bills
receivables of the continuing operations are disclosed
in note 27 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., accounts and bills receivables)
and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
interest-bearing bank borrowings and other available
sources of finances. In addition, banking facilities have
been put in place for contingency purposes.

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

46. B EGEEERE RBUE

(48)
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ERZRERR - i BRFIRE
BRIOBRFEREELEETEE M
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rEEEpEREE(BRASR
ReFEY XBHHRTHES A
HEEZERMEE  HtbBKRERR
RETHETA)ZEERRTH
RRXZUFENME - MAAEZ
EeEREBEEEFRZETIAZE
EE e

RAAREEERERTREEEZ
ZWHAMBETRS - MEFERH
HR - REEBIBIO% TP K ¥
BHELRPEKRE - FESETER
RITEBOREFER -

HiBEBAEEFELLEREY
HERKREFRRERZEESENRE
ER Bz 21t # 5T & 0t B 7% 3R
&M a7 -

B M R B

AEERAEREEUERDE 5T
ETAEZEECRRNER - ZT
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(WEMERR M EKRRE) 2 BIHA
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=
JILE °
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. U EREEBERBR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) (#8)
Liquidity risk (Continued) B R B (48
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities of ATEIRNBRERRAEB AL
the continuing operations as at the end of the reporting EEBzeRmABEINHRERED
period, based on the contractual undiscounted IR R BRI RIATE) -

payments, is as follows:

2016
ZE-A¥
3 to less
On Less than than 1to 5
demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
=F+=
BE  =Z@AUT BAR —ZRfF BBEF @5t

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BRTR BRI BETR

Interest-bearing bank and MEHRTREMER
other borrowings — 1,320,804 4,158,476 1,988,228 914,234 8,381,742
Accounts and bills payables & B8R 5 &2 &
ﬁ'"f% 3 1,983,970 134,753 5,624 — — 224,347
= 288 = Financial liabilities included BEREMEMRIE
m@ in other payables and RERERHRZ
accruals SRAE 687,877 171,623 450,130 — — 1,309,630
% 2,671,847 1,627,180 4,614,230 1,988,228 914,234 11,815,719
o
=
2 2015
< —g
© “T-hfF
S 3 to less
- On Less than than 1to05
s demand 3 months 12 months years 5 years Total
= mg—
5 =—FT—
§° BN =EAUT BARN —Z0F HBBAF st
= HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[} y —_ [Ty —_ S —_ R Ty — S My —_ . " —
= BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
g
= Interest-bearing bank B RITE N
E" borrowings — 1707256 2,776,531 1,798,524 855,689 7,138,000
e Accounts and bills FEfTBR AR K B R
payables & 1,621,240 384,430 147 — — 2,005,817
Financial liabilities included &8 M E M I 7
in other payables and RERERTZ
accruals SRARE 826,584 201,593 373,852 — — 1,402,029
2447824 2293279 3150,530 1,798,524 855689 10,545,846
Capital management EXREE
The primary objectives of the Group’'s capital NREFBEAREEBEZXTEBNZEAT
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to BRATIEAR G ZIZHEH M
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy BEZEBAERUTEEERLEE
capital ratios in order to support its business and BEREEE -

maximise shareholders’ value.
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46. UG EREEBFERBR
(48)
EXREE(E)
75 B 7 DA TR R A
RO 2 B OB B O RLR RE
AR - AR LURBAE LR
FEREZRE - MREREEER
BTHBRAR R BEARLE -
AREL ®BALTHINEARE

46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The

Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital KeRBE_ZE—REFR_T—F &
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, FT_A=+T—HBILEFERN AR 5
policies or processes for managing capital during the AIZEAEREER  BREEFIT g
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015. o =

«
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which AEBEREEABERELEER i”é
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The ZLERTI R aEFERIAEERMN %
Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio as low BEFE I MAE - REBHBE i
as possible. Net debt includes interest-bearing bank and EERERBEERGELXRER &
other borrowings, accounts and bills payables, other FERKE - BEFEREN SR =

EX - BAERLENRERE  HEfi
ENRERERERRRAS MRS

payables and accruals, less cash and cash equivalents

and restricted bank balances. Capital represents equity é@ﬁ."f%

attributable to equity holders of the parent. The gearing EBYRZRHRITHEE - BEXR = 280 =
ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as RERFIRREEER - RIWEH ‘%&‘m‘@
follows: AZBEBBEXRNOT:
Group
rEE
2016 2015
—E-XE —E—hF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest-bearing bank and other  Fff B4R 17 &% Efth & X
borrowings 7,664,888 6,511,681
Accounts and bills payables JE A BR R e FE NP R AR 2,124,347 2,005,817
Other payables and accruals HEMEMRIERTERER 3,072,125 2,254,933
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & IR& KR FEY (2,698,158) (3,272,212)
Restricted bank balances X R 8R 1T 48R (58,910) (69,654)
Net debt BEFR 10,104,292 7,430,565
Equity attributable to equity BARIRREMGER
holders of the parent 7,168,587 8,872,567
Total capital AR 7,168,587 8,872,567
Total capital and net debt BEXRINBEFRE 17,272,879 16,303,132
Gearing ratio EEAMEX 58% 46%
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Notes to Financial Statements

47. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

(b)

As mentioned in note 34(c) to the financial
statements, on 18 January 2017, 35,214,000
ordinary shares had been issued to the
Subscribers at the subscription price of
HK$5.53 per share pursuant to the Subscription
Agreement.

Further details of the transaction has been set out
in the Company’s circular dated on 30 September
2016 and announcement dated on 18 January
2017.

109,200,000 share options and 21,471,185
restricted share units were granted to certain
directors of the Company and other employees of
the Group, as further detailed in note 35 to the
financial statements on 25 January 2017 and 26
January 2017, respectively.

48. COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

47. REBEREIR

(a)

(b)

B 10 1tk B 765 3R 3% Bt 5E34(c) WY
R’k RZE—LF—HA+N
H 35,214,000/ & if i &£
EREABHIARABES
fiz 33 B iz £0 78 #65.53 T # 17
TREBA-

ZRXPHE—FFBFLEN
ARRAPAR_T—RFI
A=THHBHE T —tF
—A—tNBHREA -

ARBER=_ZT—LF—F=
+HEAR=E—tF—A=F
7~ B 2 Bl % H109,200,000
5 B8 B #E 121,471,185 %
RAIKGD FARGHTES
ERAREEEMES  #—2F
AN s el s
35

48. Lk B & =
EFLBHTETINESE - UG
AREE T 2R o



49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of

Notes to Financial Statements
B 7% ¥R R B 5

31 December 2016 —Z—"FE+-A=1+—H

49. EATIMBRR R R

R ERRERARR BN K

the Company as the end of the reporting period is as ZER:
follows:
2016 2015
—E-XREF —E—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M HWENMKE 110 g7
Investments in subsidiaries RB AR ZE&E 1,281,593 847.969
Total non-current assets BWIEREE E 1,281,703 848,066
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other FEfIZIE - & & K H At
receivables i Gl 29,427 56,389
Due from subsidiaries JE U B B8 A R 3R IR 3,649,920 5,871,337
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEEEEY 203,183 338,753
Total current assets wnE)EE 3,882,530 6,264,479
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hith T 508 R FE IR B A 26,196 18,969
Due to subsidiaries JE 1< BfY JB 2 B 5K I8 1,256,124 80,634
Interest-bearing bank borrowings i B R 1T E X 217,000 1,628,750
Total current liabilities RnEAE 1,499,320 1,728,353
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETEE 2,383,210 4,536,126
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERARDAEME
LIABILITIES 3,664,913 5,384,192
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBER
Interest-bearing bank borrowings B 2 R1TE R 193,750 387,500
Total non-current liabilities BRIERBEE 193,750 387,500
Net assets EEFE 3,471,163 4,996,692
EQUITY R
Issued capital BETRA 123,466 109,637
Reserves (note) &t (1 a%) 3,347,697 4,887,055
Total equity s PR 3,471,163 4,996,692
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49. X ABIMBR AR (&)

Note: Bt
A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows: ARB 2 REERIEQOT :
Employee
Share share-based
premium Contributed Employee compensation Retained
account surplus share trust reserve profits Total
BERE UROGXMNES
B 43 % B IR BARK -5 ZHERmE REEA @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T BT T BT T BETT BRI BT T
At 1 January 2015 RZZ—RF—A—8 2,060,433 623,689 (302,457) 35,108 600,181 3,016,954
Final 2014 dividend declared “T-NEEERAHRE - = = —  (214,454) (214,454)
Profit for the year and total AEEERRAFE
comprehensive income for the 2EEBERE
year = = = — 2,088,311 2,069,311
Exercise of share options 1710 B8 PR 1 20,047 — — (4,837) — 15,210
Share-based compensation AR 2B & — — — 34 — 34
At 31 December 2015 R-ZT—-AF+=-A=+—H 2,080,480 623,689 (302,457) 30,305 2,455,038 4,887,055
Special dividend AR 2 - - - — [(3,515,317) (3.515,317)
Profit for the year and total AFERMNRAFEREER
comprehensive income for the k]
year = = = — 1,228,764 1,223,764
Issue of new shares BOHLBR 697,786 — — — — 697,786
Exercise of share options 1710 B8 PR 1 16,568 — — (3,998) — 12,570
Share-based payment expenses for /T ERMD 2
shares issued at discount IR ZHER 43,658 — - - 43,858
Share issue expenses BOIRHER (1,819) = = — (1,819)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-—R"E+_A=+—H 2,836,673 623,689 (302,457) 26,307 163,485 3,347,697
Note: B E

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of
the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to a corporate reorganisation in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended) and the Bye-
Laws of the Company, the contributed surplus can be distributed to
the shareholders, provided that the Company will be able to pay its
liabilities as they fall due, and subsequent to the distribution, the
aggregate amount of its total liabilities as well as the issued share
capital and premium is less than the realisable value of its assets.

The employee share-based compensation reserve comprises the fair
value of options or RSUs granted under the share-based incentive
schemes which are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the
accounting policy for employee benefits in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the share
premium account when the related options/RSUs are exercised/
transferred, or be transferred to retained profits should the related
options/RSUs expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 29 March 2017.

ARBZBANBHRERBEREBEHEARF BN
EERAER EMMAETZ - RARREAM
WHERBARZRHEAFEESNRART
EARBMETZBNAELEHE - RED
REQRE(RIER]) RARB 2 AR A -
BABBRUDIKTRE  EARBLAFRE
NERBBPZET  MEZBEADIRR AR
Al BERARBETRAR G EDERE
EEMAEHRME-

VAR 7 32 9 08 B 2 BN < 1% 1 e AR A D =1 81
TZEET i ARTTHE AR B SR R I AR
D2 RFEEBK BN HRRM
H2ABUBRN XN RS BRNERE -
TR R REIRMNITE,BEE - Z
RETHEESEEARMBER &AM
AR ZREIR MBI AR E R - BA
R e

50. UBHRRZE&E

W BRRERN-_E—tF=HA=
ThEKEESHERFETZ -




Investment properties as at 31 December 2016:

Location

it B

Usage
R&

Particulars of Properties
MEFIS

R-_E—REFE+_A=+—HZEEY

3

Tenure

FH

Attributable
interest of the
Group

AEEELG RS

Digital China Xi'an Science and
Technology Park,

No. 20 Zhangba 4th Street,
Xi'an Gaoxin Technology
Development District,

Xi'an, Shaanxi Province,

The PRC

RERAEE
AEmEMRMERRER
XN\ 205%
WNEER LB RE

Digital China Wuhan Science and
Technology Park,

North of Da Shu Road East,
East of Guang Gu Road,
Wuhan Donghu Technology
Development District,
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The PRC

BRI &

BUE TR R R
HAREUR

REFREE AL

740 )N 205 B O£ B E

Digital China Science and
Technology Innovation Park,
Qilin Street,

Jiangning District,

Nanjing, Jiangsu Province,
The PRC

hET & A

HRMIIER

BEaE

148 BRFS B 2RI B

Office building
/NN -

Office building
MAKRE

Office building
AN

Medium term lease

A

Medium term lease

A A

Medium term lease

oI 4

100%

100%

100%
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Particulars of Properties

Location

ith

Usage
R&

Tenure

FH

Attributable
interest of the
Group

AEEEGES

Digital China Chongging Science and
Technology Park,

No. 24 and 26, Science and
Technology Innovation Park,
Hong Hu Road \West,

Yubei District,

Chongging Province,

The PRC

TR EE MR

AT 24 ZE 265 B AIFTE
0N B E B R E

Digital China Kunshan Logistics Park,
No. 1 Shuang He Road,

Dian Shan Hu Town,

Kunshan City, Jiangsu Province,

The PRC

RENT# A

B LI 71 B 1L A 8B

& F0 51557

HoN E0R5 B L W i B

Digital China Shenyang Logistics Park,
No. 2 Cangchudongyi Street,

Hunnan District,

Shenyang, Liaoning Province,

The PRC

PERES

BT IER R R IR —E25%
WMNETEORS) EFEBEREN

Digital China Wuhan Logistic Park

No. 81 Gaoxin 4th Street Road,

Donghu Technology Development District,
Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The PRC

REHILE

B T R B B R

= #7703 6155
WNBERZEFRBEEE N

Office building
NN

Logistics and storage

Wi kB

Logistics and storage

MR kR

Logistics and storage

Wi kB

Medium term lease

A

Medium term lease

A4

Medium term lease

A A

Medium term lease

Y A 4

100%

100%

100%

100%



Particulars of Properties
W) % %

Attributable

interest of the

Location Usage Tenure Group
ith B R& F 5 FEEEEER
Digital China Jinan Logistics Park, Logistics and storage ~ Medium term lease 100%
No. 1459-2 Keyuan Road, Wm & B & HERFE 4

Sun Town,

High-tech Industrial Development Zone,

dJinan, Shandong Province,

The PRC

REILRE

EBEMeHRMAER

BRNBEERE

RHE 18 1459-25%

BNEEEEEFRBERE

Digital China Technology Building, Office building Medium term lease 100%

No. 9 Shangdi Jiu Street,
Haidian District,

FENES

A

Beijing,
The PRC
FE L R T
BRE A
BENRES
Properties under development as at 31 December 2016: RZE-—RET_A=+T—RHZEEY
g
Total GFA
attributable
The to the Group’s Expected
Group’s interest date of
Property interest  Location ('000 s.q.m.) Usage completion
FEREKHE
EN - WEEER BHxT
ES gz NGB (F¥HEXK) RE I ]
Digital China 100% Digital China Qilin Street, 137 Office building 2019

Information Service
Industry Base
MBS T R
PR 75 2 32 H 3

Science and Technology
Park, Jiangning District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province,
The PRC

REIE A

ARMIER

BB G B M B R R E

NN
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Particulars of Properties

Completed properties held for

sale as at 31 December

2016: R R Ty
Total GFA
attributable
The to the Group’s
Group'’s interest
Property interest Location (000 s.q.m.) Usage
BEREEE
rEE MEEER
LIES EiEEs VB (FFFHXK) AR
Guanggu Zhihui Park 100% Digital China Wuhan Science 75 Office building

REEEE
gwm%
% 296 =
Dy
Digital China 100%

Information Service
Industry Base
A8 0 B8 35K TR = 2
Rk 75 B 25 b

and Technology Park, FE/NYNE=
North Of Da Shu Road East,
East of Guang Gu Road,
Wuhan Donghu Technology
Development District,
Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The PRC

FEAILE

I % T BRO8 R B 1l B 3 R
HARRKNBIAR

A& RE& AL

80 B B R R

Digital China Qilin Street
Science and Technology
Park, Jiangning District,
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province,
The PRC

B A

ERTIIER

B I 47 28 e N RS B Bl T B

30 Office building
NN



A summary of the results and of the assets,
and non-controlling interests of the Group for the
as extracted from the published
statements and restated/reclassified as

five financial
audited financial

years,

appropriate, is set out below.

Five Year Financial Summary
TFEFHE2

liabilities

last

AEFEBAERBAMBREERBZEE M
KEZVFEERRKEED B H B
BR)Z¥E BE - BEREERES
BEWT o

=
RESULTS £4
Nine months

Year ended Year ended Year ended ended Year ended
31 December | 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March
2016 2015 2014 2013 2013
Bz 0z BE 0z Bz

—E-REF —T—hfF —T—MF —T—= =F==
+=A=+-8 H=A=+-8 +ZA=+-B +=A=t+-A =A=+-8
LEE I I ENEA I3
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BETT BT BT

REVENUE FROM FEREEBRA

CONTINUING

OPERATIONS 12,251,359 10,630,672 12,156,231 8,355,200 9,860,768
PROFIT/(LOSS) BFEKEEKZ

BEFORE TAX FROM BB ATRA

CONTINUING (B #])

OPERATIONS 137,713 670,879 599,985 (794,994) 517,015
Income tax expense st & A (148,743) (207,371) (89,904) (57,167) (99,874)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR FEREXEBZ

THE YEAR/PERIOD rEE Y

FROM CONTINUING wmAL (B R)

OPERATIONS (11,030) 463,508 510,081 (852,161) 417,141
Profit for the year/period FEHFBELEEK 2

from the discontinued REE /HH

operation & A 559,623 462,207 392,169 389,517 1,102,011
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE XFE /HIR#ER

YEAR/PERIOD (E51#|) 548,593 925,715 902,250 (462,644) 1,519,152
Attributable to: BER:

Equity holders of the BRRRRES

parent 389,314 661,676 700,953 84,103 1,367,369

Non-controlling IR IR A =

interests 159,279 264,039 201,297 (5486,747) 151,783
548,593 925,715 902,250 (462,644) 1,519,152
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Five Year Financial Summary
IFYBEE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- ZE BEHIEERERS
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

31 December | 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March

2016 2015 2014 2013 2013

ZB-KF —Z—h%F —ZT-F —2—=F —E—=%F

+=A=+-8 [Ft=RA=+—8B +=ZR=+—H8 +=ZA=+—HB =RA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BETT BETT BETT BETT

TOTAL ASSETS HEE 23,716,121 37,486,363 33,707,772 30,099,973 28,407,870

TOTAL LIABILITIES HEE (13,244,208) (26,192,046) (22,843,597) (21,053,585) (19,736,736)
NON-CONTROLLING FERES

INTERESTS (3,303,326) (2,421,750) (2,263,819) (1,320,511) (844,636)

7,168,587 8,872,567 8,600,356 7,725,877 7,826,498

W1z

Iy,

298

\l

&
“

Digital China Holdings Limited 2016 Annual Report

.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. GUO Wei (Chairman)

Mr. LIN Yang (Chief Executive Officer]
Mr. WANG Xinhui (President]

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Man Chung, Francis

Ms. NI Hong (Hope)

Dr. LIU Yun, John

Ms. YAN Xiaoyan

Prof. LAl Daniel, B85, JrP

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. WONG Chi Keung

REGISTERED OFFICE
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF

BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Suite 2008, 20/F., Devon House, Taikoo Place
979 King's Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

CITIC Bank International Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Australia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

0-Bank Co., Ltd.

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co. Ltd.,
Hong Kong Branch

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Company Information
N A&

EEE

BITEE
BREEER)
WSk (BRHTE)
B PLAC FD)

BUFHITESE
mMRAEE

{7 4T/ 38

B rBEL
B

#E 85 B 2% - BBS, UP

AFHWE
TERLE

o 1 3% B B
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

EEERERER
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S 8 f R I 2 9795

A& Y &R K E20E2008%

ERERRIT
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LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong law:

Cleary Gottlieb Steen & Hamilton (Hong Kong)
Norton Rose Fulbright Hong Kong

As to Bermuda law:
Appleby

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

SHARE REGISTRARS

Bermuda

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Hong Kong

Tricor Abacus Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

PLACE OF LISTING OF SHARES AND STOCK

CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00861

Taiwan Stock Exchange Corporation
Taiwan Depository Receipts
Stock Code: 910861

WEBSITE

www.dcholdings.com.hk

BN
B
£ 7| (5 75) 22 6 6 5 P
HERKEHREE S

B REZXE:
Appleby

1% 85 B
% K & &t Bl % 7% P

% 438 F & 5C 2

BRE

Estera Management (Bermuda) Limited
Canon’s Court

22 Victoria Street

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

&8
BEBRBHER AT
BEBERNERI83%
& A 2RE

Rz 3 b i 3t Bh % Bk 5 4K 50k

EEBMAERIMER QA
it X 5% : 00861

RERAFRIMBRMABRAT

AN | T B IK
BEFt&E

&% 17 X 5% : 910861
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www.dcholdings.com.hk
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